BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Agenda For
January 29, 2025
Regular Meeting — 5:00 p.m.
30 Mansfield Road - Hollister, California 95023

Assistance for those with disabilities:
If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call Barbara Mauro, Executive
Assistant/Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting for assistance so the necessary arrangements can
be made.

Effective at the April 27, 2022, The Board of Directors is now allowing the public to attend in person at all meetings of
the San Benito County Water District Board. We will also continue to offer the meeting via Zoom as well. Regarding
virtual participation, members of the public are instructed to be on mute during the proceedings and to speak only
when public comment is allowed, after requesting and receiving recognition from the Board President.

ZOOM LINK
https:/ /us06web.zoom.us/i/83797058855?2pwd=GyFZYCBwn 12XPHeileKZmLIllagDDha. 1

Meeting ID
837 9705 8855

Passcode:
446047

Dial Only:
Dial by your location
*+1 669 444 9171 US
* +1 253 205 0468 US
e +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
* +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
e +1 719 359 4580 US
e +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver)
* +1 564 217 2000 US

If you plan to participate in the meeting and need assistance, please call
Barbara Mauro, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting.

CALL TO ORDER

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

=5 -b. Roll Call o i e e T SETOL L B T

C. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will
be limited to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard

after 8:00 p.m.
d. Approval of Agenda

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter
not on the Agenda




CONSENT AGENDA:

(Consent items shall be considered as a whole and without discussion unless a particular item is removed from the
consent agenda. Board member may discuss individual items or seek information from staff or legal counsel without
removing the item from the Consent Agenda. A member of the public should seek recognition by the President if comment
is desired. Approval of consent items shall be made by one motion.)

1. Approval of Minutes for: December 18, 2024 Regular Meeting
January 13, 2025 Special Meeting

2. Allowance of Claims

3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the January Board Meeting

4. Acceptance of Quarterly Investment Report, December 31, 2024

S. On Call Contracts — Status Updates

REGULAR AGENDA

6. FYE 2024 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit

a. Presentation by McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman

b. Consider Acceptance and Authorize Distribution

7. Public Hearing regarding 2025-2026 Groundwater Charges

a. Proof of Publication submitted for Notice of Public
Hearing

b. Presentation of 2025-2026 Groundwater Charges
c. Open Public Hearing
d. Close Public Hearing or continue to later date

e. Consider Confirming the 2025-2026 Groundwater Charges

8. B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project

a. Consider Approval and Authorize San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water
Authority to Execute the Agreement between the United States and
the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority for the

Management of the Expanded San Luis Reservoir and Cost Share L

~of Charges Associated with Raising of the B.F. Sisk Dam and
Increased Storage Capacity of the Federally Administered San Luis
Reservoir

b. Consider Approval and Authorize the Board President to Execute
the First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and
Reservoir Expansion Project Activity Agreement and Make a
Financial Commitment of (NTE) $200,000



c. Consider Resolution and Authorize Board President to sign said
resolution, Approving of both B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir
Expansion Project Agreements

9. Consider Authorizing the Board President to Execute the Agreement
between the San Benito County Water District and Sunnyslope Water
District for the Export of Water from Zones 3 & 6

10. Staff Report on Government Finance Officers Association Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, Twelve Year

11. Committee/Agency Representative Reports:
a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Jacobson)
b. Administration Committee (Flores/Williams)
C. Finance Committee (Freeman/Tonascia)
d. Investment Committee (Flores/Williams)

12. Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

13. General Manager’s Report:
Reach 1 Operations

)
) Zone 3 Operations

o

O

) Zone 6 Operations

[oR

) Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)
) San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities

D

City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan
g) B F Sisk Dam Raise Project

5

h) Miscellaneous District items

14.  Adjournment

| -Adjournment - Unless there is a special meeting prior to that time, the next regular meeting.of the Board will be Wednesday, -
= J“February 26, 2025. Meetings are held at the District office; 30-Mafisfield°Road; Hollister,”California.- LAST-DAY-TO FILE CLAIMS |- -
against the District is the second Friday of each month, except in November and December. Usually meeting dates change in those
months because of holidays. The Board may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters, litigation or employee
negotiations as authorized by the Raiph M. Brown Act, Evidence Code #950-962 or other appropriate State law.

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed to
all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the District office located at 30 Mansfield Road,
Hollister, California.




December 18, 2024
Regular Meeting
5:06 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in regular
session on Wednesday, December 18, 2024 at 5:06 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District
office at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: Vice President Doug
Williams and Directors Sonny Flores, John Freeman. Director Mark Wright was absent and
Director Joe Tonascia arrived late. Also present were General Manager Dana Jacobson, District
Counsel Jeremy T. Liem, Assistant General Manager Brett Miller, Operations and Maintenance
Manager Michael Craig, Water Resources Technician II Dustin Franco, Office Specialist I
Shannon Darnall and Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Barbara Mauro. Jeff Cattaneo participated
via Zoom. '

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order at 5:06 p.m. by Vice President Williams.

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
Vice President Williams called the meeting to order at 5:06 p.m.

b. Roll Call
Mrs. Mauro called roll; members present were: Vice President Williams and Directors
Flores, Freeman, Tonascia and Wright.

c. Speakers will be limited to S minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will be limited
to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda
It was noted an item needed to be added to the agenda. Under Agenda item #12
Committee/Agency Representative Reports, there needs to be a #d, Finance Committee
Meeting. With this addition, a motion was made by Director Flores and seconded by
Director Freeman, the Agenda was approved by 3 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores and
Freeman and there were 2 absent, Tonascia and Wright.

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter not on the
Agenda
There were no public comments.

(Director Tonascia arrived at 5:08 p.m.)

CONSENT AGENDA:

1. Approval of Minutes for: November 20,2024 Regular Meeting

2. Allowance of Claims

3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the December Board Meeting

4, On Call Contracts — Status Updates

5. Consider Resolution regarding Salary and Compensation for the Executive

Management Group (Resolution #2024-46)

Regular Meeting Minutes, December 18, 2024



With a motion by Director Freeman and a second by Director Flores, the Consent Agenda was
approved by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1
absent, Wright.

REGULAR AGENDA

6.

Consider Resolution Recognizing Andrew Shelton for his Service to the District

The Board and District staff thanked Mr. Shelton for his Service to the District as a board
member. Vice President Williams presented Mr. Shelton with a plaque. With a motion
by Director Freeman and a second by Director Flores, the Board of Directors approved
Resolution #2024-46, A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County
Water District Recognizing Andrew Shelton for his Service to the District by 4
affirmative votes, Williams, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absent,
Wright.

Consider Approval of Non-Financial Worksite Agreement for the San Benito
County WIOA Work Experience Program

Mr. Miller reviewed the agreement for work experience for the Board. He added it
would be at no cost to the District, and the participants would learn how the district
works and gain training from district staff. Directors Flores, Freeman and Tonascia all
were familiar with the program and agreed it was a good opportunity.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Freeman, the Board of
Directors approved the Non-Financial Worksite Agreement for the San Benito County
WIOA Work Experience Program by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores, Freeman and
Tonascia and there was 1 absent, Wright.

Consider Resolution Establishing an Interim Policy on Rescheduling of
Unused/Conserved Water

Mr. Cattaneo reviewed this item for the Board. He stated the District has done
rescheduling in previous years, so customers could carry forward unused water into the
next water year. He explained how the water was treated differently this year, as far as
payment. The customers, since the water isn’t paid for, would pay when water is used as
well as paying the rescheduling fee.

Director Flores asked why the customers didn’t pay for the water and has the District
already paid for it? Mr. Cattaneo stated no, the District hasn’t paid for the water, as it is
being stored in San Luis Reservoir and the District only pays once it goes through
Bifurcation.

With no further questions, a motion was made by Director Freeman and seconded by
Director Flores; the Board of Directors approved Resolution #2024-48, a Resolution of
the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District Establishing an Interim
Policy on Rescheduling for Unused/Conserved Water by 4 affirmative votes, Williams,
Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absent, Wright.

Regular Meeting Minutes, December 18, 2024



10.

11.

12.

Consider Resolution Approving a Software Service Agreement with Tyler
Technologies for access to Tyler’s Proprietary Software Product, ERP Pro

Mr. Miller reviewed this item for the Board. The District’s current software, Great
Plains, will soon not be providing support. Mr. Miller is recommending Tyler
Technologies. He is familiar with it and the City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County
Water District both use it. He also recommends moving forward now so District staff can
have training and staff would like to implement the new program for the fiscal year
beginning this July. Mr. Miller stated the Finance Committee supported exploring a new
option for the financial software.

Director Freeman asked if this is a web-based product. Cody Gunstenson, from Tyler
Technologies, confirmed it is. Director Freeman further asked about security. Mr.
Gunstenson stated Tyler takes security very seriously and stated it is fully secure. Mr.
Miller added ACWA/JPIA has a cyber security division and is working on cyber
insurance for the District.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Board of
Directors approved a Software Service Agreement with Tyler Technologies for access to
Tyler’s Proprietary Software Product, ERP Pro by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores,
Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absent, Wright.

Consider Approving the Second Amended and Restated San Luis & Delta-Mendota
Water Authority Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement

Mr. Jacobson reviewed this item for the Board. He stated this is a clean-up item for San
Luis & Delta Mendota Water Authority for some needed revisions to the JPA, mainly
focusing on the Friant Water District and how the Authority and its members interact
with Friant. He further added a majority of Authority members have already approved it
but he was asked to have our Board approve and sign it.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Board of
Directors Approved the Second Amended and Restated San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water
Authority Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Flores,
Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absent, Wright.

Mid Pacific Water Users Conference, January 29' through 31%, 2025 in Reno,
Nevada

a. Consider General Manager or Designee and Director Attendance
Mrs. Mauro reviewed this item for the Board. This is a budgeted item, and the
District has allocated funds for the General Manager or his/her designee and 1
director to attend. If anyone is interested, she asked that they let her know so
she can register them for the conference and reserve a hotel room.

Committee/Agency Representative Reports:
a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Jacobson)
As per Director Tonascia, a finance meeting was held to discuss the budget.

Regular Meeting Minutes, December 18, 2024



13.

14.

ACWA JPIA and ACWA Fall Conferences (Miller)

Mr. Miller reported for ACWA/IPIA, the District was recognized for the Liability
Program. Also, he is looking into Cyber Security Insurance which he feels will
improve the safety at the District. Regarding ACWA, Mr. Miller reported they
are changing their By Laws due to regulations in the Delta. There were
discussions on Prop 218 and also how to implement rate changes so districts can
prevent litigation.

Administration Committee (Flores/Williams)
As per Director Flores, the SLDMWA agreement and the water transfer
agreement were discussed.

Finance Committee (Flores/Tonascia)
As per Directors Flores and Tonascia, the committee reviewed the Tyler
agreement and received an update on the audit.

Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

Mr. Craig reviewed the current repair. Reviewing 2024, 29 valves were changed out, 26
check valves were changed out and 624 work orders were completed. He discussed how
using NEXGEN helps with preventive maintenance rather than always having to be
corrective.

General Manager’s Report:

a)

b)
c)

d)

Reach 1 Operations
Mr. Jacobson stated there isn’t much to report at this time.

Zone 3 Operations
Zone 6 Operations
Items b and ¢, per Mr. Jacobson, have already been covered.

Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

Mr. Jacobson reported HDR is working on the 60% design work for the pipeline and
wells for the project. He further reported he will be attending meetings at the City of
Hollister, Sunnyslope County Water District and the City of San Juan Bautista
(COSJB) to review and get their approval on the Principles of Agreement. Mr.
Jacobson also reported Kronick, Moscovitz, Tiedeman and Girard are working on a
draft amendment to the Water Supply and Treatment Agreement, which he is hopeful
will be approved in early 2025.

San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities
Mr. Jacobson reported there will be a meeting on January 16, 2025, to discuss Delta
Mendota subsidence.

City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan
Mr. Jacobson reported staff is working on an agreement for the pipeline from West
Hills WTP to COSJB.

Regular Meeting Minutes, December 18, 2024



15.

16.

g)

h)

B F Sisk Dam Raise Project

Mr. Jacobson reported this is moving forward and there will be further negotiations
over the next few weeks. He anticipates bringing an activity agreement to the Board
for approval in January/February, which will be asking for a financial commitment of
about $220,000. He further reported our contribution could be around $1 million by
end of 2025.

Miscellaneous District items

Mr. Miller gave the status of the audit. He had hoped it would be considered at this
meeting but the actuarial firm caused a delay. He anticipates approval at the regular
January Board meeting.

Mr. Jacobson welcomed our new board member, John Freeman, representing the San
Juan Bautista area. ‘

Board Organization
Mrs. Mauro reviewed the process for nominating President and Vice President, which can
be individual nominations or made as a slate for both positions.

Director Tonascia nominated Director Williams for President and Director Wright for
Vice President; this nomination was seconded by Director Flores. The Board of
Directors approved of Director Williams to be President and Director Wright to be Vice
President, for the 2025 calendar year; this was approved by 4 affirmative votes, Williams,
Flores, Freeman and Tonascia and there was 1 absent, Wright.

Adjournment
With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:47 p.m.

Doug Williams, President

Barbara L. Mauro, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk

Regular Meeting Minutes, December 18, 2024



January 13, 2025
Special Meeting
5:00 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in special
session on Monday, January 13, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District office
at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: President Doug Williams,
Vice President Mark Wright and Directors Sonny Flores, John Freeman and Joe Tonascia. Also
present were General Manager Dana Jacobson, District Counsel Jeremy T. Liem, Assistant
General Manager Brett Miller, Senior Engineer David Macdonald, Office Specialist I Shannon
Darnall and Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Barbara Mauro. Jeff Cattaneo participated via
Zoom.

CALL TO ORDER
President Williams called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
President Williams led the Pledge of Allegiance.

b. Roll Call
Mrs. Mauro called roll; members present were: President Williams, Vice President
Wright and Directors Flores, Freeman and Tonascia.

c. Approval of the Agenda
With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Agenda was
approved by 5 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia.

d. Speakers will be limited to 5 minutes to address the Board
There were no public comments.
CONSENT AGENDA
1. Approval of Minutes Special Meeting December 9, 2024
2. Allowance of Claims

With a motion by Director Freeman and a second by Vice President Wright, the Consent Agenda
was approved by 5 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia.

AGENDA ITEMS:
3. Public Hearing regarding 2024 Annual Groundwater Report
a. Proof of Publication submitted on Notice of Public Hearing,

Annual Groundwater Report
Mrs. Mauro verified the proof of publication.

b. Presentation of Report
Mr. Cattaneo reviewed the District Act’s requirement for the groundwater report.
He further stated that in 2022, when the District became the Groundwater
Sustainability Agency for San Benito County, the Annual Groundwater Report
shifted to the March board meeting to comply with SGMA’s requirement. The
SGMA report is due annually on April 1%, To fulfill the District’s Act

Special Meeting Minutes, January 13, 2025 ' 1



requirement of reporting groundwater conditions on the second Monday each
year, the District’s Engineer prepared a report to present at the public hearing.
Mr. Cattaneo reviewed the highlights of his report which included the
recommendations for the upcoming water year which are: purchase additional
CVP water as available, maximize use of the reservoirs for the benefits of the
District and its customers, continue percolation of the District’s water supply and
levy a groundwater charge. Because the groundwater charge sunsets each year,
even though there are groundwater charges approved and in place, the Board must
confirm these rates. Mr. Cattaneo added in 2023, the District changed the
groundwater charge agriculture and municipal/industrial to be the same amount.
The groundwater charge for the water year 2025/2026 will be $14.31 per acre
foot. Discussion ensued about how the rates were determined and Mr. Cattaneo
stated they were generated from a water rate study. As this is the last year of a
‘3-year schedule of rates, a new rate study will be conducted and by mid-summer,
determine a new rate, which will seek Board approval in January of 2026.

c. Questions of Directors
There were no questions from the directors.

d. Open Public Hearing
President Williams opened the Public Hearing.

e. Close Public Hearing or continue to later date
There were no questions from the public; President Williams then closed the
Public Hearing.

f. Consider Adoption of Statement of Findings and
Recommendations ,
With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Board of
Directors adopted the Statement of Findings and Recommendations by 5
affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia.

g. Consider Acceptance of 2024 District Engineer’s Report on
Annual Groundwater Conditions and Recommendation on
Groundwater Charges
With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Vice President Wright, the
Board of Directors accepted the 2024 District Engineer’s Report on Annual
Groundwater Conditions and Recommendation on Groundwater Charges
by 5 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores, Freeman and
Tonascia.

Consider Resolution Approving the Change of Authorized Bank Signers for
Heritage Bank of Commerce

Mr. Miller reviewed this item for the Board. Currently, there are 2 past employees as the
current signers at Heritage Bank of Commerce. This resolution authorizes he and Mr.
Jacobson as the signers.

Special Meeting Minutes, January 13, 2025 2



With no questions from the Board, a motion was made by Director Tonascia and
seconded by Director Freeman; the Board of Directors approved Resolution #2025-01, 4
Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District Approving
the Change of Authorized Bank Signers for Heritage Bank of Commerce by 5 affirmative
votes, Williams, Wright, Flores, Freeman and Tonascia.

5. Staff Report on Term Sheet for Financing of Accelerated Drought Response Project
(ADRoP) and the Addition of San Juan Bautista to the Hollister Urban Area Water
Supply and Treatment Agreement '
Mr. Jacobson reviewed this item for the Board. Approximately 1 month ago, the Board
approved the term sheet, and he has set up meetings with the other agencies for their
approval. Tomorrow, Sunnyslope County Water District will consider the term sheet and
on January 21%, the City of Hollister and the City of San Juan Bautista will consider it
next. Mr. Jacobson further stated once the term sheet has been approved, the District will
work on the amendment for the Water Supply and Treatment Agreement. The only
change on the term sheet is that the pipeline to San Juan Bautista will be handled
separately. Mr. Jacobson added the City Manager of Hollister asked the District to set up
meetings with their council members to review this project and answer any questions.
District staff is working to set these meetings up.

ADJOURNMENT
With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 5:20 p.m.

Doug Williams, President

Barbara L. Mauro, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk

Special Meeting Minutes, January 13, 2025 3



1

System: 1/22/202¢ 9:53:37 A San Benito County Water District Page:
User Date: 1/22/202¢ COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER User ID: Leilani
Payables Management
Batch iD: CK012925 Audit Trail Code: PMCHKO00001059
Batch Comment: Posting Date: 1/29/2025
Checkbook: UB-CKG
*Voided Checks
Check # Date Payment Number Vendor ID Check Name Amount
0059327 1/29/2025 033262 ATOOL A Tool Shed $321.51
0059328 1/29/2025 033263 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc $988.00
0059329 1/29/2025 (033264 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation $13,542.70
0059330 1/29/2025 033265 CINTA Cintas Corporation $469.38
0059331  1/29/2025 033266 CMANA CM Analytical Inc $5,260.00
0059332 1/29/2025 033267 DAHL DAHL Consultants $3,360.00
0059333  1/29/2025 033268 DOKKE Dokken Engineering $460.00
0059334  1/29/2025 033269 DONCH Don Chapin Company Inc $345.86
0059335 1/29/2025 033270 EBCO EBCO Pest Control $66.00
0059336  1/29/2025 033271 EDGES Edges Electrical Group $3,813.70
0059337 1/29/2025 033272 FASTE Fastenal Company - $499.10
0059338 1/29/2025 033273 FORDE Ford Equipment Repair Co. $800.00
0059339 1/29/2025 033274 GOLDEN Golden State Portables $900.00
0059340 1/29/2025 033275 GROSS Grossmayer & Associates $942.50
0059341 1/29/2025 033276 HDRENG HDR Engineering Inc $316,170.20
0059342  1/29/2025 033277 JOHNS Johnson Lumber Company $49.87
0059343 1/29/2025 033278 JOHNSM John Smith Landfill $24.32
0059344  1/29/2025 033279 KENNE Kennedy/Jenks Consultants inc. $729.49
0059345 1/29/2025 033280 NEWSV New SV Media Inc $93.20
0059346  1/29/2025 033281 PALAC Palace Business Solutions $478.13
0059347 1/29/2025 033282 RAFTE Raftelis $1,696.25
0059348 1/29/2025 033283 RESER Reserve Account $1,000.00
0059349 1/29/2025 033284 SBENG San Benito Engineering $12,700.00
0059350 1/29/2025 033285 SPEEDEE SpeeDee Oil Change and Tune Up $109.30
0059351 1/29/2025 033286 SPURZ Spurzem & Liem LLP $1,135.00
0059352 1/29/2025 (33287 SSCWD-TP Sunnyslope County Water District $281,150.85
0059353 1/29/2025 033288 TURBO Turbo Time Welding $750.00
0059354  1/29/2025 033289 USBNK-CC US Bank Corporation $10,077.39
0059355 1/29/2025 033290 WEIST Weist Law LLP $525.00
0059356 1/29/2025 033291 WRIWE Wright Bros Welding $3,122.66
Total Checks: 30 Checks Total: $661,580.41




System: 1/22/2025 9:53:3 San Benito County Water District Page: 2
User Date: 112212025 COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER UseriD:  Leilani

* Voided Checks

Check# Date Payment Number Vendor ID Check Name Amount

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN BENITO

I DO HEREBY CERTIFY, UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY AT HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THIS 29TH DAY OF JANUARY 2025 THAT THE FOREGOING DEMANDS ENUMERATED HAVE
BEEN AUDITED; THAT THE SAME ARE ACCURATE AND JUST CLAIMS AGAINST THE DISTRICT;

AND THAT THERE ARE FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PAYMENT.

= D\ L

Prepared by: Assistant General Manager Submitted by: General Manager

APPROVED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON:

Date

President



San Benito County Water District
Payment Fund Responsibility

112212025

Page 1 of 11
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033262 1/22/2025 $321.51 ATOOL A Tool Shed
Voucher: 051560 Invoice:  1727473-7 Date: 1/9/2025 Maintenance Equipment Rental  Doc Amt: $321.51
Allocations: $321.51 600-6450-0920-542 Tool & Equipment Rental-Subsystem Breaks
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $321.51
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033263 1/22/2025 $988.00 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc
Voucher: 051561 Invoice: 54211 Date: 1/1/2025 On-Screen Ad Doc Amt: $988.00
Allocations: $438.00 803-6865-0000-562 Adbvertising/Public Info (PI)
Allocations: $550.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$988.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033264 172212025 $13,542.70 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation
Voucher: 051562 Invoice: 220000093544 Date: 12/10/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $31.55
Allocations: $31.55 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 051563 Invoice: 220000093670 Date: 12/11/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt:  $1,804.08
Allocations: $1,804.08 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 051564 Invoice: 220000094359 Date: 12/20/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt:  $4,368.78
Allocations: $4,368.78 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 051565 Invoice: INV-24732 Date: 12/11/2024 Maintenance Supplies DocAmt:  $6,982.32
Allocations: $6,982.32  600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
- Voucher: 051612 Invoice: 220000095925 Date: 1/15/2025 District Supplies Doc Amt: $304.74
Allocations: $304.74 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 051613 Invoice: 220000095977 Date: 1/15/2025 District Supplies Doc Amt: $51.23
Allocations: $51.23 600-6320-0000-342 Supplies-TM

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $13,542.70

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00



Page 20f 11

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID VYendor Name
033265 1/22/2025 $469.38 CINTA Cintas Corporation
Voucher: 051566 Invoice: 4216355780 Date: 12/31/2024 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $156.46
Allocations: $15.65 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
/_\llocations: $7.82 300-6275-0000-563-06 ~ CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $132.99 600-6275-0000-363-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 051598 Invoice: 4217762020 Date: 1/14/2025 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $156.46
Allocations: $15.65 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $7.82 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $132.99 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 051624 Invoice: 4218508300 Date: 172172025 Weekly Service Doc Amt; $156.46
Allocations: $15.65 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $7.82 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $132.99 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $46.94 Fund 300: $23.47 Fund 600; $398.97
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033266 1/22/2025 $5,260.00 CMANA CM Analytical Inc
‘Voucher: 051599 Invoice: 83780 Date: 12/31/2024 Water Quality Testing Doc Amt:  $5,260.00
Allocations: $1,260.00 600-6270-0135-511 CS Ops-Water Quality Grwtr-SSO
Allocations: $140.00 300-6270-0135-511 CS-Ops-Water Quality Groundwater-SSO
Allocations: $1,040.00 600-6270-0000-541 CS-Operations-TO
Allocations: $2,820.00 700-6270-0135-511 CS-Ops-Water Quality Groundwater-SSO
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $140.00 Fund 600: $2,300.00
Fund 700: $2,820.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033267 1/22/2025 §3,360.00 DAHL DAHL Consultants
Voucher: 051585 Invoice: 1476 Date: 1/10/2025 Project Management for ADRoP DocAmt:  $3,360.00
Allocations: $3,360.00 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $3,360.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033268 1/22/2025 §460.00 DOKKE Dokken Engineering
Voucher: 051616 Invoice: 48021 Date: 1/8/2025 Engineering Services Doc Amt: $460.00

Allocations: $460.00 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP



Payment Responsibilities:

Page 3 of 11

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $460.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033269 1/22/2025 $345.86 DONCH Don Chapin Company Inc
Voucher: 051567 Invoice: 191088 Date: 12/3/2024 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $345.86
Allocations: $345.86 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Payment Responsibilities: '
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $345.86
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033270 1/22/2025 $66.00 EBCO EBCO Pest Control
Voucher: 051568 Invoice: 22860 Date: 1/1/2025 Monthly Pest Control Doc Amt: $66.00
Allocations: $6.60 100-6275-0000-363-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $3.30 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $56.10 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $6.60 Fund 300: $3.30 Fund 600: $56.10
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033271 1/22/2025 $3,813.70 EDGES Edges Electrical Group
Voucher: 051600 Invoice: S6319019.001 Date: 1/10/2025 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt:  $6,217.78
Allocations: $6,217.78 600-6321-0000-522 Supplies - Structure Equipment PM
Voucher: 051601 Invoice:  §6292302.002 Date: 12/27/2024 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt:  -$2,404.08
Allocations: -$2,404.08 600-6321-0000-522 Supplies - Structure Equipment PM
Payment Respousibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $3,813.70
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033272 1/22/2025 $499.10 FASTE Fastenal Company
Voucher: 051610 Invoice: CAHOS67707 Date: 1/2/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $499.10
Allocations: $499.10 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $499.10
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033273 1/22/2025 $800.00 FORDE Ford Equipment Repair Co.
Voucher: 051608 Invoice: 4116 Date: 1/6/2025 Maintenance-Heavy Equipment  Doc Amt: $800.00

Allocations: $800.00 600-6482-0000-562 Equipment Maintenance-Heavy



Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00

Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 803:$0.00

Fund 600: $800.00

Page 4 of 11

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00

Fund 100: $94.25

Fund 300: $47.13

Fund 600: $801.13

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033274 1/22/2025 $900.00 GOLDEN Golden State Portables
Voucher: 051586 Invoice: 56696 Date: 1/1/2025 Portable Toilet Rental Doc Amt: $450.00
Allocations: $450.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM '
Voucher: 051587 Invoice: 56697 Date: 1/1/2025 Portable Toilet Rental Doc Amt: $450.00
Allocations: $450.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $900.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Yendor ID Vendor Name
033275 1/22/2025 $942,50 GROSS Grossmayer & Associates
Voucher: 051602 Invoice: I1VC3825 Date: 1/9/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt: $942.50
Allocations: $94.25 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/853)
Allocations: 347.13 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $801.13 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID VYeador Name
033276 1/22/2025 $316,170.20 HDRENG HDR Engineering Inc
Voucher: 051603 Invoice: 1200682574 Date: 12/26/2024 Engineering Services Doc Amt: $316,170.20
Allocations: $316,170.20 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00

Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 600: $316,170.20

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033277 1/22/2025 $49.87 JOHNS Johason Lumber Company
Voucher; 051570 Invoice: 280700 Date: 1/8/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: 33275
Allocations: $32.75 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-T™M
Voucher: 051571 Invoice: 280627 Date: 1/6/2025  District Supplies Doc Amt: $14.40
Allocations: $12.24 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.72 300-6835-0000-562-06.  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.44 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Voucher: 051572 Invoice: 280658 Date: 1/6/2025  District Supplies Doc Amt: 27n
Allocations: $2.31 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA



Allocations: $0.14 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.27 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Page 5 of 11

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $1.71 Fund 300: $0.86 Fund 600: $47.30
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total ~ Vendor ID Vendor Name
033278 1/22/2025 $24.32 JOHNSM John Smith Landfill
Voucher: 051573 Invoice: 01-01079281 " Date: 1/9/2025 Dump Fee Doc Amt: $24.32
Allocations: $24.32 600-6860-0000-542 Utilities-Disposal fees
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $24.32
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033279 1/22/2025 §729.49 KENNE Kennedy/Jenks Consultants Inc.
Voucher: 051615 Invoice: 177214 Date: 1/14/2025 Engineering Services Doc Amt: $729.49
Allocations: $729.49 600-1351-C129-151 Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5 M)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 - Fund 600: $729.49
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033280 1/22/2025 §93.20 NEWSY New SV Media, Inc
Voucher: 051604 Invoice: 132143 Date: 1/2/2025  1/3/25 Public Notice Doc Amt: $93.20
Allocations: $93.20 600-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $93.20
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total VYendor ID Vendor Name
033281 1/22/2025 $478.13 PALAC Palace Business Selutions
Voucher: 051574 Invoice: 2399635-0 Date: 1/8/2025  Office Supplies Doc Amt: $71.55
Allocations: $60.82 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $3.58 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $7.16 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Voucher: 051575 Invoice: 2400311-0 Date: 1/10/2025 Office Supplies Doc Amt: $335.03
Allocations: $284.78 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $16.75 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $33.50 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Voucher: 051576 Invoice: . 2399635-1 Date: 1/10/2025 Office Supplies Doc Amt: 37155
Allocations: $60.82 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Allocations: $3.58 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA



Page 6 of 11

Allocations: $7.16 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $47.81 Fund 300: $23.91 Fund 600: $406.41
Fund 700: 30.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033282 1/22/2025 $1,696.25 RAFTE Raftelis
Voucher: 051589 Invoice: 37345 Date: 1/13/2025 Consulting Services DocAmt:  $1,696.25
Allocations: $1,696.25 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $1,696.25
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033283 1/22/2025 $1,000.00 RESER Reserve Account
Voucher: 051588 Invoice: 011325 Date: 1/13/2025 Postage On Account DocAmt:  $1,000.00
Allocations: $970.00 600-6825-0000-562-06  Postage 2/1/97
Allocations: $20.00 100-6825-0000-562-06  Postage 2/1/97
Allocations: $10.00 300-6825-0000-562-06  Postage 2/1/97

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $20.00 Fund 300: $10.00 Fund 600: £970.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Veador Name
033284 1/22/2025 $12,700.00 SBENG San Benito Engineering
Voucher: 051611 Invoice: 7816 Date: 12/12/2024 Engineering Services Doc Amt:  $12,700.00
Allocations: $12,700.00 300-6220-0000-511 CS-Engineering-SS0

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $12,700.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033285 1/22/2025 $109.30 SPEEDEE SpeeDee Oil Change and Tune Up
Voucher: 051577 Invoice: 350130 Date: 1/7/2025  Vehicle Maintenance #19 Doc Amt: $109.30
Allocations: $109.30 600-6460-0000-562 Vehicle Maintenance-GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $109.30
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033286 1/22/2025 $1,135.00 SPURZ Spurzem & Liem LLP
Voucher: 051605 Invoice: 63581 Date: 1/8/2025 Legal Services DocAmt:  $1,135.00
Allocations: $99.50 100-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85

Allocations: $49.75 300-6210-0000-363-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85



Page 70of 11

Allocations: $845.75 600-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85

Allocations: $140.00 600-6210-0000-563 CS-Legal-GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $99.50 Fund 300: $49.75 Fund 600: $985.75
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033287 1/22/2025 $281,150.85 SSCWD-TP  Sunnyslope County Water District
Voucher: 051596 Invoice: INV00265 Date: 12/31/2024 Plant Operations- West Hills Doc Amt: $227,217.61
Allocations: $227,217.61 600-6270-0603-531 CS Operations - West Hills WTP
Voucher: 051597 Invoice: INV00266 Date: 12/31/2024 Plant Operations- Lessalt DocAmt:  $53,933.24
Allocations: $53,933.24 600-6270-0602-531 CS Operations - Lessalt WTP

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: 30.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $281,150.85
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:5$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033288 1/22/2025 $750.00 TURBO Turbo Time Welding
Voucher: 051609 Invoice: 46 Date: 1/15/2025 Welding Services Doc Amt: $750.00
Allocations: $750.00 600-6275-0920-542 CS Maintenance TDM-Subsystem Breaks

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $750.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033289 1/22/2025 $16,077.39 USBNK-CC  U.S. Bank Corporation
Voucher: 051578 Invoice: 122324MC Date: 12/23/2024 Monthly Statement DocAmt:  $7,505.80
Allocations: $365.86 600-6197-0000-565 Personal Equipment/Uniform
Allocations: $376.45 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Allocations: $234.38 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Allocations: $558.02 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Allocations: $181.07 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Allocations: $121.16 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM . -
Allocations: $54.55 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Allocations: $151.23 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-T™M
Allocations: $196.25 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Allocations: $135.29 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-T™M

Allocations: $9.54 300-6320-0000-562-06  Suppties-GA 10/5/85



Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:

Allocations:

Allocations:

Voucher: 051579

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Aliocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Invoice:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

$162.16
$19.08

$4,705.18
$174.99

$60.59

122324BM
$3.86
$0.45
$0.23

$37.13
$4.37
$2.18

$25.97
$1.53
$3.06

$72.34
$8.51
$4.26

51835
31.08
$2.16

$14.36
$244.11
$28.72

$14.36
$244.11
$28.72

$285.72

$26.34
$3.10
$1.55

$25.96
$3.05
$1.53

$23.50
51175
$199.75

$32.49
$3.82
$1.91

$6.78
$0.80
$0.40

600-6320-0000-562-06

Supplies-GA 10/5/85

100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-T™M

Date: 12/23/2024 Monthly Statement

600-6840-0000-562-06
100-6840-0000-562-06
300-6840-0000-562-06

600-6845-0000-562-06
100-6845-0000-562-06
300-6845-0000-562-06

600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06

600-6845-0000-562-06
100-6845-0000-562-06
300-6845-0000-562-06

600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06

300-6850-0000-562-06
600-6850-0000-562-06
100-6850-0000-562-06

300-6850-0000-562-06
600-6850-0000-562-06
100-6850-0000-562-06

700-6240-0160-511

600-6845-0000-562-06
100-6845-0000-362-06
300-6845-0000-562-06

600-6845-0000-562-06
100-6845-0000-562-06
300-6845-0000-562-06

100-6820-0000-562-06
300-6820-0000-562-06
600-6820-0000-562-06

600-6845-0000-562-06
100-6845-0000-362-06
300-6845-0000-562-06

600-6845-0000-562-06
100-6845-0000-562-06
300-6845-0000-562-06

Communication GA 10/5/85
Communication GA 10/5/85
Communication GA 10/5/85

General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85

Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85

CS-Annual Grwtr Report-SSO

General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85

General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85

Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Dues and Fees 10/5/85

General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85

General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85

Doc Amt:

Page 8 of 11

$2,631.60



Voucher:

Voucher:

Voucher:

051580

051581

051583

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations;
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Invoice:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Invoice:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Invoice:
Allocations:

$13.80
$0.81
$1.62
$86.58
$100.91
511.87
$5.94
$85.75
$42.88
$728.90
$1.00
$0.50
$8.49
$1.05
$0.53
$8.96
$3.14
$1.57
$26.72
$18.26
$1.07
$2.15
$90.80
122324JAC
$9.28
$73.18
$43.69
$20.44
$6.00
$65.55
122324D]
$1,299.00
$48.45
$5.70
$2.85
$17.14
$175.50

CM122324BIM
-$183.70

600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06
803-6320-0000-562

600-6840-0000-562-06
100-6840-0000-562-06
300-6840-0000-562-06
100-6440-0000-562-06
300-6440-0000-562-06
600-6440-0000-562-06
100-6260-0000-563-06
300-6260-0000-563-06
600-6260-0000-563-06
100-6260-0000-563-06
300-6260-0000-563-06
600-6260-0000-563-06
100-6260-0000-563-06
300-6260-0000-563-06
600-6260-0000-563-06
600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06
600-6850-0000-562

Date:
803-6865-0000-562
803-6865-0000-562
600-6835-0000-562
600-6835-0000-562
600-6835-0000-562
600-6835-0000-562
Date:

600-6820-0000-562
600-6196-0000-565-06
100-6196-0000-565-06
300-6196-0000-565-06
600-6850-0000-562

600-6850-0000-562

Date:
300-6850-0000-562-06

12/23/2024 Monthly Statement

12/23/2024 Monthly Statement

12/23/2024 Monthly Statement

Page 9 of 11

Office Supplies 10/5/85-GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Supplies (WC)

Communication GA 10/5/85
Communication GA 10/5/85
Communication GA 10/5/85

Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85
Office Furn/Equipment Purchase 10/5/85

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
CS-Computer (10/5/85)
CS-Computer (10/5/85)

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
CS-Computer (10/5/85)
CS-Computer (10/5/85)
CS-Computer (10/5/85)
CS-Computer (10/5/85)
CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Travel and Mileage

Doc Amt: $218.14

Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Advertising/Public Info (P)
Office Supplies
Office Supplies
Office Supplies

Office Supplies

DocAmt:  $1,548.64

Dues and Fee

Physical Exams/Drug Tsting 10/5/85
Physical Exams/Drug Tsting 10/5/85
Physical Exams/Drug Tsting 10/5/85

Travel and Mileage

Travel and Mileage

Doc Amt:  -$3,674.07

Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85



Page 10of 11

Allocations: -$3,122.96 600-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: -$367.41 100-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 051584 Invoice: CMI122324MC Date: 12/23/2024 Monthly Statement Doc Amt: -$29.36
Allocations: -$1.47 300-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: -524.96 600-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: -$2.94 100-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 051626 Invoice: 122324BIM Date: 12/23/2024 Monthly Statement DocAmt:  $1,876.64
Allocations; $16.00 100-6820-0000-562-06  Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Allocations: $8.00 300-6820-0000-562-06  Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Allocations: $136.00 600-6820-0000-562-06  Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Allocations: $26.79 300-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $455.45 600-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $53.58 100-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Aliocations: $6.00 300-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $102.00 600-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $12.00 100-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $26.79 300-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $455.45 600-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $53.58 100-6850-0000-562-06  Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $52.50 100-6852-0000-562 Conferences
Allocations: $26.25 300-6852-0000-562 Conferences
Allocations: $446.25 600-6852-0000-562 Conferences
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $58.95 Fund 300: $29.47 Fund 600: $9,534.21
Fund 700: $285.72 Fund 803:$169.04
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033290 1/22/2025 $525.00 WEIST Weist Law LLP
Voucher: 051590 Invoice: 2025-M104 Date: 1/13/2025 CDIAC Annual Debt Report Doc Amt: $525.00
Allocations: $525.00 600-6820-0000-562 Dues and Fee
Payment Responsibilities: _
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $525.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033291 1/22/2025 $3,122.66 WRIWE Wright Bros Welding
Voucher: 051606 Invoice: 57111 Date: 12/9/2024 Welding Services ’ DocAmt:  $3,122.66

Allocations: $3,122.66 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM



Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00

Fund 600: §$3,122.66

Report Totals, Payment Fund Responsiblities

Fund 000: 50.00 Fund 100: $375.76 Fund 300: $13,027.88

Fund 700:53,105.72 Fund 803:81,157.04

Fund 100 = District Administration
Fund 300 = Zone 3

Fund 600 = Zone 6

Fund 700 = Zone GSA

Fund 803 = Zone WRA

37576+
15202788+
L2016 -Uhx
3210572+
12157 -CL~
SEETEE0 b T x

Fund 600: $643,914.01

Page H of 11



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: 5
Meeting Date: January 29, 2025
Submitted By: Leilani Vidal

Presented By: Dana Jacobson

Agenda Title: Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the January 2024 Board Meeting

Detailed Description: This is a notification that the checks & wire transfers listed below were
issued outside the normal claims process.

Wire Transfers

Webster Bank Wire 1 §33,390.20 | CAIPERS UAL Bond (Interest | 1 /9655
Transfer Only)
USBR (pay.gov) | "' 12059548 | Water Payment 01/08/25
) Transfer o -
~ Financial Impact: X Yes No
Funding Source/ Recap:

Fiscal Year Budget as approved
Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Copy of Wire Transfer Request

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action
Resolution No._ Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




| 87°S65'67  $ |e301 aod'Aed Atieq
Junows 1uawAod |30
SLY88'T S 20-£15-0000-1525-009 4v 575 @8esn 2ag S2L010 szoz/L/t ~Tvruasn)
uotiewe|dsy 40 neaing
058796  $ £0-£15-0000-1525-009 4¥ 525 98esn 33Q S7£010 szoz/L/t (vi-ugsn)
uofleWwe|IvY J0 neasng
SLT00YT S L0-€T5-0000-0525-009 4v GZ§ @3esn 53Q S2L0T0 se0T/L/T (v1-y8sn)
uolnewepsy Jo neaing
009818 $ £0-€15-0000-vTT5-009 dv 6¢5T Aedeud sepy/agesn 23g STL0T0 sz0T/L/t {(v1-ugsn)
uopeWEIRY JO neaung
(o8'980'12) $ £0-€15-0000-0T15-009 4V (z56) Aeda.d qa4/aZesn oN S7L010 Se0z/L/t (¥1-ugsn)
uopewe|Isy jo neaing
ZEV8Y'TT  $ L0-€15-0000-%115-009 4v 868 Aedaud qaj/aBesn noN 52£010 ST0Z/L/T {(v1-yasn)
UonEBWE|IBY JO Neaing
locet6'y)  $ L0-€15-0000-0T15-009 dv {z¢z) Aedaud uer/eBesn 100 SZLOTO szoe/L/t (vi-¥asn)
uolBWRSY JO NeaINg
755859 $ £0-€15-0000-7115-009 dv £97 Aedaid uer/a8esn 100 S7£010 seoz/Lft (v1-uasn)
uoljewe|day Jo neaing
SYz8eE’'s S L£0-€15-0000-0715-009 4V €z Aedaud dag/adesn dag SZLOTO SZ0Z/L/T (v1-y8sn)
uotiewe(day jo neaung
(zerogE'8E) ¢ L0-€15-0000-7115-009 4y {€€5T) Aedaud sag/a8esn dag S2L010 seoz/Lft (v1-y8sn)
uoljewe(day Jo neaung
SY'89s°05 £0-€TS-0000-0TTS-009 4v €877 Aedaud AoN/a3esn Sny SZLOTO szoz/Lft (v1-uasn)
. uofjewe|ay o neaing
{vg'seL'es) $ £0-€T5-0000-¥T15-009 4¥ (9v1z) Aedasd ron / 98esn dny S2L010 Sz0z/L/T {v1-ugsn)
' uolewe(day Jo neaing
junowy “OU JUNO22Y 19 uonduosaq *0U 3210AU] paJedasd 10pUBA
alep deday uawied

520Z/6/T ajep aseajpy

ST0Z/8/1

pajsanbas yuswAed Ao Aeg




131599 SZ-€-T GZ-UZAd 199YSHIOM 15oNbaY Jojsues | SIM\SIDJSURS L 3IM\SIENT-s0WBW\Idaq adueul\Bununoddy\:s

/w: ~£ N\Vw " \9\ \\;N :Aq aujjuo asea|al Joj pancaddy

:Ag Anua suyuQ

| ozoee’ee  § Ie101 Aanoe anm Ajteg

,&.mwﬁcm $ No-mmm-ooco-mmm_w-&u _; (Ajuo 1s3193u1) ?om o Saade vZ8Tel :‘ «NON\WW\NH , Jueg _8325
99'vSL'T  § £0-765-0000-£056-00€ {Ajuo 359123U1) PUOg VN SYIdIED ¥Z81ZT ¥Z0T/81/71T jueg JaIsgam
98 08T S £0-265-0000-£056-00T {AJuC 352133U1) PUOE YN S¥3dIED vZsTeT v20Z/81/21 Jueg 1535qoM

unowy "0U3UN0J2Y 19 uonduasag “0U 9210AU| a1e@ 9710AU] Jopuap

s§Z0zZ/9/1 Ilep asea|ay |szoz/9/x pajsanbay Jajsuell aim







BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: January 22, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Investment Committee (Sonny Flores/Doug Williams)

SUBJECT: Review of Quarterly Investment Report-Period ending
December 31, 2024

1. Quarterly Investment Report
a. Review of Investment Report

The Investment Committee reviewed the investment instruments making up the

District’s portfolio and the District’s investment performance for the quarter
ending December 31, 2024.

The committee has determined that the investments are being managed in
compliance with the District’s Board Investment Policy.

The committee has reviewed the projected cash requirements and has
determined that the District has sufficient cash reserves available to meet its
cash demands for the next six months and has sufficient funds in a second

liquid account (in addition to LAIF) to cover at least two months of current
District Expenses.

oo [l

Director Sonny Flores Director Do{lg Williams




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

QUARTER ENDING
DECEMBER 31, 2024
Page .
no(s). Title Source
I Quarterly Investment Report Recap District Staff
2 Summary of Cash and Investments District Staff
3 PMIA / LAIF Performance Report California State Treasurer’s Office
4 Summary of CalPERS CERBT Trust (OPEB) District Staff
5 Investment Summary by Maturity Date District Staff
6-17 Investment Statement U.S. Bancorp Advisors (Investments)

~ January 10, 2025

Submitted by:  Kelley Urbina, Accountant
Reviewed by:  Brett Miller, Assistant General Manager




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

QUARTER ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

Investment activity:

¢ The Local Agency Investment Fund’s interest rate decreased from 4.575% at September
30, 2024 to 4.434% at December 31, 2024. The balance reflects interest earned for the
prior quarter of $330,605 and the current quarter net operating activity.

» The California Employers’ Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT) statement for the period
October through December was not available as of this report date. The balance at

September 30, 2024 was $1,132,208.

s The U.S. Bancorp Advisors account statement is attached and reflects accrued interest
and gain or loss. The portfolio value at December 31, 2024 was $56,633,077.50.

Liquidity Requirements:

There are adequate liquid reserves available in the LAIF account to fund six months of operating
expenditures ($5.0 million) as required in the Investment Policy, Section V., 2. In addition, the
funds held in Heritage Bank are sufficient to cover at least two months of District expenses ($1.7
million) which meets the Investment Policy requirements per Section IV, 1. b.

P.1



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024

CASH SUMMARY FOR ALL DISTRICT HELD ACCOUNTS (By Institution)

UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED
U.S. Bancorp LAIF Restricted U.S. Bancorp | Total Cashand
Date US Bank LAIF Heritage Bank * Advisors Reserve Advisors Investmenls

9/30/2024] 2,170,769 21,376,318 2,131,763 37,078,059 325,000 28,778,301 91,860,209

12/31/2024] 9,119,320 30,246,923 2,136,294 27,854,777 325,000 28,778,301 98,460,614

NetChange | $ 6,948,551 $ 8,870,605 | $ 4531 8 (9,223,282)| $ - |8 - |8 6,600405

* Heritage Bank: November and December 2024 statements were unavailable. Balance shown is as of 10/31/24.
O Heritage 2.17%
O LAIF 31.05%
@ US Bancorp Advisors
57.52%
8 US Bank 9.26%
Portfolio Distribution
CASH SUMMARY BY ZONE OF BENEFIT X )
Date Zone 1 Zone 3 Zone 6 Sustainability |(Fiduciary Funds)| Investments

9/30/2024|End of quarter (as reported) 2,472,351 5,879,709 81,713,338 1,075,330 719,481 91,860,209
9/30/2024 |Reclass by zone 633 (35) (598) - - 91,860,209
12/31/2024|End of quarter 2,647,253 6,195,936 87,495,399 1,419,394 702,633 98,460,614
Net Change $ 174,269 | $ 316,262 | § 5,782,659 | $ 344,064 | $ (16,848)| 6,600,405

% of total cash (by Zone) 2.69% 6.29% 88.86% 1.44% 0.11%

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF)
Activity for quarter

Date Zone 1 Zone 3 Zone 6 Sustainability _|(Fiduciary Funds)| Overall Balance
9/30/2024|Balance forward: $ 2412914 | % 5,860,425 | $ 12,196,503 702,704 5287712 |$ 21,701,318
9/30/2024 |Reclass by zone $ 21,701,318
10/15/2024|Quarterly Interest 23,028 56,263 239,557 6,711 5046 | $ 22,031,923
10/17/2024 | Transfer in (out) - (20,000) 20,000 - - |$ 22,031,923
10/31/2024 | Transfer in (out) (90,000) 90,000 - |$ 22,031,923
11/30/2024 | Transfer in (out) - 2,040,000 - - |$ 24,071,923
12/4/2024 | Transfer in (out) - 4,000,000 - - |$ 28,071,923
12/19/2024 | Transfer in (out) - 2,500,000 - - |$ 30,571,923
BALANCE BY ZONE $ 2435942 | $ 5,806,688 | $ 21,086,060 | $ 709,416 | § 533818 | $ 30,571,923

P.2



% PMIA/LAIF Performance Report

o as of 01/08/25
Quarterly Performance PMIA Average Monthly
Quarter Ended 09/30/24 Effective Yields?

LAIF Apportionment Rate®:  4.71
LAIF Earnings Ratio®:  0.00012912073474208
LAIF Administrative Cost™’: ~ 0.26
LAIF Fair Value Factor”;  1.002061084
PMIA Daily™:  4.58
PMIA Quarter to Date®;  4.56
PMIA Average Life™: 231

December 4.434
November 4.477
October 4.518
September  4.575
August 4.579
July 4.516

Pooled Money Investment Account -
Monthly Portfolio Composition )

11/30/24
$146.8 billion
Corporate
Commercial Bonds
Paper 0.61%
Time X
Deposits

3.51%

Certificates of
Deposit/8ank Notes
8.96%

Agencies
24.20%

| Treasuries
55.96%

Chart does not include $1,290,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Daily rates are now available here. View PMIA Daily Rates

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supple

[ Pension Pay p to Government Code 20825

(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a).

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year.

Source:
(W state of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2 State of California, Office of the Controller

P.3



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Summary
CALPERS California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT)
for Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)
as of December 31, 2024

N,

10/1/2020 $

1172072020 $ 76,889 $ 76,889
12/16/2020 $ 76,889 $ 153,778
12/31/2020 $ 3691 | $ 157,469
172712021 $ 76,889 $ 234,358
2/24/2021 $ 76,889 $ 311,247
3/31/2021 $ 76,889 $ 388,136
373172021 $ 5164 | $ 393,301
6/7/2021 $ 76,889 $ 470,190
6/8/2021 $ 76,889 $ 547,079
6/30/2021 $ 23,558 | $ 570,636
712072021 $ 76,889 $ 647,525
712172021 $ 76,889 $ 724,414
812612021 $ 76,889 $ 801,303
9/30/2021 $ 76,889 $ 878,192
973072021 $ (7.043)] $ 871,149
10/29/2021 $ 76,889 K 948,038
1172972021 $ 76,889 $ 1,024,927
12/31/2021 : $ 45,139 | $ 1,070,066
3/31/2022 $ (50,287)| $ 1,019,779
6/30/2022 $ (132,418)[ $ 887,360
9/30/2022 $ 64,577) $ 822,783
12/31/2022 $ 56,200 | $ 878,992
3/31/2023 $ 41,224 | $ 920,216
6/30/2023 $ 23,697 | $ 943,914
9/30/2023 $ (36,934) $ 906,980
12/31/2023 $ 96,701 | $ 1,003,681
3/31/2024 $ 35,893 | $ 1,039,574
6/30/2024 $ 7,505 | $ 1,047,079
9/30/2024 $ 85,129 | $ 1,132,208
1273112024 (*)

(* ) End of quarter statement was not available from CERBT at time of this investment report. investment
gain or (loss) for the current quarter will be reported in the following quarter's investment report.

P.4



Investment Summary
Schedule by Maturity Date

Estimated Current
Coupon | MarketValue as of

Description Symbol / Cusip Maturity Rate 1231124
US Treasury AK-2025 91282CDZ1 2/15/2025 | 1.50000% | $ 3,338,275.00
US Treasury Zero Coupon 912797KJ5 3/20/2025 | 0.00000% | $ 4,955,350.00
US Treasury AN-2025 91282CEQO 5/15/2025 | 2.75000% | $ 1,989,000.00
US Treasury AD-2025 91282CAM3 9/30/2025 | 0.25000% | $ 3,252,615.50
US Treasury V-2026 91282CBQ3 2/28/2026 | 0.50000% | $ 3,209,534.50
US Treasury AP-2026 91282CHH7 6/15/2026 |4.12500% | $ 4,991,400.00
US Treasury N-2026 912828Y95 7/31/2026 | 1.87500% | $ 3,229,902.50
US Treasury AJ-2027 91282CJT9 1/1512027 | 4.00000% | $ 4,975,400.00
Federal Home Loan CD-9027 3130ARUL3 5/18/2027 | 4.00000% | $ 2,252,850.00
US Treasury AH-2028 91282CJR3 12/31/2028 | 3.75000% | $ 24,438,750.00

Total $ 56,633,077.50

Recent Redemptions

Coupon
Description Symbol / Cusip Maturity Rate | AmountRedeemed
US Treasury BL-2024 91282CFX4 11/30/2024 | 4.50000% | $ 4,000,000.00
US Treasury Zerc Coupon 912797LQ8 12/19/2024 | 0.00000% | $ 2,500,000.00

Total $ 6,500,000.00

Source: US Bancorp Advisors Investment Statement




Zi jo | ebed S
OdIS "GSAN
J3qUIsIAL '0)TT S901AI5G [RISUBULY [BUOHEN (ilA PILLIED JUNOOOY
IS
SHy1 fo pua a1 Jo $3101100.] SNQIUDSISIY Ul puncf aq upd uonvwofur 0110faog dN0L O amp 4 K] 38Uy

VI/ZL  VT60  VZ/90 VT/EO EL/TL  €U/60 E2/90 ST/E0  TT/TL  TL/60  TTI0
\../_./.r . Lsz°se

* L0672

\ /.../L-A/._\\‘.IIIA_.\«. 155°08

*, \ 107°85

/\ 958'59

suojjpu g

OIM04LH0d "HNOA 40 JNTTVYA NI 3DNVYHO

1£215202 98949 TIHEGIMZOYGID” NI

SHOSIAQY LHOINVE '8N

1LL8 8SE 008 ‘TeuoheN

1LL8 85¢ 008 =1wiS-u] 0s¢€ #4d
1 1nfecnt L9ET 9S¢ £1T *(eo0] Towkary] e
0S°220°€€9°95$ OIT041d0d ¥NOA 40 INTVATVLIOL ISJUN0IE IN0A Inoqe suoysanb 104  LSITVIOAIS SATVS TYNOLLALILSNI
T T
05°021°262°¢9% OI04180d ¥NOA 40 INTVA ONINNIOZE

20EET0-g8M “1aquinN Junodoy
uonesodiod - LOIMLSIA HILYM ALNNOD OLINIE NVS

$20Z ‘1€ ¥3BWI O30 01 ¥20Z ‘L YIGWIDIA AOId FHL YOS INAWILYLS

siosiapy diooueg s'n o

yuswebeue Yyyeapm Bl

€¢0S6 V2 ¥31S ITT0H
Qd d713 IdSNVYW o€
L0 RILS 1@ d31VM ALNNOD OL IN3E NVS

0011-1006 VO ‘STTIONV SOT

001£15 X0d Od

—  OT1'SYOSIAQY J90INVE 'S
ddqddd dTAMHIEdMZOEdED #ANY

P.6



L jo 7 abeq s

OdIS "HSAN
I2QUIDJA “D7TT SOIAIOG [E1OUBYL,] [BUOHBN YliM PALLIED JUROIDY

1€2ipzor gagad LHEEIMZOYEID” NIN

SHUOSIAQY JUOINVE 'S’

00'SLE'VLS 00°S2E'PLS (SSOT) NIVD WHIL LHOHS TVLOL
00°0% 00°0% SS07 UL} HOYS pamoj(esig
000% 00°0% SS07 Ula ) Yoys
00'6.e'vi$ 00'SLE'VLS ujeg uus] Youg
201403 porag s (ss07) NIve gazivay

0o quanbasqns ay; fo Lioniqa,f uj pajivu s YW AIG-660] W0 o

2]qJIvAD S] SpUpIAIp puv iSa.a1ul fo uoyDXD] U0 uONBULIGSill (DUl "a8uDYD 0] 123fgns 51 pup ‘pavda.d
Snat JUADIDIS 3Y) AT Y} 1D SN O IQUIIDAD UONUILIQII] HO Pasnq patgusa)ap SI SOOI AqDXT ]

SUOISIIAP JUaUSIAU] N\N«ME o1 4014d x&”«hﬁ%ﬂaxa LMSM ““M:WU “&Eu&mmwc\\uwn \MMWG MM““M \MMWML .HM .MM_M 18110285 1S 96°089'6898 JWOSNI TVLOL
~k§{b Q{tﬂ .EQ.:QQO\\Q moa N~\~ ut E-u\k\ 1l 3G AU 281D 1o o paisi) PO p. it " T " " T

spunf jormni pua-pasol) “patos0|Iv a.4p spunf (e W13 oy Sunaouos suoudumsse apout soy SN ‘suolsod 18l _.o.Nmm_ 2 95°089'689% 318YXVL VIOL

roys fo 1au aq dow pup spunf jongiu apraur dow 521032102 4a1io pub *awosuy paxyf ‘sannba 1of vonvIoyy 18°L10°288'L$ 95°089'689% 1sala sjqexe]

ROy “2MDA JuN0II (0101 0L fO SIasadas SSOID 19551 Yo0D 10Y) 2B0IN2ad DY) SMOYS UGHDIOY MN0IDY DF-01-1D3] poLe ua.Lny F1EVYXVYL

0§°2L0'e€9'05$ 05°021'262'€9$ % 0°00 ViOL HWODNI

06°2£0'€€9'05$ 05°0Z1'262'¢9% % 0001 ‘098 Aoueby / Anseaut "s'n

poLf 1uaLny poriad 1014d uaoag NV 11 AFUDYY) UO HONDWLIOfU} 220U 0] SIIOUIC0.] 11991 O1 43foY

%0°001 295 KousbBy 7 Kunsesa) “s'n LE'YYS L08'95S Isaiaju] pandasy yum anjep buipug

1899V LIS 1S8J8U| PaNIodY [B10],

05°220'€£9'05% 05 220'€£9'96$ (vznerzL 40 Sv) 3NIVA ONIGNT

06°0v8'6128$ (9g°gve'ogLy) anjeA ui abueyg

00°0% 00°0% sesuadxs pue 884 'SeXE |

18°LL0'28G LS '95°089'689% aIooU|

000% 00°0% suoyoy 8jesodio) R "osI

62°601'20L2L$ {00'528'191'18) S[EMEIDYHA pue SUORIPPY

05'GLL'62L'2vS 06°021°262'c9% ANTIVA ONINNIDZE

NOLLVIOTIV LNNODJV  ammg-ojunaf porad maemny INTVA LNNOJOJV NI AONVHO

S10SIApY duooueq ‘S'n e

yuswoabeuen Yyieap B

MITAIIA() JUNOIOY

Z0€EC0-daM J8quunp junoody
uopeiodioD - LDIYLSIA HILYM ALNNOD OLINIE NVS

¥Z0Z ‘L€ 49quwanag 0 $Z0Z ‘| 19qWIca(Q PoLa B} J0) JuBWle)S

P.7



zLjo ¢ abed

OdIS 'HSAN
IDQUIBI ‘07777 SIIALAG [UIOUBUL [EUOREN YAiA PALLIED JUN0IOY

001 1-p£9-008 18 SIIAIAG JUSHD VS 198100 aseald ‘bodal e jsanbax o3 a3 pinom
nok 31 *Aue 1 ‘s1aplo yons woy Sunnsal Suw UOHNIIXS Ioplo ‘aiduiexs 10j ‘suondusuen oy
Jo awp ay; pue “sanbai oy 03 1oud syiuow XIS 03 dn UCHINOIXS 10) PAINOI AIBM SISPIO B

YoTyMm O} SIOIU3D J93]IBTd S5 JO AIUSPY 3 UIBIqO 03 SONNO3S SN UT S13PI0 PaSaNp-uoy
uondo pue 32015 SN JO S[1RIop 159nbaI UBd SISWOISNY) UCHESHHON [BnuuY 909 S|y DIS

1€2120T 99696 TIHAIdIMZONEID ™ NIN

SUOSIAQY JHOONVE SN

wod “ueqsn@aoueljdwos ygS ] e {1ewd

Ag ¢ uredwos rswosno e Fuipredas souendiwo)) yim yeads 01 1sanbai pue 265/ -766-81S
18 °S°[] 9 3PISINO 10 ‘001 [-HEG-00S I8 "S') AU UIIM 331J-{[0F ST SI0IAIRG WAL

0 0} auoyd A9 *Z "001[-15006 VO ‘s9[eBuy 50 ‘001€16 Xog O'd Wweuntedaq soueljduio)
‘s10s1Apy diosueg “S'(] 38 [1BW A "] 1SN 19B1U0D UD NOK ‘9AlieIuasa1dal IO JUNOOOE SIOSIAPY
dosueq §'() MOA g4 sjurR(dwod 10 SWIP2U0I SW[qeId AUR DAY NOK J] —mrrmsmmmmmmmmmnasns
SAYS TVIONVNIL 'TVNOLLYN :01 2jqeded suonnqinuossiisodap 303y [jg Syew 3583]d

SV ANV S39VsSSa

siosiApy diooueg ‘g

uswabeuey Yyyeep Bl

1DULIOful a.00w 40f, siy fo puz ayt 1o uonvuiofiy
SISO 1507 puv $2104100,) 01 13f0.1 53] “sasodind Surioda.i xv) nol 1of diossasau Swwawnsnipy
110 193}fa4 jou Kow vonvnugfiy polad Suipjoy pup (ssop) utp3 pazipas 'sisuq 1509 Papinosd-SIN

vL8LLOYES 00°0% {SSOT) NIVD WHdL ONOT IVLoL
00°0% 00°0% S50} B BUOT PamoyiEsi
00°0% 00°0% sso wiay Buo
PL8LLOVES 00°0% uiesy uua] Buo
210-01-103] poad e panunnod (§50T) NIVO Q3ZITVIY

panuios \Kf@% AJD >O HHHSOOOAA\

C0ECC0-9gM :48quiny JUnoooy
uopesodiod - 1OI¥LSIA YILVM ALNNOD OLINTE NVS

Y202 L€ 13qwadaq 0} yzZ0Z ' doquisda( poliad ay) 1o} Juswalelg

P.8



ZL jo v abed S 1€215207 94698 @ TINHEEdMZOYEED” NIN
OdIS ‘HSAN )
JaqUIS]; ‘0777 SI9[AIAG [BIOUBULY [BUONEN] YIlm PALUIED JURCDDY SHOSIAQY JHOONVYE SN
D 72'899'¢5$ 3UI02U} JURODS|Q 19YJeW pazjjeauf;
529558218 a SL'8LL60T'ES sjseg IS0 paisnfpy
: 18'568 1500 Jun abessay
0£°08681% jsaualu] perudy
SZ/SLIZ0 ‘algehed isauaju] XN
§1934 '61 ONV NO
TWNNNY-INIS LWd NdO
eey S,AJOOW
HSYJ 310N SIN §Z0Z/SLIZ0
SL8LL'60C'ES 00°052°06$ 00°SLT'8EL'ES 69663 000'06E'E 12432816 %0000S™L GZOZ-HY ¥3$ SYIUL SILVLS G3LINA
sepndag Aouady 7 Ainsvady "§n
(sso7) uleo siseg 150D 3oy jenuuy anjep 1esen YeILEITL Auend adf} nodoy uonduasag
pazijeasun paisn{pyieublo pajewnsy waungy U0 821id disno/|oquwAs
palewyisy palewsy

“ysewapes pasaisibas e s1 @S, APOOW “INISNOD NILLINM HOIMd S.ACOOW
LNOHLIM NOSHAd ANV A8 “YIAFOSLYHM SNVIN ANV A8 HO YINNVIN 80 WHOH ANV NI "L¥Vd NI 8O J10HM NI ‘3SOd¥Nd HONS ANV ¥O4 3SN IN3NDISAENS 404 G3HOLS ¥O ‘a10S3Y 30

431N81¥1$1033 "Q3LVNIWESSIA 'G3¥Y34SNVHL ‘G3LLINSNYYL ¥3HL8N4 "Q3DVAHIVCIY ‘GIONA0YDIY ISIMYTHLO HO A31d0D 38 LON AVW SONILYY "S.ADOCW AQ 2asuao|] 0] pasuadl| aJe sbuney
"smeq Ausadosd tenidayiziul Jayjo pue WyBliAdod Aq paidsiosd ase pue sejeijuje sit Jo s.Apooly o) Auejalidoad ase (,sBuney,) sBunes s.Apoopy *(.S.ApOOW,) "2U| 'B3AIBS SI0ISBAUL S, APOOIN ‘ZZ0Z WBLIKdOD @S.Apooy

‘108 JO SjuawIalels jou aie pue suo|uido jo sjuswalels
aJe sBupjes 11paJ) 9DIAPE JUBLIISBAU| S UO P31|a) 54 JOU PINOYS pue AJLINJas Jo juswisany] ue Jo AIIGeNNS 3y} SSaIppe 10U S80p ‘AILINJas Jo JUBWISaAy] yans pjoy Jo [j8s 'Anq 0} UOIIEPUIILIOIBS B JOU §I JUBILGD 3Ul jO
1ed s| jey) Juswisanu) ue Bujulaouod uojjeasssqo Aue Jo Bujies e 'Kunoss Jo juawisaul seinojlied e 0} 89LBIBMES Y 1JUBIUGY BUl JO 3SK AUB YJIM UOJIDDULOD uy {1503 Ajunpoddo pue jyjoid 1s0; 10 awoauy 150} Buypniouy)

s3sso| 10 ‘saay [eba| 'sasuadxa 'sisod "sabeuep Aue Joj 8iqey| 9g SIBPIACIG UBIUGD [1BYS IUSAB OU U} |USIUGY LINS jO 3SN BUj WO} PAUIRIGO SHNS3J BUJ 10j JO '3sNned 3y} jo ssajpiebays ‘(esimiayio 1o Jwabijbau)
SUOISSIUIO JO SJ0LB Aue 10 Bjgisucdsal Jou aJe pue JuBluo) Aue Jo Alijigelieae Jo ssaugawll ‘ssauslajdwos *Adenbepe ‘Aaeinooe ay) asjuesent jou op (.SJ4apinoad Wsiuo),) ss3liddns pue sajeje sy ‘Aited yons “Aued
uensial syl Jo uojssjwsad usiium Jold ay) Yim jdsoxe paliqiyold i wuoy Aue uj (Jusiucd,) sbunes Buipniou) ‘jepsiew Jo elep 'uopeusso) Aue 6 uojdnpolday ‘aouabijatul 1exJel [eqoi) 48s 'zzoe WbBLiAdod

‘3jgej{eAR J0U S} }| ‘JUBUISaAY]
Jejnopued e BujpieBas Jeadde ou saop uojlewojut 51 “aigRIRAR 3J8UM PapiAcid BB LDeWLION) Jaylo pue ‘(S)Buiies puoq '(s)ajnpayds uondwapsy abed jse) sy ses aseajd ‘Bujoiid swoouy paxy jo uojeueidxs ue o4

*SABp 06 1XaU Y} UILIM 3INJBW O} B3NP UOHSOd 3W0IU} Paxy B aABY NOA S LMY

SN[EA JUNO2DY [BI0L JO %00°001 - IIWOOINI qaXId
"JUBLBIEIS 8Y] JO pua By} Je salouloo) syl 0} Jeja1 ases|d ‘sBupjoy Jnok Bujpsebai uoyiewoul jRUOHPPE JO4
“Janss} aul Aq pred aq jjim v 1ey) 2ajuesent ou sj asayy "SIN Aq panienas 4o sanss) 3yl Ag pied 19K Jou Ing ‘slep uodno3 1se) By} 9OWS PIIBINWNIIL IS3IBILY sjuasasday - (1saJaiu) panudoy) v

*UO|JeWLIOJUL BI0W IO JUBWIIE|S
14} JO puUB BYI 12 UOHBWIOU| SISE] 1SOD PUE SBJ0UI00S O Jajas aseald “sesodind xey Joj Asessedsu sjuswWISNPE 1€ 193131 lou Aew uoljew.oyu) porsad Buipioy pue (ssoj) Uleb paziieas 'siseq 1S09 PapiAoId-S4N

S3uIpjoH

siosiapy diooueg 's'n

u..CmEmmmﬁm_\/_ ﬁ:._m®>>B ZOSEZ0-GEM _8QUINN JUNCODY

uoesedioD - LOIYLSIA ¥ILVYM ALNNOD OLINIE NVS
Y20z 'Lg 18quiade( o} yZ0Z ‘| Jaquiadaq poliad ay} 10} Juswwelelg

P.9



7L jo g abed

OdIS "HSAN

J2QUIDIA *D°TT SIOIALBS [BIOURBLL] [BUCHEN YiiM PILLIED JUNOSOY

1€21p207 99988 FTHGEdMZOYEID NN

SHOSIAGQY dHOINYE ‘SN

0S'YBLLLLS

Q  00005L'1E0'eS

00°0SLLEOES

00'05L'91$ 05'vES'60Z'ES

108'568

000°05¢’s

O &v 89t 983 BUGSUT JUNGISIG) 19IE DOZIesIun
$1528 1500 pasnipy

05°068 1500 11u abeseay
62°1695% 153181} panudoy
SZI8LIZ0 algehed 1saseiu] IXaN

LE 834718 9NV NO
TYANNY-INZS 1Wd NdD

eey S.ACOOW

HSYD 310N S.LN 9202/82/20
€08078CL6  %00005°0 9Z0T-A 43S SY3UL SILVLS QILINN

L8'6PE'607

0 £9'59T'ER0'ES

£9'S9Z'Er0'ES

00'5££'8$ 05'619'25T'ES

£60°L63

000'05E"E

D SEPGE'bES B3WodU} JURO3S{( 18508 paziealun
siseg 1500 pajsnipy

8063 1500 1up) abeseay
LUBELES Isaaluf penioy
SZIOE/E0 :Biqeked isaau) xaN

LE d3S 'LE YYW NO
TYNNNY-IN3S LNd NdD

2By S.AUOON

HSYD 310N SIN §20Z/0E/60
ENYOZBILE  %000SZ°0 STOZ-QV YIS SYIYL SILVLS QILINN

(58'6£7'113)

a  S8'6£2'000°T8

005810028

00°000'55$ 00°000'686'LS

Sh66%

000'000°Z

3 86'vE98 wnjWalg paziuowy GLa
siseg 1500 pajsnpy

L0°00LS 1502 jiup abesany

88°001L8 1Sa18U} paruddy

SZISLIS0 :djqeked 1sasaiu] IXoN

Sl AVIN 'SL AON NO

TYANNY-INS LAd NdD

eey SAQO0NW

HSYO 3LON SN SZ02/SL/S0
00302816  %000SL°Z STOZ-NY 43S SY31 SILVLS Q3LINN

81252098

TTL60'568'YS

00°058'556'P$

L0L'66%

000°000'S

06°'L65 1507 1] SbeIany
HSYD S20Z/0T/E0 %00000°0
SALGLTLG NdO 0¥3Z $7719 Sv3dL SILYLS GILINN

(sso) uten
pazijeasun

siseg 1500
paisnipy/1euiBl0

3WoOdU} jenuuy anjeA 193Jen
pajeusisy waung
pajewnisy

ye/ieeL
U0 30Ld
pajewisy

Anuenp

adAj unoooy
disny/ioquis

uojidiosag

slosiapy diooueg s |

Juswabeueln yieapm Bl

panunuod  JINOONI ATXII

20EEZ0-98M aguinN Junoddy

uoneIodiog - LOIY1SIA ¥3LYM ALNNOD OLINIE NVS

¥20Z ‘L€ Jequiadaq 03 $Z0Z ‘L JaquiasaQ poliad sy} 10} JUIWLIEIS

P.10



ZL jo 9 sbeg

OdIS "SSAN

1G] ‘0T SOOIAISE JRISUBUL] [EUONEN YIIA\ POLLIED 1UNODDY

1£214207 99986 g TINHEEIMZOYETD NI

SHOSIAQY JHOONVE 'S'n

00°000°00E'Z$ 00°005'08%

00°058752'ZS

S6'L6$

000013 1507 1iU7) SDEISAY

87°6196% 1s3131] paninay

0000'00L ® SZOZ/BLIZO NO 318V TIVD

GZIBLISO :aiqeRed 1Sasoiu IXeN

8L AVYW ‘8L AON NO

WNNNY-IWES LNd NdD

+YY d%S/ ey SAQOON

HSYD L20Z/81/50 %00005°S

000'00£°2 £INYVOELS £206-02 ¥3S V4 NVOT IWOH Tvy3034

[CrAGINTG)

a4 STLES'he’vs

STLES'V6b'YS 00°000°002$

00°005'5L6'VS

805°66%

siseq 1500 paisnipy

68°66% 1500 110 abesany

0168768 153581uf pansady

S2I5L/L0 :ajehed isaa| 1xaN

SLNY('SLINCNO

IWNNNY-IN3S LNd NdD

eey SAQOOW

HSYD 310N SLIN L202/5L/L0

000'000' 6L10T8ZLE  %00000'Y LZOZ-MY YIS SYIUL SILVLS QILINA

STLLE'LSS

a srisoeil'es

STLE0'TLL'ES 05218'79%

05°206'622'ES

SLF963

O 9t tf0cers SWO3U] 1UN0ISI] TONIEI POZIalur]

siseg 1503 paisnipy

69°76$ 1500 un abesany

99°687923% 1S249jY] panddyY

STILEILO :Biqeded isasaly] xan

LEINF“LE NYINO

TWNNNY-INIS 1Wd NdD

eey S,AQO0W

HSYD 3LON SIN 9202/LE/L0

000°05¢' G6ABZ8ZL6  %006.8°L 9Z0Z-N ¥3S SYIML SILVLS GILINN

(8£°602'89)

a  8£609'666'tS

8E£°609'666'v$ 00°052'907¢%

00°00¢'L66'YS$

878663

siseg 1503 paisnjpy

66668 1507 Jun abesany

55°2696% 152591} paruady

STISLI90 3jqeked i1sauaiy) XaN

SLNOP'SL 230 NO

TYANNY-INIS LW NdD

eey SAGOOW

HSYD JLON SIN 9202/5Li90

000°000' LHHOTZBZL6  %00STL'b 9202-dY YIS SYIHL SILYLS GILINN

(sso7) uen
pazjjealun

sjseq] 1509 AWIOIUY {enuuy
paisnfpy/ieuifiLio pajewys3

anjeA 1eNJepn
wenn)
pajewiisy

ye/LerL
uo 831d
pajewlisy

Auenp adk 1 wnoooy uondiasag
disno/joquiAs

siosiApy diooueqg s .

yuswabeuel yeapm Sl

panunuod  JNOINI AIXI

C0CEZ0-48M I8QUINN JUNooDY
uopesodioD - 10141810 ¥ILYM ALNNOD OLINIE NVS

¥20Z ‘L€ Jaquisnag o} yZ0Z ‘| 19qWwasaq polad ay) 104 JUSWAIRIS

P.11



2L Jo L 8bed

OdIS "ISAN

JOQUIDI ‘O] SPOIAIDG [BISUBUL{ [EUOHEN M PILLIRT JUNODY

1£21vZ0T 9999 gTHIHEIIMZOUE3D” NI

SHOSIAQY dJYOOINVE 's'™n

suopduwapay
(sson) ulen siseg 1503 unowy Awuenp uoiduossg uopoesURIL adk L g
pazijeay eyl UNOJDY  JusWa)ies

SNOILJNAQTY ANV ‘STTVS ‘SHSVHO N

‘UOHRWLIOJUL 910U JOJ JUBWBlRIS

SIY1 JO pUB ) 12 UOHEWIOUY SISeY SOD PUB S2I0UI0J 0} J3j2) aseald ‘sasodind xej Joj Asessadau sjuawisnipe (je 19apeJ Jou Keus uojjewojuy porssd Buploy pue (s5oj) uieb pozijeas ‘s(seq 1509 PaPIADIC-S 4N

05'LLO'EE9'9SS

Aanoy

SYL6L'65LS S0°088'€LY'958 0G'LEV'LL9'LS HO'IVA OI'TO4LH0d 'TVLOL

SP L6L'651% S0°088ELY 958 05°LEV'LL9'LS 0S'LLO'EE9'95$ SaJLINJ3G B0,

Sh L6L'6GLS S0°088'€LY'95% 0S°LEY'LLY'LS 05°LL0°€€9'95$ 000°00L'2S awodu] paxiy [sio],

Sy L6L 6518 S0°08B'SLY'9S$ 05°LEV'LL9'LS 05'L10'££9'95$ 000'00L"LS seprnoag Aouady / &anseai], ‘S el

{cL'988'a8es) a  TL9E9'LEB'hTS Siseg 1507 paisnipy

1668 1500 yun abesany

8L°685CS 58484 paruddy

SZ/0£/90 -ajgeked jsaiaiu] 1oN

0€ 030 '0E NN NO

TYNNNY-INIS LiNd NdD

eey SAJOOW

JLON SIN 820Z/LERL

TL9€9'L28'vT8 00°005'L£63 00°0SL'8EY'bLS SSLL6S 000°000'52 %000SL°€ 8Z0Z-HY Y3S SYIUL SILVLS QILINN

{00°05L°Lb$) Q0000000228 SISEg 1507 paIsnipy

panuguos £206-02 ¥3S V8 NYOT INOH Y3034

(sso) ujes siseg 1500 awooyy jenuuy anjen 19vJep vZILE/TL Auenp adky wnoooy uotidLiosag
pazyessun paisnipy/jeuiblio pajeuwisy Jusung uo 331 disnoyioquiks

pajewnsy pajewys3y

siosiApy diooueg 'S

Juswebeue yieep Bl

pamujuod  FINOONI QIXII

20EET0-gaM aquInp JUnoodyY

uo#etodioD - LORLSIA ¥ILVM ALNNOD OLINTE NVS

$Z0Z ‘L€ Jaquaos( 0} $ZOZ ‘L 19quIasa( poliad syj 404 Juaialelg

p.12



zL jo g afeg S 1€21y20¢ g988e G THHISdMZOYEED NN

OdIS "3SAN
JOQUIBJAL *0)]7] SAIAIAS JRIDURUL] [BUONBN M PILLED JUROIDY SHOSIAQY dHOONVE 'S'N

(00°SL8LIL'LS) S[BMEBIPYIAA PUE SUCINPPY L5YIO [BI0L

] 0ZEE..... VYNOINVE SN
(00°05L'394$) 059¥0L26G1 LNIWIAOW ASNOW OLNY  LNNODJJV OL ¥34SNYL HSYD YZILETL

0ZEL..... YNIINVESH
(00°000'005'Z$) OELPS9T6A!I INIWIAOW AINOW OLNY  INAODJIV OL ¥IISNVAL HSV2 veibLITL

OZEE..... YN INYE SN
(00'52L'5013) ) £688292601 INIW3AOW AINOW OLNY INNODIV OL ¥IISNVYL HSYD vTI9LTL

0ZEE..... YN ANVE SN

{00°000°000'vS) S68LESZ6AI INIWIAOW AINON OLNY  INNODOY OL ¥IISNVHL HSVJ YEIEOITL

0Z€E..... YN IANVE SN
(00°000'065) 105252601 INJW3AOW ASNOW QLY INNODOY OL ¥3ISNVYL HSVD veizoreL

S[EMEIPIIIA PUT SUOBIPPY B9YIO

unowy Anuenp uopdpasaq uojjoesues] adk} ajeq
N0y

R
STVAVIAHLIM ANV SNOILIQAY YHHLO < STVMVITHLIM ANV SNOLLIAAY < ALIALLDY

00°000'00S'9$ suopdwoapay [e30]
0000¥1y98Y009Y
HO3U# LNOAYd NOILIWIG3Y
PZOZIGLITL %00000'0 NdD
00°000'005'28 » (000°005'7) Q¥37 S8 SY3UL SILVIS Q3LINN Q3N3303yY HSYJ veielicL
00'GLEVLS Q0  00°ST9'S86'ES siseq 150D pajsnipy
00°SLE'VLS UleD LS
00008.98950094
H034# LNOAYd NOILLIWAGTY
310N SLN PE0Z/0E/L %0000S ¥
00'529'586'CS 00'000'000'%S - (0o0'000't) ¥Z0Z-18 Y3S SVIYL SILVLS CILINN J3N3303Y HSYD veILOtL
(sso7) ujeo s|seg 1S0D unowy fiuenp uopduosaq uopoesues | odky ajeq

pazieay 2ol UNo2DY  JUBWaleS

ponupos - SNOLLINIATY ANV ‘SETVS ‘SISYHOUN

SJOSIAPY diooueg 's'Nn o

vC@E&WNCNE r_w_mm\(f@ ZOEEZ0-GEM OGUINN JUNOOY

uopesedio) - LOfY1SIA ¥ILVM ALNNOD OLINIE NVS
Y202 ‘}¢ Jaquwiagag 03 $Z0Z ‘| 19quiana( poliad sy} Jo) JUsWwale}g

P.13



i jo 6 ebed

OdIS ‘FSAN

J9qUISAL ‘D17 SOOIALDS [RISUBUL] [BUOHEN Il POLUED JURCIIY

[€21v207 a99ad A TDHAAIMZOYEID” NIV

SHOSIAQY JHOONVE 'S'N

95089'689% FAOONI TV.LOL
95°089'689% 3wWoIuy 3[qexs ], (810l
95°089'689% 15339ju] 9]qUXBL [BIOL

00°05L'89bS

310N SN BZOZ/LERL %000SLE
BZ0T-HY 43S SYIYL S3LVLS d3LINN

»1S343UN HSV2 veILETL

QIO i paseysind

$puOq J0j jsa181U; Bjqepoday

fiug vopeunouf o4

Q3N

LNV QIO $Z0Z/6L12L %00000°0 NdD

95°608'LZS 0¥3Z STNHEY SY3HL S3LV1IS QILiNn HSYD yei6LTL
JLON SLN 9202/51/90 %008ZL Y

00'SZL'E0LS 9L02-dY 43S SYIYL STLVLS Q3LNN ~ JSIYIANI HSVYD veISLITL
3LON SIN ¥Z0Z/0E/LL %0000S Y

00°000°068 ¢ vZ0Z-18 43S SYIHL SALVLS g3 LINN £+ 1STUIUNI HSYD pZIOLILL

JS9433U] djqexXe ],

nowy Ainuend uojidiiosag uopoesuel ) adAy ajeq

(00°5£8°L9L°LS)

TWOONI TTEVXV.L < INODNI< ALIALLOY

WUNOJ3DY  JuswBilies

STVAVIGHLIA NV SNOILIAQY TVLOL

unowy

S10SIApY diooueg ‘s o

yuswabeuep yyesp Bl

panuuos X JYALLOV

¢0ECZ0-g8/M HBGWINN JUN0odY

uopesodioD - 1OIH1SIJ HILYM ALNNOD OLINZS NVS
¥20Z ‘L€ 18quianaq 01 $Z0Z ‘| Jequiadeq poliad ay} 104 Juswalels

P.14



zL Jo o1 ebeg S 1€215207 99869 GTIMHEIdMZONEED NN

OdIS 'HSAN
JDQUIAIAL ‘DT 5901AI0S [RIoURUL] [BUCHEN iM P3LLIED JUNOOY SHOSIAQY JUOONVE 'S'N

‘pasn sem ssojyuieb pajeidosse sy pue siseq 1503 pajsnipeun Jeinbas, 9S|MIBYIO 'Pasn Sem JRU) 'UMOUY 3.8 sSoluieb pajejoosse sl pue siseq 1502 paisnipe

3J3UM S10] JO4 "UOHEBLLIOM SISeq 100 paisn{peun pue pajsnipe jo uciieulquod e Bujsn pajeinojes usaq aAey Kews SiRio} S,UOHJRSUR 3y} 'SI0] Xe) ajdilinl panjoAul UoNISOdSIP Jauyio Jo uondwapad ‘sies e Ji
“BUIODUL 1SBURBIY) BlgRXLel Se paless) St spuog ydwiaxa-xe} puUR sigexe) Y1og Wodj w0l Junodsip

jorsew ‘sasodind xe) jRJBpDy JO4 UO|IENIS XEB) [ENpIAIPUY NoA uo Buipuadep 'iedyausq sJow g ABW SME| X8 JOPUN BIqRIIeAR SUOHDDID JBYIO “(UOJISOUSIP) Bies {Hun JUNoISIP Jaxsew syl Buiziubose.
Jajep o} pajosie sey Jekedxel syl sawnsse uonenales ung “siep Bujpus popad Juswaiels ybnoay) slep uolsinboe woyy poylaw au-iublens ayy Buisn paieinoied Sem SWOIUL UNOISIP J9MJeN

pazijeasun - 0 ‘awIoouf jSaUB)UL Bjgexe)l Se pajeads) ) spucq duexs-xe] pue a1gexe) Ujog wodj sWwoduy JUnodsip 1axew ‘sasodind xej |esopad o4 UCHIENYS XB) [EnpIapUL JnoA uo Bujpuadap ‘jeidyauaq
alow ag Aew sme| Xel Japun a|qefieae SUo(Idae Jayio "(uojiscdsip) sies (nun Junodsip 1axJew aul Buiziubooas sajep of paloas Jakedxe) sy pawnsse uopieinoies Jng “ajep uonisodsip ybnoay

alep uoliisinboe wody poylsw autj-iybiesis auyy Buisn paje(ndjes Sem aWodu} JUNCISIP 1avJeN - o “UOHIRWLIOJU] [BUO(iPPE JOJ SasUadXy pue SUWIOOU| JUBWISBAU] 066 UOJIRIaNd S¥) PUR JOSIADE

Xel Jnok 3nsuod pue ‘spew aaey nok ey siuswisnipe Jolid mMaiAsy "poyiall uoneIndieD uolezZilowe aAlewale ue Buisn ate nok )i Jo uonoals xes sjedosdde ue apew jou aaey nok Ji ajqealidde

aq jou Kew 3} ‘sasodund Bupodas xe) Joj Asessadau sjusuwsnipe |je 103(jaJ jou ARwW UCHEINDJED S|SBQ 1S02 PAISN{PR NG "BWAIY| BJGEXE] WOJ) 3|GHINPap 8q ABw winjwaid paz|lowe s,Jeak jusind

a8y pue ‘wntwead szjiowe o) pasnbas aq Aew uoHIA(® Xe) @ 'SPUOq J|gexe) JO4 'SUIODU| S|GEXE) WO BIQHINPAP 10U St pUe pasnbal S| wnjwald Jo UOJRZ|MIOWE 'S31jLINoas JdWaXa-Xe) Jog ‘ajep
uopsodsip Jo peajsu pasn sem 2iep AlLniew 'piay [INS SaINDas JO4 "SiSeq 1502 paisnipe au Uy peloayjes sy alep uopisodsip ybnoay) ajep uopsinboe wo.y uonez|owe wnwald SARINWND "PoYIaW
uofiezysowe Ajjanjew-0i-piaik aul uc pajend|ed sem winjwaid PaziIowe QLA - 3 “UOJIBLIIOJU [BUOHIPPR JO) 'SasuadXl pue Swodu] JUSWISAU] ‘055 UOCHEDIGNd SHI 01 J3Jsy "poLisw uojeinoles
uopieziiowse aafjeusslie ue Buisn ase nok i Ajdde jou osje Kew pue sesodind Bujliodas xey soy Asesssasu sjuswisnipe [je Joa)yal Jou Aew $iseq 1509 paisnfpe ayy (ajqedydde Ji) sajes ysem Jo asnesaq
pamol{esip $9S50] AUR 129{j9. 10U S30P pUB DAOGE Pajels Se JUNoDsIP pue wnjwasd Joj paisnipe se SISeq 1SOD U Paseq Sem uoydesURS) S|u) Joj pake|dsp ssojuieD "ajep uonisodsip 18 pazjufiooas sem

pue poyiaw sul-jubiens ay) Buisn paieinoied sem YoIym UOHRID0R JUNODSIP 13%JBW S10a(jal Siseq 1S02 paisnipe ‘sjqesyidde §| ‘poylew jensoae ajqeies sy Bujsn paleindles sem wniwasd uoisinboy

‘poytsw Alniew-ol-pialA aui Sujsn paiendjed sem uoHRZILIOWER WiWald "9iep uokISodsip Jo pesisul pasn Sem aiep Alnew 'piay jiiis Se|INDes 104 "slep uojlsodsip yBnosy slep uomisinboe woy
Kyndss syl Jo aj1f 3y} Jano sakedxe] sy} Ag PaZiJJOWE BJ9M SIUNOLWIE UdNS SBWNSSE i pue ‘wnjwasd uoiisinboe 1o ‘wnjuasd "luno3sip anssy jeublo sajieinwnD Kue s1o3)y8) siseq §502 pajsnipy - g

"JOS|APE XB} JNOK |NSU0D 'UoHENIS Xl NoK Jnoge suoisanb aaey nok ji “Ajdde Jou 1im uolewsou; a1ep-0j-Jeak ay} ‘sasodind xe} o) ISLE Jaquiadag el JBYl0 pus Jeak [easy e sey A}ius/ssausng Jnok
31 *(4egwoaq - Aienuer) Jeak Jepusieo e Uo paseq s} uopdas Asewuwns ssoj/uleb ajep-0l-uesk oyl Ul PAISH UOHEBULIOMUL Y] *SIUNDIDE 81eJ0diod O} 821A19S e se Papincd S| uopewlioju ssoj/ueb pue siseq IS0

"UOLBWIIO U} JBYLINS IO} JOSIAPE X8} JNOK jnsuo)

“Jeak Buimolioy ayy Jo WisL dy Ag panssi L-3 ULIO4 @ UO uojjewslojul feuoRippe siyl apiaosd Ajtensn sdiysssuned "juswisaaus nok piay nok popsed ay) Bupnp suoinguIsIp pue awosuy
S} uo diysJaulied ay) wosj uojieunojul [eluswe|ddns sainbal SJUBWISBAL} YONS U} SISEq JO UOHIRINDIED BUI SB UOIBWLIoUl SISB] 1S0D 0} Siuaunsnipe Aue axeus 1ou 590p S4N ‘sdiysiaued Ul SIUBWISaAU] Jo4

"uOIWIOU| YONS 'Uodn asueyjal
uj uadje) uojiisod xe) Aue 1o *jo asn s, Jawoisnd e jo no Buisue Aigel) Aue swieasip Ajjeolyoads pue o) 1adsas Yiim Sauellem ou saxew SN sasodind Bupiodas xe) unok oy Asessadau syaunsnipe [j2
10994 lou Kew uonewaoju potsad Buipioy pue ‘ssoj pue uleb pazijess 'siseq 1503 pepiaosd-S4N 'Sy1 SUi 0} paliodal 9g 0} PaJsinbas Uo{IRWIO] UIBLIED 01 108dSa) YliM SjusWwalinbal Sy| 198W 1SNW SN B1IUM

‘sasodind Xe| 10§ P|OS PALDPISUOI BI3M SIO] UDJUM BUjULIBBP 0) SpJodas ajqed)jdde Jaylo pue SuoHBWILUOD 3pe.) Inok o} Jajal pinoys nok ‘Bupuodaa siseq 1so

€-660L 01 123{qNS 10U a.e 12y} SuoKIESUR) 404 "SINOK WOY JuRJajIp 2g ABWw YdJum 'SpIodal S)t uc paseq (sjgeatidde Ji ‘poyiaw jesodsip 13yl J0) O4i4 Salidde S4N 'ROUIBW Jjnejap Jayjoue asn o} paldale
sey Jajeap Jadoiq Jnok ssejun (s313 Butpniou)) sayio (ie J0) (O:414) IN0-1SH "UI-ISIYY PUB SPURny [enjnw pus-usdo Joj {SoD alieJane JO SPOYISL jNEJBP Sii UO paseq 3[es JO sWy) ay) | SISBq SO0 SaUlW.IBlep
SN 'SUOHINAISYY UINS JUBSqY PajIas Sey apeJ; 3y a40feq SN AQ panianal ag Jo SAN Uim 8}y U0 3 ISNW Suoponssyy ajelidosdde ‘Bugiodas g-6601 0) poytsus siseq 1S3 uopeduap; ojtoads e Kjdde oy
‘sasodind Xe) Joj plos Uaaq 3ABY SIO] YOIYM 108J8J {IIM SUOJIDBSURIL UIRLISD JOJ SULIO) §-660L 1BIDUJ0 JNCA “g-660L W04 34l UC SYI BY} O} UOHRLWICU Paje|d) puR SiSeq 1S03 UjeLled Wodad 0] pasinba. st SN

‘Sjunowe uoflezfjiowe Jopd yons JO [ 10 2y JO UMOPNEeaIq  3pin0id JOLUED 3M INg ‘S|SB 1SOD PaISN{pe au) U PaIos|as SI uojlezilIowe aneinwind s1esk sond ay) *papiaoad S| uojezZiLOWeR
wniwssd uopisinboe Jo wniwaid sesk juesnd asesum “(Sumop Ked) jedioupd jo JuawAedaid £lies o) 198fGns aJe jeuy 9SOY] JO “SBIIINISS BLLODUY Paxly ubIRIO) "SISNIL JUBLWISBAU] UM *SIUBWINIISUL WiBl-LIOYS
se yons 'sadA) ujelied Joj papiaoid jou aie Asy) ‘sanemoy (saliinba o%jj-puog SWIOS PUE) SBNINDBS BwodLY paxly Auelws Joj paplAcsd usaq sAeY S[SBY IS0 O} SJUBWISRIDE JBJIWIS PUe UOH3II8 "UOHEZ|LIOUY

UOIJBWIOJUT SISBY 1S0)) PUB S3]0UI00,]

SI0SIAPY diodueg ‘SN o

HC@E@WNCNE LF_QQ\/\/B ZOSEZ0-HEN HAGINN JUnoooy

uonesodiod - LO1YLSIA HILVM ALNNOD OLINIE NVS
202 ‘1€ 49qWsoaq o} pZ0Z ‘| Jaqanaq poad sy} 1oj Juawieiels

P.15



ZL 4o 1L abed s

1€21bT0Z gaddd gTDHEGIMZONEID NIV
OdIS '9SAN

JOQUISI ‘D)1 $99IAIOG [BIUBUL] [BUONEN U3lM POLLIED JURODDY SHOSIAQY dHOONVYE 'S™N

*{2U0}SS8j0.d [2{2UBUY INOK 108IU0Y JO SuCieIapISU0D uelloduw JByio
PUE UOHBULIOMUI 2123dS JOj UMO NOK puny [eAsaiuy au Joj smoadsosd sy o} Jajal asesld '$amea) aseydsndas pue yoeghng pue 'suopejusl Ajipinbiy/Buipes) Buipnjau; isixs Kews puny [eninw pua-uado jeucyipe.)
® pUB pUNy [BAIRIU| UB U3MIBQ SOOUBIBHIP [RISIBIY pUN) [BNINW pua-uado [RUCHIPES © J0U pUE 'pun} |eNINLW PUI-PBSO[D PAISHUN UB SB PAINISNAS S PUNJ [BAISIU] UB 80U 8583]d (SJBUMQ pund [BAIBIU)

-sBuipjoy Jnok jo Bupiaes siseq 1S09 aU} INOYR 20U UIBS| O} JOSIADE JO J3%04q Jnok 13€jU0 "UOHIBSURS) € JO 3wl 3yl 18 J19s 0} 510 xe) oj50ads Bujkjnusp) (z 40 SI0ISBAU] 0] B[qelieAs SPOLIPW [esodsip 10}
XE| UBARIS JND JO BUOC YIIM SUNODOE Juswailal-uou Jiay) dn Bupias (L Aq spuny jeninw pua uado jO S3JeYS J0) SISEq JS02 BY| UILLIBISP O] SIDIAISS [BIDUBULY [RUDHEN JONASUL UBD SIOSIAPE pUB S1%0JG 1Byl JO
SJBUMO uNo2oe "Ajanfleusal)y 1500 abesane Jjo poysw Yneep e Buisn spunj jeninw pua usdo Jo SaJRYS || 40 SISEq 150D Sy SBUIULIAISP SBDJAISS |B[DUBU|S JBUOHEN °8-6601 WIo4 UO Z10Z ‘L Aienuer saye 1o
uo paseyd.nd sBuipjoy pung jeniniAl pua uado Jo SaJeys jo ajes ay) Joj uopewojul poad Bulploy pue siseq 1500 Wodss O SadIABS (B19URUL] [BUOHEN BJnbas Jim $BINY SH] MIN - NOILYISIDIT SISVE 1SOD

“Jajeap-4a30.4q nok ybnosyl

1sanbays uodn sjgejjeae s| X4 ue Bujajoau; uopoesues; Aue o} sjqeoiidde sjes ayL "SAN UM paieiyle Jou sejued pay) ybnody; sjqeljeae aq Aew SaleJ B[ABIONE) BJOWN ‘S4N UM dndJew Jo uojssiwwiod X4 Aue jo
uofliod e aseys Aews "7 "XxaJo4 Aliapl4 ‘nok o} aspd Jaubiy e ) insau Aew yoym 'a01ud jadseW Juequsiu; Buijienasd ay) uo dnduew Jo UOISSIWWIND © asodwy Aews ‘SN JO alBNE Ue T "Xa104 Allapid "siseq
ledipuiid e uo D77 'xaJ04 Aljep]4 Aq paiosye ag Aew suopioesues) X4 8]i19s 01 Jepio uj (Xd) sbueyoxa Louauno ubjasog e sje)isseoau sadh) uojioesuel) JWOS - SNOILOVSNVEL 3DNVHIXI N3N0

‘umoys saniid ayj 1e ajgewaapal o ajqeiedew Aipeas aq Jou Kew Jo/pue anjea
tosiew Jie) JUBLIND 193)jau Jou Aew SadlJd "S32JN0S Jayio Jo/pue SIN YBNoJY) Jeaid oum siateap/senosq 'siopusa Buidiid apniou; Aew eyl S80.n0S W) pauleIge 2e pakeldsip Sadild - NOLLYWHOINI ONIDINd

*uoj}jpuod paulbiewsapun ue 3SNED JoU jjiM [BMEIPYIM YINS JO | uofieinbay sopun uo(iopilsas 0} 193fans Jou s§ Junodoe unok papjaosd sanINoes uibieus SSA0X3 MEJPYM O} 0Sie pue ‘|ed |eiued ayj o) 1adsal
Yim Aloysodep tospue jusbe sajsuel) ‘Janss| aul Aq PaysiigeISs awjl pue sjep joind ay; o} Jorid awy) Aue e sajuunoas pied Ajiny pajeaun melpyim o) 1Bl ay) aney noA “uopesojie ou Jo 'ucpedoye jelled

J0 {in§ 8 an@sas 0] nok Joj ajqissod s 1 pue siseq eies oud e U0 apew Jou 3Je SUO|R30(E ,S4N "PAISBPaI/PR]IED 8] []IM 1BY] SJUNOIDE JAUIDISND UIUHM SB[)INaS B} S195}9s Ajwopuel 1By ‘sajnJ ajgesiidde
YHM 20UBPIODIR Ut *WBiSAS uofiedojie AIajio] (ejedul ue SaZiHIN SAN 'SS11IND3S Pawaapal/palied sy Jo uojsod & paledojie st S4N ji “Alojisodap Jo/pue uabe Jajsuel) ‘Janss) ay) AQ Sa11INDaS PaUIBapal/palied
JO uoliEDoj[E UR 9Aj332J Jou Aew Jo Aeut SN ‘Jansst syl Aq uondwapas (eilied Jo jjed jejiled e o) 10afgns ase nok Joj pjay SBK1INJ9S JaJeaq JO JWEU J3BS UBYM - A¥ILLOT SILLI¥NDIS F1gvTIvD

‘(Remy piaH S1I9SSY
JBYIO pue ABMY pleH SIBSSY "Sajlinuuy pue sduensuj "6°8) UBIPOISND BYT JOU S SN U3IYM Ui Si3SSe o} patejal AlIAIIDR J08)j8l JoU Saop anjeA ul abuey) 'suolioas AlANDY JaWO pue 'sasuadxl pue s8a4
‘Sexe, ‘aWODU| 'SUOHDY aleodio] B "DSHA ‘SIEMBIPUIIM PUB SUCRIPPY UIUlIM paidsifes jou Auapioe Aue snid ssbueys aopd o} anp sbugpioy 2nok jo uoneidaidap Jo uoyedaidde s1os)as INTVA NI 3ONVHD

‘goueuIoped I0/pUB UDHINGIIISIP “SUGIIPPE. O} anp aq ued o}jojiiod ay) Jo anjea ay; uy sBueys ay) u) sauydep Jo/pue
sasealou] 86| 1By} 9)0U BSE3ld  "POIIAd UALIND BY) 0] '4BIB| S| JeARYDIYM ‘0L0Z Jequialdas Jo Bujuado Junoode woly st ydesB ayj Jo swes) awsy ey ajqeoidde ji sjesse Ajnuue pue asueansu) snjd qUNI8
au} uj SBMIIINDAS BU) [ JO BnfeA JaxJew ay) apniou siesse ofjojiiod 8ul “UMOYS pouad aul) syl Jono siasse ofjojliod nok jo enjea 1adJew u abueyd sy) §i OI0JLHOd HNOA 40 IMTTVA NI IONVHD

$910UJ00,] SNOSUB[[OSIA

ﬂo&.>v< diooueg ‘s'n
juswabeu eIA Ul|B9AA B ZOEEZ0-GEM :JBGUINN JUN0JDY
uoeiodiod - 1OMHLSIA HILVM ALNNOD OLINIE NVS
¥Z0Z ‘LE J8qWadaq 0} yZ0Z '} 19quIasaq polied a4} 10} JusLualels

P.16



i jo 2| sbegd S

OdIS "ISAN
J9QUIDJA *T7] SOIAIOG [RISUBUL] [BUOUEN UM PILLIED JUN02DY

juswaeyg Jo pug
*jediouud Jo ssof 8jqissod Buipnjoul ¥SH JUBWISBAUL BAJOAUY
pue 51ad 8y Aq paunsu Aay) ese Jou “jueq Aue Aq pasiueient Jo payoeq Jou ale S8jiLNdBs JAYJO Jo/pue spuny
|eningy ‘uonaaioud 0JIS Aq PRISAOD 10U BIB S(EIOW SNOj0B1d ‘PRIaA0S aq Jou ABW SJUSLISIAUL JALI0 pUB SaIIN0SS
POURO] ‘SIUNOCOZE SDININ] ‘SISBIIUCD JUBUIISBAUL UGLN«%—E@LCJ .mO_u_DOEEDU .%N\S( Pi8k{ SIASSY ‘oJuLInNsUy

D104 103 9jgiBi8e aq ABtu Spunj SN UDIUM JB jueg welbold B 0} Paysodap jpun pooslaid D4is s.e jisodap

sjueq e 0} daams 4o aseyosnd 0] PBsn Spung "QDES-L LE-202-} ljed Jo Biotadis'mmm  JISIA '8inyoosq Odis

e 1sanbal 0} JO 'D4IS U Sjielep asow Jo- ‘abeiaand 1o} 8|qIbyaul palepisuod aie 1BY} SBRIIN0BS UIeNBd 0} pUBIXe
26e4aA00 JOL)H SBOP JOU 'SBHLNIAS JO BNjEA Jaxiewl By} Ul awRap e isutebe §10810.d abRIBA0D JBUIIBN "SHY
asay) anoqe ebesanos Joj pabuelie sey 0s{e SN "SJ0108.1Q JO pirog S,0dIS Aq jeanidde pue ainieis DdIS 8ul o
SULIB] Y)iM SOUBRPIOODE Ul LORE]UL Joj Sjuaunsnipe opolad 0) Josigns ‘UseD Joj swield Joj uoRdslold 000'0sZS O
dn jo ansnouj S1 UORD3j01d OIS JO IUNOWE [e10} 000'00SS YL "000°005¢ 01 dn (LOdIS.) uoneiodio) uonaaiold
10}SaAU| SBRLNDAS AL YlM SOUBPIOOO. Ul Pajosiaid i@ S4N  Aq paLuRd Sjunosse up sapunoeg  “suuopad

1 SE2IAIBS BY) JOJ SPI0DBI puUe $H00( pasinbal ay] uejuew jeys SIN "Sluswaanbal uibiew jo noA Buisipe

Jo pue *sajru uiblew SN pue Asnpu; ‘[eisps) yiim soueydwiod u) ) junodoe abeuaoiq nok ey Bupnsue

1o} a|gisuodsal s| Jojeap-1a%0iq JnoA “wibiew uo sagunosas Bullued o Bujseysind Joj yipaso uibiew pusixs

{5) pue ‘Junoooe abriaxyoiq JNOA Jo} SBLNDBS pue spunj Jo Alaalep pue Jdiedas su pue suojjoesue)) o} 1oedsal
Ul Jajeap-1aM0iq JnoA jO suonongsul eyl mojio; (p) ‘ji2uaq Inok uo SN Ag paaiadal SaiLndss pue spun} Joj
uelpojsnd se 108 (£) ‘S4N AQ payuaa usaq Jou SBY UOHBULIOIU] St} 'J9ABMOL ‘Biqeljel 8G 0} patuaap saled piay)
104) PBUIRIQO JO Jajeap-8¥0iq Jnok Aq pepincid 8g Al uvonewuo)u; aandussep pue Bupud saiunoss ulepa (os
Op 0] USYEUBPUN SBY JAJEAP-IBN0I] JNOA SS3JUN) JUN0oIE abess)0Iq NOA JOo Sjuawe]e)s ajpousd pue SUOIBRUWLILUOD
uoloesues) puss pue asedasd () ‘1ajesp-sadoiq Jnok A SN yBnosyy passadold suoyoesues) aes pue Jeso
'8jnoexa (1) Gjeap-1a%04q JNOA JO UORDANP BY) I8 ‘||BYS SN  ‘Suuopad J1 1e) SeIAIas ay) JO] Spiooal pue
s)ooq painbal Bujuiejuiew (g) pue ‘ajqesndde Ji ‘Junodsoe ulbiew Jnok o} Buiuead sajru uiiiew Yym souejdwod
Buipnjout suonenBas pue smej ajqesidde yim aaue|duIod Ul SBRIAIOE UMO St pue junoooe abelexoiq Jnok
Buisinsdns pue ‘Bunesado (G) ‘82iApE PUB SUCHBPUBWILICIA! JUBLNSaAU] Jo Altjigenns ay) Buluiue)sp () ‘Junoode
sbie1axo1q JnoA 0) 1padsas Yim SN O} SUONDNIISU} JBYI0 pue S1apio ajrinade pue Ajpwy Bupiwsuen {g) Junoooe
abeiayoiq 2nok Buuojuow pue Buinoidde *‘Buuado (Z) ‘uoneluswnoOp pue UoHBULIOMI JUNoIdE abeidxoIq
Buifjusa pue Buieigo (L) :10j sjqisuodsal s) Jajeap-1axosq snoA  1sanbal uodn ejqejeae s) uoldussap
8ja(dwoo aI0W v "SIN PUB Jojeap-1ay0iq JnoA AQ pauuopad SaoiAss uonesoje eyl jo Alewiwns e sy Buimojiog
8y] unodoe abeisyoiq Jnok jo uonessiuiupe sy} Buipsebas suojoun) UIRLIED WAL UBBMIB] 9}eJ0jje SAN pue
181e8p-1ax0Jq Inok jeyl Saunbal LLEY 9inY YUNIZ BIOTBIUG MMM JB YIS qOM S, THNI4 BY) SS308 IO 6666-682
{008) 1B auljjoH weiboid Joaydiexolg uopenbay vaNI- aUj 198U ‘uoneinbay vHNId Jo weiboid sy jnoge
UOHBULIOJU! BI0W JO BnY00.q B Ueqo o, “(Lueiboid,) weiboid yoaynenoig suopeinbay N4 buiguosap
UOHBLLIOU SBPNIUS JeL) Sunysoiq Jolsoau ue Jo Alligelieae 81 o Bunum ul nok Anou em jey) sainbal waNIH
8y L (WvaNI.) Auouiny AojegnBex Ansnpuy teipueuld ay) jo pue (ISAN) aBusyox3 4018 Mo 4 MBN ay) Jo pue
'panoexa aJe suondesues By} aseum ‘Aue Ji ‘esnoy Buueajo sy pue jexew abueyoxs sy} Jo suonelaidialul pue
sBuins ‘sabesn ‘swojsno ‘suonenbal 'sejiu "UoHNISUOD 8y} 0} 108[QNS ale SUoKoesUR] |IY “VHNId PUe SSAN
1sanbals uodn uonoadsut inok Joj ajqejieae sy ‘| uonenbay Aq pasinbas se ‘Junoooe sjeledas ayj jO pi0oas
aueuuad ay ‘pieog anasey (BIapa SU} JO SICWAACS Jo pieog sy Aq pansst | uoneinBay jJo §'0Zz vonoes
Japun noA Joj pauieiusw sluncooe wbsew ssodind-uou oA URY) JAYI0 JUNODDE WNPURIOWALY |810ads pue
Junoooe uiBiew JnoA Jo JUBWALE)S PBLGLIDD B Si Siy} ‘Junodoe uiiew B aAey noA §| Juswele)s Jnok Lo paynuap;
SHYUSIUM unoooe uibsews 1004 uj SBRUNDAS JO BNjeA ay} o Paseq s mouog Aew nok junowe ayy “ueo] uibiew
Butpuejsino Aue Joj [elaieljod se Junoooe JnoA uf siesse ay) Buibps|d Joj afiueyoxe Ut SN wol Asuow mouog Aew
noA ‘panoidde usag pue sabsapaud ubiew o pajdde aaey nok j} "uibsey  “aseyaund Jo swi Je saleys ay; 0}
paubisse sniels ay) Uo PasBG PASSISSE oq {|IM UoRJBSURJ] JNOA 0] ajgesldde saa) Aue *B[es Jo swi) Iy "SMels 99
UOOESUERS OU JO 985 uojioesuel) 'peoj & paubisse aq Aelw sauys puny aseysind Jo swy 1y “1senbas uajum uodn
noA 0) PaYSILIN aq f{IM SN 40 S8 AQ PaAIDs: UOHRIBUNWAL JBLIO0 SE [joMm se uopesuadwos jo (S)iunowe pue
(s)saunos sy 1noge uoneuoul jeuoHIpPY swesboid sonkjeue pue juswasBebus ‘Bugeyiew pue ‘@oususiuBU
pue yoddns uLojle|d ‘saa) dn-UE|S 'SBOIAIRS JBP|OYBIBYS JO) UORESUAdOD [BUORIPPE SE ||am SE S|eusiep

Buliago sy; Ul paquassp $89) L-qg L PUB SPBO] $3|BS SN JO/PUE Ja(eap Jayoiq Bupnposu; 1nok Aed ‘seielye

0ol e6gzeZL

[€21p207 9494 9TIHIEdMZO¥EID NN

SHOSIAQVY JHOINVE 'S'N

UBWISSAU] J1aY) JO 'spun) 3wos ‘spuny yans uoddns o) pepaau aumonaseyu; (1) 1o (spuny,) siuswaoeld sjeaud |
30 SIUBWISBAUL BAIBUIDYE SE UONS S1oNpoid JUSWISSAU) JOLI0 PUR S413 'SPun; [eninw uj suoyisod Jo aouBuBjuRwW
Jo/pue ‘jo uondwepal Jo sbueyoxe “ajes ‘aseysind *0} ss202e (I} UjIM UOJOSUUDD Uf *§29 pUR SPROT S3jes

“8uRieq SB|ILNDas JO YSBY B UIRIUOD Sjunodoe Jjey) se Buoj se (1eek Jepusieo Jad sawy Jnoj 3sed) 1e)

sjuawalels Auauenb ansaai fim s1awoisnd abeiaxoiq e ‘wnwiunu e ly ‘pousd Buipodas Aiuow 1sej ay; Buunp
{shuncooe anok uf piaY SUoHISOd A1INDas 10 SHOURIRG USED JNOA POIDBJR 18Y; suopoesues peY nNoA jt qeeae
SUBWBIEIS JNOA JO few-9 AQ nok Ajjjou ‘ejqeoldde i 1o jlBw AQ SJUBWSIRIS JBASP (M SN Bumiew jususies
; "jsenbas ualuMm ok ucdn nok o) pejiew 8q Jim 3t Jo Ado3 B 40 3210 S) 18 uonoadsuy
{euosiad JnoA JO} BIQEIIBAR S| SN JO JUBLIAJE)S [BIOUBUY Y SUOKHIDUOD J8YI0 UIZUSS pue juswannbal

Buibe Jeah g sy; Bupesw Jaye aal-xe) 8q ABL SUOHNQLISIP BOUIS 'SLLOOUI 88Jj-XE] SE pauodal 318 Syl 410y
woy sBuiusey "awodu) pausjep-xe) se sybosy ‘pUR SYNI-dSS ‘SYXI JOA00Y 'SWH] |2UCIIPRL] Ul SJUBLISBAUL
wioyy sBujuee suodes g4N “Buplodey swoouy Juawelels Mok Jo uoyass Aleuruns Apanoe sy} ug nok

1o} pade|dsip §1 SUCRNGUISIP/SUOINGLIUCD JUBLWRINGS JO AJBLIWINS V¥ "SUORNGLIS|Q/SUCHNGIUCD jUsUIBleYy
*SBHUNDSS, J8JUN0D-BY}-IBAD, Ul sapes Bupoaye u

IBYEL JONEW Se pajor dABY Aew SN 'Isenbas uapum uocdn paysiuing aq |im paseyoind sem Ajunoas ayj Woym
woyj uosiad ay) JO SWeu ay} pue PauNdd0 SUOKIESUR) asaY) Yoiym uodn sbueyoxe ay) ‘SuosDBSURI) BU) JO AWy
8y} 'suopjoesuey) PBJ0aYS JBlesp-19N0Iq J04 "wesbosd Jususaautal puspiap (D 1Q) Auedwon jsniy Aousodag
8y ybnosy (Z J0 JUNOOOE JUBLWISEAU JNOA SO JB(RAP-1B301q NOA (L UBYle Aq Juabe se pajoays suonoesues
wol paYnsal Juno2oe abieiayoiq JNOA 0) PaYPaID SSIBUS *SIBLIOISNY JUBWIISBALIRY PUSPIAIQ AlinbT
'S8)LNDAS UIBYBD

10 e|qeded jsaiaiu Jxeu pue ‘ajqeded puapialp xau 1ds ¥o0Is Paioadxs JNCAE UGHEULIOU) 2J0W JO] JO|Rap-1a%0iq
4noA Ynsucs asesid “uoneutojul Buissiw Jo ‘813|dwodyy 'SJRINSYBUY JO) BlqIsuodsal Jou S| S4N ‘Bunuud Joj sy
ut saiped piiL wodp paisvas Jou i Buissiw oq ABw SBRLUNJ9S UlRL@D JO} Uonewsoju] "ebueyd o) 10alans aq Aew
pue saiued piiy} Ag pepiaosd ussq sey uonewwloju; ojqeded 1sauaiut 1xau pue ‘sjqeAed puspiAIp Ixau Jds ¥ools
pajwadxy “jselsiu] pue ‘spuaplalg ‘siidg "uoHeNYS [ElouBUY JO SBANSElqO JUBWISaAU; JnoA uy aBueyo jeusieWw
Aue jo Ajdwoud sejeap-Javolq Jnok asiape pinous noA “pouad asiolexe ay) Buunp Auo uswubisse asiolaxa

o} pslgns si uopdo ejAis-ueadaing e jo Jojum sy s Aue 1B Juswubisse Joj ajqey aie suoido ajkis-ueduswy
ui suoyisod Hoyg “jsanbai uodn Bige|IBAR St Uoitm JO uoiduasep & ‘ainpadoid UONEDOlR LiopUB) B

o} juensind suomsod yoys Jswojsno Buowe pajeso|je a2 suondo sjfis-ueadoing pue uesuouly Jo siuawubissy
“Jajeep-19x0iq 4nok 1oBjuod aseaid ‘uonewLou; Jayun; a4nbal noA J| 'sabieyd JByio pue SUCISSILIWLOD

INOGe UCHEULIOUL iny SUIBJUOD NOA 0} PaisAlap Ajsnomesd UOHBULYUOS uojIesuel) yoes ‘siawoisngd suopdo
‘wesbosd

juauwisnipe 1paio auy) SleUILLS) JO PUBWE O] PUR JBPIOYIUNCOSR Aue 0] Jusuasnipe ey Auap o) 1yBu sy) SanBsas
SN "suspIng X8} |RISPS) PIIBISOSSE {BUONIPPE JOA0O diBL O} PIPUBIUL SJUBLISNIPR JIpaIo BA180aL 0) ajqibte

aq Jou Aew spuapiaip pegljend jo nayj ur sjuawied Bulnasss sJepjoYIUNCooY "welbold Jusuisnipy 3pesd

‘Mg ejqestjdde o) 108igns 'SSLISNG S} YIIM UOROSUUOCD Ul 20UB|Eq 1IPaJD a3l Sity asn Aew

Alepi4 1s8nbau uajium Uo papinoid aq lim URIBY PAURIUC JOU uonBULIojUL {B)01~q0L Bini painbay juswaaibe
Junoooe oA Jo swis) ay) o} 19signs JuNod3a. JNOA Ul Piay JO NOA 0} uss spasooid auy aaey pus uomsod

2102 8y} sjepinbij ues nok ‘uogisod 9109 B 0] 1dams s1 gD JnoA J| "BIRDYIIBD BY) Jo AIBAISP JNOYIIM SBIUNDS
PaIBdlRIad JO S8IRS W) SPBan0sd apnioxXa pue SHOBYD Palesjoun Se yons sjuswiiuiwod uado o} 1oslgns

ate g0 "puewap uo nok o} sjgefed spun; e (,,804..) sedueleq Jipeio 23l NOLLYINHOANI TYNOILIGAY
-Alded jdwold e aunsus

0} Jequinu Junoooe sfieseolq aigua oA apnjoul o] JaqISLLBI ‘SN JO JB|RBP-18)01q JnoA Jaye BundsuoD usyp
"(WWdIS.) 10V UoR3j0Id J0159AY] SAUUNDBS BY) Japun asow Butpniou; ‘sybu noA 19sy0sd o) Buljum Ul PaLLIUCIB)
aq pinoys saiguedasostp 10 sepemodeu; Buipiebal suoneduUNWWOD (210 AUy “Z¥66-108 {008) 38 SIN 10ejuod
Aeut nod Jsjeap-4a304q noA Y3im JOBIUOD [Bl3jUl JNOK O} UOKHIPPE U] "JajBaP-1a%0Iq JNOA I NOA AG S4N

Yim palisodap aie jey) SeRundas pue Spun; Joj UBIPOISND INOA SB Sj0. pue Junodoe abesaxoiq JnoA saled SN
(SN 011 s90MIeg jeoUBLLY

{BUOHIEN puB JuBLIBIE)S S{Y} S0 JUOL) BY} UO PIJDaYaL SSalppe pue Jaquinu auoydals) auy) je Jajeap-1axo0.iq
JnoA 0} pajalp 8q pRoyS urBIaL) ANAROE au} Jo JuNcooE abeiey0iq Jnok Buipsebas Aouedasosip Jo Aveinddeu: fue
No syoday ‘Juawialels s m.o U4} BY) UO PSRRI JojReP-18X0Iq Jnok jo Jaquinu suoydalay ay; Bujjjes Aq
leieipauiu Aduedaiosip Jo Adeinadeu; Aue Podal pue JUSWAETS JNOK Majass asesid :3DIANAS HIWOLISND

*sssuala|dwioD 1o ssaulaw

'Adesnooe O} Se apew aq UBD SOUBINSSE OU NG '3jqes) aG O} PaAdljaq SiapiA0Id UORRBULIOUS LUIOK PBUIRIIO Blep
uo paseq sie AJ pue jy3 suoisioap Xe) Jo Duipe); ‘Juswisaiu Bupiei Jof uo paljal J0 Pash ag Jou pinoys pue Ajuo
sesoding [BUCHBLLIOML 10} PBPIACID 218 A PUB |3 "PBIBISUSAC WSY] JaPUSS Pinom Yojuym ‘suteb jejdes Jospue
{ediouud Jo wnjai epniauU) ABW pue AJUO S3IBUWISS BIB AT PUB [YIT "SUORIPUOD SSBUISNG PUB jeanlod ‘Oiuousos
NN} puB JUBLIND Aq pajoaye aq Aew pue swl Aue je aBueyd o} 193[gns a4e SIJBL pUSPIAIP Pue IS3I8U| "alenony
Aewt yom aoud sy u sabueyn jou pur juaunsaaul ue Ag pejesauab awoous sy Ao 5198181 AT "AUNoaS

18U} JOj SPUBPIAIP P3.BIOSP Jo/puR JOUD UO paseq PelenNdies SYUoW Z1 1Xau ay) Jo sjuswied puapialp sAunoes e
0 ajewnss ue sj Qv a4l (Qvi) puapiap jenuue pajedipu; ue Buisn pejeindieD S| iy 'SAUNDSS JaYI0 (je Jo4 "a)el
uodnoo sy} Buisn paieinojeD s] swoaul Paxy 1o I3 -(AT) PIBIA pajewnsT 2 (Jv3) swoou jenuuy pajewsy
*J8jeop-18y01q inoA Buninsuco

Jaye AJuo spelU 8¢ PINOYS SUOISIOBP JUSLUISBAU] "SI0108) J@XJBU SNOURA UO paseq paseyaind Jo pjos aq Aew
Aunoas ey yolym 12 anjea ay) 1oae. A|asold jou Aew pue aoud aseyoind s} woly sayp Aew ‘enjes Jed e paoud

asoy) Buipnjou; 'Unoas e jo anjen 19BN By} 'e0unos Buioud e wWolj a|qejieae jou Ajjeiauab si AUnoas yons
Joj soud syj 210ym 2|qRIIBARUN, 10 /N, 108}J5) ABW SBRUNDSS UIENSZ *SIBY0 10 SPIG WY Jou aJ8 papiaoid saoud
3y, "ajonb 1ayoiq 8|buls e W paauap aq Aew 3oud e ‘SUORENYS LIRS Uj “ys1 Aupinby Bulpnjoul ‘Aiunsss
31 JO anjeA By 1oaye jely SI012 ) By JO HiE 108yies 10U Aew pue (uoliw 1§ "B'e) sunowe [edpund Wnww
UIBLIBD UD paseq ag AW ‘Saljiinoes awodu] paxy  Joj Auenoed 'se)elss 8say ] ‘onjeA S1BLIISS 0)
sanbiuyosy jo Ajauea e asn siopuaa Bujoud ay) sigejleAR Jou i Sajonb yons usym nq ‘saonb 1@uew JUBLIND
uo paseq Affessusb sie siopusa Buoud wioyy paseoas saduy “pasiuesens jou sie saoud Yyons pue pauodal

ale saoud yons yojym ul Aousnbay au Aq pajoedu aq Aew ‘S30IN0S SNOLBA LIOY PBUIRIGO SBaLd Sjuaselds)
anjeA 1avjen lejoy ay| sased jewnap § i padeidsip s1 eoud Jun jenpiapu; 8yl Ing seveld [ewnoap §

©} §n0 P3IBINOIed L8Ry SeY BN[BA Ja3IBW (BI0L Bl - anjeA JoNJeN  "SiSBQ APj@em B U Junodoy uibiew Jnok oy
PaLIBjsURY Bq {[IM pUe 19XIBW BU) 0] payJew aq jlis adud ajes [eubuo ay) Wolj SHSeaLap JO SISBAIOU] JAxIEW
Auy JuUnoddY LOUS JNOA Ul SUCHORSURI YoNs Woy spasdoid ay; pajeBasbes 'suoyeinbas Lym aouepioooe

Ul "aABY am *affu BjeS LOYS BY} J3PUN SBHLNDAS PIOS 8ABY NOA Jj- Seoueleg JUNOIDY HOUS AHYSSOTID

P.17



T _H §
O
D

H

¥
Pagpgae®®

ora1sy
e

i

:
J
L1\

! ‘P‘L ™y
uo-:vO V. 3, \95‘3-.'
A

U LLISTER: &

,
Ty

'..Ill

"-...-"'O

¢
4"5

Agenda
[tem

# 5



Fiscal Year 2025 On-Call Contract Activity Report

MCC Controls dba Primex - *Control System Services (SCADA Services)
Contract #: PRIMEX-2024 OC

Board Meeting 1/29/25

NOTE: NO ADDITIONAL TASK ORDERS WERE EXECUTED AS OF THIS MEETING'S REPORTING DEADLINE

**NTE Contract Task Order Contract Amount Task Order e Task Order Issued Payments to
Task Order Status . Task Order Description
Amount Amount Remaining Number Date Date

$ 813,000 I FH
Open S 30,000} S 783,000 1 Control System Services 8.27.24 $ 10,061.50
Closed S 48,178 1 $ 734,822 2 PLC install and system start up RTU 20 8.26.24 $ 48,177.80
Open S 46,348 | $ 688,474 3 PLC install and system start up RTU 9 8.27.24 $ -
Open S 103,850 1 S 584,624 4 Replacement hardware for RTU 3/4/6/7/17 10.17.24 3 -

$ 813,000 $ 228,376 | $ 584,624 $ 58,239.30

*SBCWD Board approved 7.31.24, Contract #PRIMEX-2024 OC
**Contract expires 7.31.27




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: @

Meeting Date: January 29, 2025
Submitted By: Brett Miller

Presented By: Brett Miller

Agenda Title: FYE 2024 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and Audit

a. Presentation by McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman

b. Consider Acceptance and Authorize Distribution

Detailed Description:

The District is on contract with an external auditor to conduct the fiscal year end audit of
the District’s financial statements. Collin Linder of McGilloway, Ray, Brown and
Kaufman will present the financial report and findings from the fiscal year 2024 audit.

Prior Committee or Board Action(s):
The Finance Committee will meet with staff and Mr. Linder at the January 27, 2025
Finance Committee meeting to discuss the FYE 2024 audit and the financial report.

Financial Impact: Yes X No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Draft Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2024

Recommendation: Board consider acceptance of the FYE 2024 ACFR and authorize its
distribution

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review




Board Action

__Resolution No. Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
OF THE
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30, 2024

30 Mansfield Road

Hollister, CA 95023

PREPARED BY THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT



ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Letter 0f TranSIIEal .....c..ociiiiiii e ettt ettt et e st e se et be st e e maseas s b st anaen st e b e s i
DHSHTICE PrOfIe. oottt e st vi
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ... X
List of Principal OffiCIalS.......covvereieirie ittt st xi
Organizational CRATT..........ooiiiiiiiirre ettt e a et b et bs s neretsnn e xii
FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor’s Report

Statement of Revem

Statement 0f Cash FIOWS ... i coiiiiii ettt s rersen e sas st snsessnse s 16
Statement of Fiduciary Fu STHIOTL ...ecvvv v cereceeeeeenceae e sesesesessassnssensesssebesesssecsebaersrcenne 18
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Funds Net POSItION ........cooreveercereneueiiniserinerincneironeins 19
Notes to Basic Financial StatemMENLS. .......c.uu.sssssifireuereserceseereecsesensermeremsesssnsssssassmsessesimmmsinsses 20

Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of the District’s Retirement Plan’s P

(Asset) and Related Ratios.......coccecvennens

Schedule of the District’s Pension Plan Con
Schedule of Changes in the District’s Net Other-.

RAtiOS .ottt
Schedule of the District’s Other Post-Employment Benefits Contrib

Supplementary Information

Schedule of Net Position by Zone ........ccoceevvevineenniiiinannnnes e 62

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position by Zone ..............cocovinrmncrninnns 64
STATISTICAL SECTION
Index to StatiStical SECHION.....c.iiverriieeiei ettt et b e st sr s 65
Net Position bY COMPONENL .......ove.eeririerierieiieeentetiatietisre sttt et e ressses st seesesse s s s ek e s e s brssensassetestsbstssasees 66
Changes in Nt POSIHOMN .....eovviviiereeeene ettt ea ettt b s st a e e s s e et eb e bt 67
Operating Revenue by CateOTY ..ottt e 68
Water Rates — San Felipe Distribution SYSteIM .....c.cceveiiiiiiniiriiiiiicei et s 69
Principal Land TaXxpayers — ZONE 6 ........ccccviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieneesie s ettt e 70
DIHSEIICE DIEDE .. vecueitiiei ettt ettt ettt b et b e n et b b e bbb b a b a R e bbb e as ettt e e be e 71
Demographics and EConomic StatiStICs .....covriiiiiiiiiiivieiee it 72
Principal Employers — San Benito COUNLY .......cccooiiiiiiiiiiteiet e 73
Water Deliveries — San Benito COUNLY ......ooerrrierienieeeimiini it ettt 74
Number of Employees by Department.........ccccociviiiiiiiiieiei ittt 75
Operating Indicators by FUnction/Program..........c.ccoviiiimiiiiiieii e 76

FACT IS oottt e e e e e e e e e e eeeaeeeseseaneetaeeaeseasas e eresessesesaassstasssesastassssssaeneeaasasastbaesetee s trnaaeseresnenrsssteeanreaaren 78



"ORY SECTION




_;5}

by, LIS
TR

San Benito County Water District

!Q“

’*:;J:;C:{ {‘{wké; o 30 Mansfield Road * P.O. Box 899 * Hollister, CA 95024-0899 * (831) 637-8218 * Fax (831) 637-7267
AW

January 29, 2025

Members of the Board of Directors
San Benito County Water District

We are pleased to present the San Benito County Water District’s (District) Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the year ended June 30, 2024.

The report was prepared by the District in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United S of America (GAAP) as promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data presented
and the completeness:and fairness of the presentatxon 1nc1udmg all msclosures rests w1th the

of the District. Included aré
of the financial condition of th

of this report

y follows the independent auditor’s
analy s of the basu: ﬁnanmal

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&

statements. As a complimentary document, the M
letter of transmittal.

MAJOR INITIATIVES AND PROGRAMS

Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan

During this past year the District and San Juan Bautista continued work through the Memorandum
of Understanding signed in FY2022-2023 to evaluate the possibility of adding San Juan Bautista
to what was the Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan, and will now be referred
to as the Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan. The intent of adding San Juan Bautista
to the urban area planning effort is to investigate options to connect San Juan Bautista to the West
Hills water treatment plant.

A contract was issued in FY22-23 to HDR Inc to prepare a Basis of Design Report (BOD) that
would be the preliminary design for a connection to the West Hills Treatment Plant and a pipeline
to convey water through San Juan Valley to San Juan Bautista. HDR has completed the BOD with
the estimated cost of construction at $7,691,000.

Also, still under consideration is San Juan Bautista’s buy-in to the West Hills/Lessalt treatment
capacity. Under an amendment to the original Water Supply and Treatment agreement between



the District, City of Hollister (COH), and Sunnyslope County Water District (SSCWD), San Juan
Bautista (SJB) would be added as a 5% to 8% partner.

Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

The District has been approved for $4.78 Million in Pajaro River shed Prop 1, Round 2 IRWM
Implementation Grant, $11.5 Million in SGMA Implementation Grant, and $6.7 Million in
WaterSMART Small Storage Grant. The grant funds will be used to offset the costs of the
District's ADRoP project which is an aquifer storage and recovery project which will be capable
of recharging up to 6,000 AFY of high-quality CVP water in wet years for subsequent recovery in
dry years. It is the foremost approach to help meet future water demand, especially during drought
and water shortages, and to help achieve water quality goals for total dissolved solids, Nitrate and
hexavalent chromium. The Grant funding will be utilized in FY 24-25 and beyond to complete
this project. The grants received will provide partial funding for the first phase of the recommended
Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project. The update of San Benito Urban Area Water Supply and
Treatment Master Plan has been updated to reflect the grant opportunities and was completed in
March 2023.

Recycled Water Storage Facilities .
The District continues to refine | pera ions and add new customers to the recycled water project.
The completion of the storage ws for 1,000 acre-feet of recycled water per year to be
delivered, and nearly 100% of the ater produced between April — September of each
year is avaﬂable for use. The 1 ed water for agrlcultural purposes is particularly

ervoir has been documented since February
clamation (USBR), and California
working to dgvelop an eradication plan to

Department of Fish and Game (DFG) have b
eliminate the mussels from the reservoir.

that the mussels will
it, or San Felipe Distribution
e Hollister Conduit.

One of the key concerns with any water source w1yj
eventually migrate to the conveyance systems (i.e. the Hollister Cond
System). In March of 2009 zebra mussel infestation was confirme

The District continues to operate San Justo Reservoir (San Justo) as it has for the past 15 years
seasonally raising and lowering water levels in San Justo to minimize Zebra Mussel populations
taking advantage of the hypoxic water that develops in the reservoir each summer to help control
the zebra mussel populations in the reservoir and distribution system. To date, visual inspections
indicate that this has been effective. The District will continue to manage with operational
modifications.

At this time there is no indication of when USBR will complete an eradication plan.

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project

The District was a participant in a Proposition 1 grant application with Santa Clara Valley Water
District (SCVWD) and Pacheco Pass Water District (PPWD) for the expansion of the Pacheco
Reservoir. In July of 2018, Department of Water Resource (DWR) announced the project would
receive the full funding request of $485 million. The total project cost is currently estimated to be
approximately $2.5 billion.

il



The project includes construction of a new earthen dam a short distance upstream from the existing
dam and a pipeline to connect the dam to the existing Pacheco Conduit, a federal Central Valley
Project pipeline that delivers water into Santa Clara and San Benito counties from the San Luis
Reservoir. The Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project would expand the reservoir from 6,000 to
140,000 acre-feet and deliver water supply, water quality, and ecosystem benefits to the region.

In June 2018, the Board approved a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) with SCVWD that
outlines the terms for moving forward with the project. Originally the MOA included 2 major
agreements that needed to be completed within 2 years of the signing of the agreement, an
allocation of benefits agreement and a provisional operating agreement. In addition, the MOA
called for the District within the 2 years to determine its participation level ranging from 0% -
10%. It is now anticipated that the date for the allocation of benefits and operating agreement will
be delayed. The District will continue to review its level of participation as the project moves
forward.

Sustamable Groundwater _agement Act (SGMA)

se basins. Another round of funding was announced
] District received an additional $1.2 million to help
'ng wells and a Managed Aquifer Recharge prOJect The

by DWR to assist with plan preg
w1th mstallatlon of additional monit

and Valley Water GSA and was submitted
ces (DWR) on January 12, 2022.

The 2022 GSP provides the basic infonnation,;,”
actions for continued groundwater management,
sustainability goals, objectives, and metrics. Annual
by the April 1 deadline. Per the SGMA regulations, a per10d1c evaluati
to be completed by January 2027.

the GSP is expected

Future Water Supply Storage Options
Consistent with recommendations made in the recently completedf Hollister Urban Area Water and
Wastewater Master Plan Update, the District is working on an evaluation of local water storage
alternatives for the future. Currently, the District is in negotiations the United States Bureau of
Reclamation on the B.F. Sisk dam raise project that would add an additional 130,000 ac-ft of
storage to San Luis Reservoir. Through the San Luis and Delta Mendota Water Authority the
District would obtain up to 5000 ac-ft of the available storage. At a mid-point of construction
estimated cost of $1,100,000 the District’s cost of the project would be approximately
$58,000,000. Funding for the project will be provided through the District’s approved Capacity
Fee of $12,265 for each equivalent single family home built.

Reservoir Management Plans

In 2017, the District completed preparation of an operations planning tool to create annual plans
for operation of Hernandez and Paicines Reservoirs and for re-diversion of Hernandez Reservoir
releases to Paicines Reservoir at the San Benito River Diversion. 2018 marked the first year the
operational planning tool was used to manage reservoir releases for groundwater recharge. This

iii



planning tool has been incorporated into the SGMA GSP. The District continues to use the
Reservoir Management tools to manage the surface waters of San Benito County to augment
groundwater supplies.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Rate Policy

The Board of Directors adopts water rates for groundwater and surface water deliveries. The
District follows the Proposition 218 landowner notification, protest process and public hearings
for the adoption of new or increased rates and charges related to groundwater and San Felipe
Contract and Small Parcel customers.

Budgetary Control

The District is not required by statute to adopt a budget; however, it does so annually to outline
the major elements of the forthcoming year's operating and capital plans and to allocate funding
required for those purposes. Budget appropriations for major capital projects continue from year
to year until the project is completed. A quarterly financial report is reviewed by the Board Finance
Committee and report he Board of Directors.

Accounting System
ined on an enterprise basis, as it is the intent of the
s a business, thus matching revenues against costs to
ms to control, manage and conserve water. Revenues
is in the period in which revenue is earned or expenses

are incurred.

Internal Controls
The District's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal
controls designed to safeguard the District's ass ,-theft, or misuse and to ensure
paration of financial statements in

e concept of reasonable
¢ benefits likely to be

designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met
assurance recognizes that: 1) the cost of a control should not exce:
derived, and 2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management. The District's management believes that the current system of internal controls
adequately safeguards the District's assets and provides reasonable assurance that accounting
transactions are properly recorded.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its annual
comprehensive financial report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. This is the tenth
year that the District has been awarded a Certificate of Achievement. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a District must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
annual comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
ACFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

v



I would like to take this opportunity to thank the members of the San Benito County Water
District's Board of Directors for their interest and support in the financial operations of the District.
It is the responsible and progressive manner in which business is conducted that makes the District

“successful. I would like to extend special recognition to the District Finance and Administrative
staff for their commitment to excellence in financial reporting. In addition, I would also like to
thank the District's auditors McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman for their significant technical
contribution and assistance. It is the combined effort of all participants that resulted in the issuance
of this financial report.

Respectfully submitted,

Dana Jacobson
General Manager

Brett I. Miller, CPA, CPFO
Assistant General Manager



DISTRICT PROFILE

DISTRICT FORMATION

The District has broad powers for the conservation and management of water (flood, surface,
drainage, and ground water). The primary focus of the District is the management of water quantity
and quality throughout San Benito County including, where appropriate, the development of local
water supplies and the development and importation of water supplies from outside the County.

The District is a California Special District formed in 1953 by the San Benito County Water
Conservation and Flood Control Act. At that time, the District merged with the Hollister Irrigation
District, becoming the successor to the water rights, water facilities and land interests of the
Hollister Irrigation District. The name was changed from San Benito County Water Conservation
and Flood Control District to San Benito County Water District in 1988.

SERVICE AREA
The District encompasses a.
miles and a population ¢
San Juan Bautista, Cit3
Pinos.

“San Benito County, with an area of approximately 1,400 square
,210 people. Residential communities served include: City of
-, unincorporated urban areas surrounding Hollister and Tres

The District provides water servic related services through zones of benefit. Current

zones of benefit are: _
District Administration (Zone 1)
San Benito River System (Zone 3
San Felipe Project (Zone 6)
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (Zone 7)

DISTRICT ORGANIZATION

A five-member Board of Directors (Board) gov :

four-year terms from divisions that are coterminous with the : superv1s

County. Directors must be a resident of, and a registered voter in the
Members begin service in December of even numbered years.

s thy Di trict. Board members are elected for
districts of San Benito
gision they represent.

To facilitate matters, most matters coming before the Board are first consxdered by one of its
committees. Each committee then reports to the full Board, which makes the necessary decisions.
There are ten standing committees:

Finance

Investment

Administration

Recycled Water

Zone 3 Operations and Water Supply
Zone 6 Operations and Water Supply
Personnel

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion

San Felipe Division Activities
Groundwater Sustainability Agency

vi



Several ad-hoc committees exist for special purposes and meet on an as-needed basis.
In addition, Board members serve as the District representatives to the following Board of
Directors and multi-agency committees:
> San Luis & Delta Mendota Water Authority (2 positions)
Association of California Water Agencies-Joint Powers Insurance Authority
Pajaro River Watershed Flood Prevention Authority
Water Resources Association of San Benito County

Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan Governance Committee (2
positions)

YV VY

An organizational chart of the District appears on page xii of the introductory section.

In 2014, the State of California passed the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).
This law outlines new requirements and tools for ensuring the long-term sustainability of these
critical sources of water supply. The Dlstrlct is the Groundwater Sustamablhty Agency (GSA) for

The principal water available to wate;
Project (CVP) water. Local surface

water supply from the San Felipe Proje
The system provides for direct delivery to agncul
delivery to the Hollister area for urban use. Und
surface water is supplemental to groundwater and is
on an annual basis.

d to us Wlthm the zone of benefit

Groundwater use, within the North San Benito Groundwater Basin had. ded the natural supply

for decades and a state of overdraft (use exceeds basin's natural ab' to replenish itself) existed.
Due to the District’s management activity which includes management of local surface water
supply and the importation of CVP water, the groundwater basin had fully recovered by 2001. The
drought beginning in 2007 put pressure on the groundwater basin but storage was sufficient to
sustain demand. We will continue in a period of recovery as long as we continue to get an average
of 20,000 acre-feet per year of imported water. If not, management activities will need to be
modified. The current land uses, and the economy of San Benito County depend upon the water
placed in groundwater storage and the water imported by the District. These conditions require
careful management, data collection and analysis. The District maintains a groundwater and
surface water quality database to support these efforts.

As a matter of practice, the Board of Directors has requested a groundwater report each year. The
objective of this report is to conduct an audit of critical water resources and the actions taken to
manage these resources, as well as making recommendations for management actions for
forthcoming years. Public notice of this process is provided to encourage the participation of
landowners and groundwater users.

vii



In the 1950s, the San Benito River System was undertaken for storage and percolation of locally
occurring surface water. The system was established to mitigate the overdraft in part of the San
Benito portion of the Hollister-Gilroy Groundwater Basin. The Hernandez Dam was constructed
and placed in operation in the early 1960s for the storage of locally occurring water. The District
continues to operate this facility, as well as the Paicines Canal and Reservoir which was built in
1913 and rehabilitated in the early 1960s. The District holds water rights licenses from the State
of California for Hernandez Dam and Reservoir, San Benito River and Dos Picachos Creek. These
water rights permit the diversion and storage of surface water for percolation into the ground for
later recovery and use. Water is released for percolation through the streambed at the San Benito
River, Tres Pinos Creek, and a natural drainage adjacent to Dos Picachos Creek.

In the late 1970s, the San Felipe Project was initiated to correct the remaining overdraft in the San
Benito County portion of the Hollister-Gilroy Groundwater Basin, to provide a water supply of
appropriate quality, and to provide through conjunctive use an expanded water supply. The San
Felipe Project's zone of bene ontains approximately 47,500 acres. The District has contracted
with the United States on. If of landowners for water service from the San Felipe Division of

supplies and restore reliability.

WATER SUPPLY
The District manages the federal contract with the Umted States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR)
for delivery of water through the San Felipe unit of the Central Valley Project. The total federal
contract entitlement is 43,800 acre-feet of water per year (35,550 acre-feet of Irrigation, 8,250
acre-feet of Municipal and Industrial). Based on availability of water the USBR allocates a
percentage of the contract entitlement.

The local water supply consists of water rights for Hernandez Dam and Reservoir, the San Benito
River system, and the Dos Picachos Creek. The use of the water from Hernandez and the San
Benito River is for spreading and later recovery by pumping from wells. The Dos Picachos water
is diverted from December through May for spreading and later recovery by pumping from wells.

The District has worked cooperatively for years with the County of San Benito, City of Hollister
and Sunnyslope County Water District to implement recycled water use. Current recycled water
use includes City of Hollister landscape irrigation. Since 2016, recycled water has also been
delivered to agriculture users.

Additionally, from time to time, the District participates in transfers or purchases of water from
other agencies.

vili



WATER TREATMENT

With the execution of the Hollister Urban Area Water Supply and Treatment Agreement
(HUWSTA) in 2013 by the District, the City of Hollister, and Sunnyslope County Water District,
the District became the owner of the upgraded Lessalt Water Treatment Plant and began design
and construction of the West Hills Water Treatment Plant which was completed in October 2017.
This agreement marked the beginning of the District providing wholesale treated drinking water
to the City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District.

Groundwater in the Hollister Urban area is characterized by high mineralization, driving customers
to utilize water softeners to mitigate the high hardness. As a part of the District’s CVP contract,
the District is entitled to up to 8,250-acre feet of M&I water annually. Completion of upgrades to
Lessalt and construction of West Hills now allows the District to fully utilize its CVP M&l
allocation each year. This directly benefits City of Hollister and Sunnyslope County Water District
customers by delivering drmkmg water with significantly lower hardness which allows them to
remove salt-based water so

WATER RESOURCES / rSSOCIATION OF SAN BENITO COUNTY
The Water Resource

r District. The purpose of the orgamzanon is to
ordinated, cooperative and cost-effective manner
within the County. This is accor through implementation of public and special purpose
educational programs, public communications, compilation of water resource data and frequent
communication among the agencies regarding water management activities. WRASBC is reported
as a fiduciary fund of the District who manag f and financial resources of the WRASBC.

1X



G

L2

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
Financial

Presented -t

Salinas ValleySohd

For its Annual Com
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2023

Clectlopbo P- Honitl

Executive Director/CEO



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
LIST OF PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS
JUNE 30, 2024

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Andrew Shelton
President, Division 2
Term expires November 2024
(Did not run for re-election)

Mark Wright
Director, Division 1
Term expires November 2026

Joe Tonascia
- Director, Division 3
Term expires November 2024
(Re-elected to 2028)

1g Williams
gl sident, Division 4
~ Term Expires November 2026

President,
Term Expires

DISTRICT COUNSEL
Jeremy Liem ‘
Pipal, Spurzem & Liem, LLP
Attorneys at Law

GENERAL MANAGER
Dana Jacobson

ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER
Brett Miller, CPA, CPFO

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of the District is to preserve the economic and environmental wealth and well-
being of San Benito County through the control, management and conservation of waters and
the provision of water services in a practical, cost-effective and responsible manner.

Xi



mx

) . . . i tn
(D) mp susds {1} puigmygoy gy, ————
JITOITY JIURNSIY —— o
MUORIOL]JENRIN T SIDNOEIY I
|
e : : [E¥Y e
\ {1338 AR . €y
oY EE.M««“ ZWMMMS% Ea.wm %LWQ [iE] v»mwwﬁ%ﬁum T Saurusiely bumnw:w_w”:zanwa«
111 sesSosg sy ; - ) S N i BONDGUISLT 01EAY o .
uEungg RN UMIBAIDNIN Y IO o / MEMOETY /IO
- DIUBLEANP Y
| |
E , e Efgm“uwzéwam WMMMMNMHMMH (1) oty
fnsindng UOTIEAIIRETY SO ¥ suoneado) i dindaqy
| |
[£¥)
sotieg 10w
|

YL 24

11}
anfeunpy [RpUSD

pauoy pusg |

SI010331(] JO preog]

vZ0T ‘0€ dunp

jIey)) jpuoneziuediQ

LONILSIA YILVA ALNNOD OLINIA NVS




2511 Garden Road 379 West Market Street
Suite A180 Salinas, CA 93901
Monterey, CA 93940 831-424-2737

M K 831-373-3337 Fax 831-424-7936
Fax 831-373-3437

McGilloway | Ray
Brown | Kaufman

ACCOUNTANTS AND CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
of San Benito County Water District
Hollister, California

Opinions
We have audited the financ atements of the business-type activities and the aggregate fund
information of San Benito County Water District (the District), as of and for the year ended June

related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financ
the respective financial position

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with au
States of America. Our responsibilities under tho
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statem
be independent of the San Benito County Wate
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufﬁc1ent an, appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions. .

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Gerald Ray, CPA | Patricia Kaufman, CPA, CGMA | Smriti Shrestha, CPA

Daniel M. McGilloway, CPA, CVA | Sarita Shannon, CPA | Whitacy Emest, CPA | Laura Armbruster, CPA |
Rose Maxwell, CPA | Elconora Garra, CPA | Lisette Craft, CPA



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements asa whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedure; include examlrung, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and

concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audi :ndmgs, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. ‘

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, schedule of the District’s retirement plan’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability (asset) and related ratios, schedule of the District’s pension plan
contributions, schedule of changes in the District’s net Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)
liability, and schedule of the District’s OPEB contributions, as identified in the accompanying
table of contents, information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s



responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The schedule of net position by
zone and the schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net position by zone. Such information
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The schedule of net
position by zone and the schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net position by zone are
the responsibility of management and has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in rdance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of net position by zone and the schedule of
revenues, expenses” in net posmon by zone are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial st

Other Information

‘information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial
statements do not cover the other 1nformat10n, e do not express an opinion or any form of
assurance thereon. ~ K

Management is responsible for tk

W,@,m; |7

McGilloway, Ray, Brown & Kaufman
Salinas, California
January 29, 2025



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

This section of the District's annual financial report presents our analysis of the District's financial
performance during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the
Financial Statements which follows this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The net position at June 30, 2024 was $165,769,939 which reflects an increase of
$16,311,582 from prior year.

e Operating revenue was $16,123,175 and operating expenses including depreciation and
amortization was $16,797,217. Additionally, non-operating revenue was $17,196,375,
consisting primarily of tax assessments and grant revenue.

e Non-operating revenue increased $4,148,009 and non-operating expenses increased by
$20,644 which resulted in a $4,127,365 net increase over prior year.

OVERVIEW OF THE B/ C. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis are i nded to serve as an introduction to the San Benito County
i The Dlstnct‘s basic ﬁnancxal statements have three

n and analysis.

t report information about the District using accounting

methods similar to those used by pri
and long-term information about its ac

deferred outflows of resources,

The Statement of Net Position includes all of th 1sset
s information about the nature and

liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources;:-
amount of investment in resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors (liabilities).
This statement provides the financial information to'evaluate the capital structure of the District
and to assess the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District. Th ifference between the
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is shown as net
position. Over time, increase or decrease in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the District is improving or deterioratin

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position report all of the current year
revenues and expenses. This statement reports the financial impact of the District's activities over
the past year and can be used to determine whether the District has successfully recovered all of
its costs through its user fees, charges and other revenues.

The Statement of Cash Flows is intended to provide information about the District's cash receipts
and cash payments during the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments,
and net changes in cash as a result of operations, capital activities, and investments.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide a description of the accounting policies used to
prepare the financial statements and present material disclosure required by Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) that are not otherwise present in the financial statements.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT

Net Position

The following is the condensed Statement of Net Position for the fiscal years ended June 30,2024
and 2023:

San Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2024 and 2023

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Change

2024 2023 Amount Percent
Current assets . $ 95,354,864 $§ 81,655,226 $13,699,638 16.8%
Other assets .. 18,299,602 19,479,202 (1,179,600) -6.1%

Capital assets, net 2,307,065 81,393,121 913,944 1.1%

Total Assets 182,527,549 13,433,982 7.4%

Deferred outflows of reséiifées 3,189,374 (1,148,107) -36.0%

Current liabilities 6,970,895 (1,835,001) -26.3%
Long-term habilities 27,529,405 (1,675,080) -6.1%
Total Liabilities 30,990,219 34,500,300 (3,510,081) -10.2%
Deferred inflows of resources 1,242,640 (515,626)  -29.3%

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 77,209,985 75,752,993 ‘ 56,992 1.9%
Restricted 36,158,766 30,618,76 5,539,999 18.1%
Unrestricted 52,401,188 43,086,59 9,314,591 21.6%
Total Net Position $165,769,939 $ 149,458,357 $16,311,582 10.9%

Net position increased in 2024 to $165,769,939 up $16,311,582 from fiscal year end 2023.

The increase in restricted net position reflects the contributions to restricted reserves for future
repayment of the USBR Amendatory Contract (refer to Notes to Basic Financial Statements No.
14), capital asset replacement related to the Water Treatment plants per the Hollister Urban Area
Water Supply and Treatment Agreement (HUWSTA), Reach 1 Facilities for major repair and
replacements and the Other Post Employment Benefit Trust (OPEB).

Net investment in capital assets increased by $1,456,992. This is a direct result of the principal
payments on the City National obligation and acquisitions of capital assets.

The change in current assets is $13,699,638, which reflects a cash increase of $28,291,799 of
which $1,181,098 is in restricted cash. Prepaid expenses increased by $296,730 and accounts
receivable increased by $404,880.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

The decrease in long term liabilities is the net result of the payments received for unearned revenue
related to the HUWSTA Contract and the decrease in the net pension liability.

At the end of the fiscal year 2024, the District had $2,041,267 of Deferred Outflows of Resources
and $1,242,6640 of Deferred Inflows of Resources. Deferred Outflows of Resources decreased by
$1,148,107 and Deferred Inflows of Resources decreased by $515,626 over the prior year. The
activity reflects changes in assumptions, expected and actual experience, changes in proportion
and contributions to the District’s pension and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) plans.
Additional information on the District’s pension and OPEB plans can be found in Notes to Basic
Financial Statements Nos. 10 and 12.

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The following is the Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023:

San Benito County Water District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

iscal Year Ended June 30, Change
2024 2023 Amount Percent

Revenues: -
Operating revenues $ lk:6,\ 114,162 $§ 8,518,178 § 7,595,984 89.2%
Nonoperating revenues 13,091,767 4,113,621  314%
Total Revenues 21,609,94: 11,709,605 54.2%
Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization
expense (3,757,321) 28.,514) 3.5%
Operating expense (13,039,896) (772,064) 6.3%
Nonoperating expense (210,751) (20,644) 10.9%
Total Expenses (17,007,968)  (16,086,746) (921,222) 5.7%
Change in Net Position 16,311,582 5,523,199 10,788,383  195.3%
Net Position, Beginning of Year 149,458,357 143,935,158 5,523,199 3.8%
Net Position, End of Year $165,769,939  $149,458,357 $16,311,582 10.9%

Operating revenue increased by $7,595,984.

Non-operating revenue reflects an increase of $4,113,621 from prior year. The increase reflects
both an increase in property tax revenue and an increase in interest revenue.

Total expenses increased by $921,222. Operating expenses increased by $772,064 primarily due
to an increase in pension and cost of water expenses. The non-operating expense increase of
$20,644 is partially due to the reclassification of multi-year projects in FY 2023 reflecting smaller
amount of them going forward.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2024

The various operating and non-operating revenues are as follows:

SOURCES OF REVENUE
Fiscal Year Ended 2024

8%

Othex_Investment

Nonoperatingncome
Revenues 4%

1%

Grant Revenue

1%

EXPENSES
Fiscal Year Ended 2024

Material &
Equipment

/3%

General and
Administrative
2%

Utility Expenses
4%

Investment
loss
0%
Interest
Expense
1%



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Capital Assets

Capital assets include land and land rights, source of supply plant, pumping plant, transmission
and distribution system, general plant, treatment plant and water rights. The change in general
plant includes three District vehicles and a tractor. The increase in transmission and distribution
plant includes replacement valves and upgrades to the District telemetry equipment and software.
The treatment plant change reflects the tracer study for West Hills. Other significant increases are
in Water Rights. The Reach 1 Capital Improvement is part of the on-going project with Santa Clara
Valley Water District (SCVWD) for major repairs and replacement of equipment at the Reach 1
facilities. The Central Valley Project (CVP) water rights reflect the portion of the payments on the
Second Amendment of the USBR contract that are the capital costs for the San Felipe Division.

At June 30, 2024, the District had $127,016,194 in capital assets with $32,818,177 in accumulated
depreciation and $11,890,952 in accumulated amortization for a net amount of $82,307,065 (refer
to Notes to Financial Statements No. 6).

an Benito County Water District
Condensed Statement of Capital Assets
e 30, 2024 and 2023

Change
2024 2023 Amount Percent

Water rights

Semitropic Water Storage $ 776,726 $ 42,390 5.5%

Central Valley Project 19,035,625 1,872,110 9.8%

San Justo Reservoir 246,462 - 0.0%

Wright Rd Pipeline - 0.0%

Reach 1 capital improvement 57,160 0.6%

Recycled Water Storage Pond . 6,085 0.4%

USBR In-basin capital repayment 2,838,779 - 0.0%
Source of supply plant 3,002,139 - 0.0%
Transmission and distribution plant 21,515,975 238,470 1.1%
Pumping plant 10,271,242 ,271,242 - 0.0%
General plant 2,171,936 1,918,105 253,831 13.2%
Treatment plant 44,417,233 44,379,200 38,033 0.1%
Land and land rights 876,385 876,385 - 0.0%
Construction in process 7,558,511 5,395,325 2,163,186 0.0%
Total capital assets 127,016,194 122,344,929 4,671,265 3.8%
(Accumulated amortization) (11,890,952) (10,106,919) (1,784,033) 17.7%
(Accumulated depreciation) (32,818,177) (30,844,889) (1,973,288) 6.4%
Net capital assets $ 82,307,065 $ 81,393,121 § 913,94 1.1%




San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

Long Term Debt

The District had obtained financing in 2016 for capital improvements related to the HUWSTA and
the Recycled Water projects for a total of $5,500,000 with City National Bank. At the end of this
fiscal year, the District’s remaining obligation for this loan was $2,708,080. Additional
information can be found in Notes to Basic Financial Statements No. 8.

In February 2021, new debt was issued in the amount of $2,905,000 to pay off the USBR In-Basin
Capital obligation to be consistent with the WIIN Act. Additional information can be found in
Notes to Basic Financial Statements No. 8 and 14.

In April 2021, new debt was issued in the amount of $3,016,000 for the CalPERS Unfunded
Accrued Liability to reduce the interest on the obligation long term. The payment made to
CalPERS is reflected in Deferred Outflows of Resources and will reduce the District’s pension
liability in the next fiscal year. Additional information can be found in Notes to Basic Financial
Statements No. 8 and 1

San Benito County Water District

June 30, Change
2023 Amount Percent
3,077,128  § (369,048) -12.0%

City National Bank loan payable
2021 Water Refinding Obligation
Bond

2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation
Bonds 2,461,000

(174,000)  -6.8%

2,630,001 (169,001)  -64%

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RA’

General Property Tax Revenue

The District’s budget includes revenue from general property tax s nd San Felipe land tax. Changes
to the expected tax revenue are considered in the budgeting process.

Interest Rates

The economic environment has provided some increase in interest rates over the last year. The
District’s investment income is affected by these rates and current economic conditions will be

considered in the budgeting process.

Review of Zone 6 Rates and Charges
The Zone 6 process for the review of rates and charges and development of the annual budget
considers the impact of the following:
1) Proposition 218
Agencies are subject to a statutory landowner notification and protest process for any rate
increases. The District complies with this requirement. Rates have been approved for Zone 6
San Felipe water, Groundwater and Recycled Water through water year 2025-2026.



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

2) San Felipe Project Reach 1

The District, in conjunction with SCVWD has current and future financial obligations for the
operation and maintenance costs of the San Felipe Project, Reach 1 facilities (all facilities from
Pacheco Pumping Plant at San Luis Reservoir to the bifurcation structure at Casa de Fruta). In
2007, the District and SCVWD negotiated an agreement with the intent to clarify the business
relationship between the two entities as it relates to the operations and maintenance of the
Reach 1 facilities. This agreement provided for a review of the current conditions of the
facilities, definition of a standard for operating conditions and development of a program to
keep the facilities at that standard on an ongoing basis.

SCVWD has developed a comprehensive asset management plan for the ongoing maintenance
and repair of the San Felipe Facilities. This asset management plan includes a schedule of
future capital projects. The cost of the ongoing maintenance and repair and capital projects is
considered in the budget £ and rate setting process.

additional valve at blfurcati;on Ad monally, the fire suppression system is being upgraded.
verage of 1 pump repair each year at an

3) United States Bureau of Reclamatmn '
Allocations

water contract that will be delivered in the upcomi
recent years, due to the pumping restrictions in the Delta for th
species and physical drought in the State, water delivery al tions had been reduced.
Allocations also vary from year to year depending on hyd logical conditions. For water
year 2020-2021, the District received 20% of its Agricultural (AG) and 70% of its Municipal
and Industrial (M&I) allocations. In 2021-2022, the District received 0% for AG and 25% of
historic use for M&I. In water year 2022-2023 to the District was 0% AG and 0% M&I. The
USBR allocation for water year 2023-2024 to the District was 100% AG and 100% Mé&I. The
M&] allocation may be adjusted by application for Public Health and Safety needs. The District
includes consideration of these volumes in its rate reviews.

water year w 1ch begins March 1. In past
protection of endangered

4) Zone 6 Groundwater Rates and San Felipe Distribution Rates

The rate base for groundwater rates includes the costs associated with managing the
groundwater basin and the costs associated with percolation. Anticipated projects and program
costs to address groundwater issues and other surface and groundwater management initiatives,
including the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (effective January 2016) are expected
to be included in future rates and charges review. Groundwater rates are expected to increase
as the District worked to recover from the groundwater impact of the drought through active
percolation and the purchase of additional imported water to offset pumping.

San Felipe water rates are based on the operations and maintenance costs associated with the

10



San Benito County Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2023

delivery of San Felipe water. These costs include the District's share of the operations and
maintenance costs for the USBR Central Valley Project, the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water
Authority (SLDMWA), and the San Felipe Reach 1 facility maintained by the SCVWD as well
as the District's own operation and maintenance costs. The pass-through costs from other
agencies are included in the District’s cost of water, and can change as these agencies’ O&M,
capital and power expenses change. Current rates do not fully recover these operating
expenses. The District aims to recover as much of the operating expense as possible through
rates, however, given the changes in volume of water available through the CVP, the coverage
ratio is subject to variability. Consideration of cost recovery from rates is included in the rates
and charges review.

Raw water rates charged to the District’s urban distribution customers (the City of Hollister
and Sunnyslope County Water District) are considered wholesale rates, and are not subject to
Proposition 218. The wholesale rates have been set for water year 2023-2024 to reflect the
cost of additional water purchase required for the water treatment plant supply.

5) San Luis & D
SLDMWA operate
22,500 horsepower pum;; :
is approximately $6 million, a

their respective share of the cos
rewind was completed in May 0

Sout of Delta contractors, including the D1strlct must pay
n each agency’s contract water deliveries. The first
‘and the last umt was completed in May 2023.

6) B.F. Sisk Reservoir Raise Pro;ect o
The USBR is working on a project to raise.the level of the B. F. Sisk Reservoir (commonly
known as San Luis Reservoir) for seismic sa purposes SLDMWaA is doing planning work
to explore the possibility of a concurrent project of raisi dam an additional 10 feet to add
additional storage space for South of Delta contrac ho wish to participate. The District

is a participant in the SLDMWA activity agreement that was executed in February of 2025.

7) Delta Mendota Canal Subsidence

Land subsidence has occurred in areas that surround the D
diminished the carrying capacity of the canal. Repair estimates are approximately $500
million. SLDMWA is leading efforts to seek federal and state funding for the financing of
these repairs. The District would need to pay its proportlonate share of costs that are not funded
by federal or state grants. The District relies on this canal in the delivery of its CVP water.
The solution may have future impact on rates.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a
general overview of the District's finances and to demonstrate the District's accountability for the
money it receives. If you have any questions about this report or need any additional information,
contact the District office.

San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Rd.

Hollister, CA 95023

Phone: (831) 637-8218

Fax: (831) 637-7267
www.sbcwd.com

11



SECTION




San Benito County Water District
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2024
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

2024 2023
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash $ 52,024,834  § 25,014,133
Investments 1,751,855 21,367,622
Receivables, net 3,781,537 3,376,657
Contract receivable - current portion 1,239,271 1,176,176
Prepaid expenses 398,601 101,871
Restricted cash 1,606,098 325,000
Restricted investments 34,552,668 30,293,767
Total current assets 95,354,864 81,655,226
Noncurrent assets:
Contract receivable - nonuirrent 18,224,564 19,479,202
Net OPEB asset 75,038 -
Capital assets
Water rights, net 22,473,042 22,279,330
Depreciable, net 51,399,127 52,842,081
Nondepreciable 8,434,896 6,271,710
Total noncurrent assets 100,606,667 100,872,323
Total assets 195,961,531 182,527,549
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows of resources - pension activities 2,961,821
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB w 227,553
Total deferred outflows of resources © 2,041,267 3,189,374

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
13



San Benito County Water District
Statement of Net Position (contnued)

June 30, 2024

(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued wages and benefits

Compensated absences - current portion

City National Bank loan payable - current portion

2021 Water Refinding Obligation Bond - current portion

2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation Bond - current portion

Due to other agencies

Contract customer water prepayments

Uneamed contract revenue
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absceﬁé“es;;‘; )
Net OPEB liability ‘
Net pension liability
Deposits s
City National Bank loan payable - noncmrent portio:
2021 Water Refimding Obligation Bond - none:
2021 Taxable Revenue Obligation Bond - noncurr
Unearmned contract revenue
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred mflows ofresources

Deferred inflows of resources - pension activities
Deferred nflows of resources - OPEB
Total deferred nflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Revolving fund reserve requirement
Operation and maintenance reserves
Contract repayment reserves
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust
Contract replacement reserves
Reliability charge
Unrestricted
Total net position

2024 2023

1,010,135 2,854,586
45322 47,927
44,251 105,071
381,000 369,048
178,000 174,000
174,000 169,001
1,627,823 1,113,446
436,092 961,640
1,239,271 1,176,176
5,135,894 6,970,895
61,970 49,426
- 10,052
637,709 331,146
105,000 101,500
2,327,080 2,708,080
2,211,000 2,389,000
2,287,000 2,461,000
18,224,566 19,479,201
25,854,325 27,529,405
30,990,219 34,500,300
895,919 1,395,294
346,721 362,972
1,242,640 1,758,266
77,209,985 75,752,993
75,000 75,000
4,630,382 4,395,222
24,685,457 20,872,875
1,047,079 943,914
5,024,780 4,331,756

696,068 -
52,401,188 43,086,597

$ 165,769,939

$ 149,458,357

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

14



San Benito County Water District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes i Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

Operating revenue

Operating expenses:

Cost of water
Wages and employee related expenses
Pension cost expense

Contract services

Material and equipment

General and administrative

Utility expenses .
Deépreciation and a

Total operating ¢ xpenses
Operating k)ss

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Taxes and assessments
Grant revenue

Other nonoperating revenues
Interest revenues

Investment gain (loss)
Interest expense

Other nonoperating expenses

Net nonoperating revenue (€Xpenses)

Change m net position
Net position, begining of year

Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

15

2024 2023
$ 16,114,162 $ 8,518,178
2,203,967 1,875,591
2,753,484 2,770,615
914,502 2,596,779
5,588,512 3,761,037
488,002 398,527
420,696 425,823
670,733 439,460
3,757,321 3,628,807
16,797,217 15,896,639
(683,055) (7,378,461)
12,597,416 12,058,062
324,451 21,965
235,705 263,537
2,582,706 1,349,524
(601,321)
(168,397) (184,837)
- (42,354) (5,270)
12,901,660

5,523,199

149,458,357

143,935,158

$

165,769,939

$

149,458,357




San Benito County Water District
Statement of Cash Flows
For The Year Ended June 30, 2024
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

2024 2023
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from operations $ 16,622,495 $ 10,680,764
Cash payments to suppliers for operations (11,319,740) (5,212,528)
Cash payments to employees for services and related expenses (2,444 217) (2,587,091)
Cash payments for general and administrative expenses (420,696) (425,823)
Cash payments to other agencies (355,272) (1,743,313)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 2,082,570 712,009
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Taxes and assessments ¢ol 12,031,807 11,492,453
Grant revenue 324451 21,965
Net Cash Pro
Non-Capital Fin 12,356,258 11,514,418
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL ANI
RELATED FINANCING AC
Acquisition of capital assets (4,671,265) (2,512,993)
Additions to preliminary survey and ianstructlon mn progress - (854,272)
Principal paid on capital debt : (712,049) (692,471)
Interest on long-term debt (168,397) (184,837)
Net Cash Used for Capital and
Related Financing Activities e 5,551,711) (4,244,573)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received from cash and cash equivalents 5827 1,349,524
Fair market value adjustment 1,465,110 543,057
Maturity of investments 27,450,000 2,906,554
Proceeds from mvestment accounts 1,999,110 -
Purchase of investments (14,092,244) (10,441,081)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities 19,404,682 (5,641,946)
Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash 28,291,799 2,339,908
Balances, Beginning of Year
Cash and cash equivalents 25,014,133 20,973,101
Restricted cash 325,000 2,026,124
Balances, Beginning of Year 25,339,133 22,999,225
Balances, End of Year $ 53,630,932 $ 25,339,133

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
16



San Benito County Water District
Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024
(with prior year data for comparison purposes only)

2024 2023
RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF NET POSITION:
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 52,024,834 $ 25,014,133
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 1,606,098 325,000
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash $ 53,630,932 $ 25,339,133
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss $ (683,055) $ (7,378.461)
Adjustment to reconcile operati 1g loss to net cash provided by operating
activities: : ,
Other nonoperating rev 193,351 214,866
‘ 3,757,321 3,628,807
(8,218) (2,169)
(Increase) decrease in accol 168,947 356418
(Increase) decrease in con ‘act 1,191,543 1,145,669
(296,730) 23,341
; (1,844.451) 1,449,703
Increase (decrease) in due to other agencies 514,377 (873,664)
Increase (decrease) in accrued wages,‘ktbeneﬁt
compensated absences (50,881) (195,494)
Increase (decrease) in other post employme (85,090) (257,323)
Increase (decrease) in pension liabilities . 306,563 2,180,965
Increase (decrease) in deposits o 14,000
Increase (decrease) in contract customer water prepayments ~ 881,289
Increase (decrease) in unearned contract revenue - ( (1,145,671)
Deferred outflows of resources - pension activities - 1,107.314 946,343
Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB 40,793 317,670
Deferred inflows of resources - pension activities (499,375) (530,530)
Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB (16,251) (107,151)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,082,570 3 668,608

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
17



ASSETS
Cash
Receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

NET POSITION

Restricted for the Water Reso

San Benito County Water District
Statement of Fiduciary Fund Net Position
June 30, 2024

Water Resources Association
Custodial Fund

$ 680,954
96,567

777,521

1,838
1,838

Association 775,583
) $ 775,583

E—— e

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
18



San Benito County Water District
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Fund Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Water Resources Association

Custodial Fund
Addition:
Agency contributions $ 262,700
Investment income 33,056
Total addition 295,756
Deductions:
Contract services 190,272
Material and equipment : 7,740
General and administrative ™ 146,883
Total deductions 344,895
Change in net posttion (49,139)
Net position, beghlﬁn}g year 824,722

Net position, end of yeéf $ 775,583

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
19



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The San Benito County Water District (District) is a water conservation and flood control special
district governed by the San Benito County Water Conservation and Flood Control Act codified
as Appendix 70 of the California Water Code.

The District is an independent and autonomous agency, governed by a five-member Board of
Directors directly elected by electors in five divisions. The boundaries of each division are
coterminous with those of the supervisory districts of the County. A director must be a resident
of and a registered voter in the division they represent.

District zones are not distinct or separate units of government from the District and the financial
operations and activities related to those zones of benefits are included within the District's
financial statements as one legal entity. No separate financial statements are prepared for the
individual zones of benefit -

d is used to account for receipts and disbursements
iation, which is administered, but not the liability of,

reporting its assets and liabiliti
associated with the Water Reso
the District. .

ormation to the District’s Financial Statements includes the
financial activities of the District Administration (Zone 1), San Benito River System (Zone 3),
and the San Felipe Project (Zone 6) round Sustainability Plan (Zone 7). These zones
were formed to undertake projects and. prfmie water supply and related benefits to specific
geographic areas within the District. ‘

The accompanying supplementa;

B. Basis of Accounting

The District's single enterprise fund (a business-typ
for using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue
recognized when they are incurred.

VIty) and ﬁducnary fund are accounted
cogmzed when earned, and expenses are

C. Accounting Principles

The accounting policies of the District conform to generally a ,giépted accounting principles as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA).

D. Basis of Presentation and Measurement Focus

The District's single enterprise fund is accounted for on a cost of service or "economic resources”
measurement focus. This means that assets and all activities are included on the statement of net
position. Operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total
assets. The financial statements distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering services in connection with the District's principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for sales and services for
delivering water. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, general and
administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses. Non-operating
revenues include revenues from taxes and assessments that are general purpose and/or special
purpose in nature. The Fiduciary fund is used to account for resources held for the benefit of
parties outside of the District.

20




San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

E. Budgets

The District’s Board of Directors annually adopts a capital and an operating budget for the
ensuing fiscal year effective July 1 as a financial plan for the year. The budget is adopted by the
governing Board as an operating plan. Although there is no legal requirement to report budgetary
basis financial information in this report, the District’s Board of Directors review performance to
budget on a quarterly basis.

Debt Management Policy

The District adopted a debt management policy which outlines the purposes for which debt may
be issued, methods of financing, and the acceptable structure and term of debt obligations.

F. Joint Powers Agreements

The District is a participant in the Association of California Water Agencies, Joint Powers

Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) for the purpose of obtaining property and liability insurance.

The District also participates in the San Luis Delta-Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA) for
ir intaining a portion of the Central Valley Project.

overnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
y and ﬁnancml reporting guidance.

The District applies all:
pronouncements for certain accou

nent of GASB Statement No 62. The primary

Changes and Error Correctzons An Amen ;
unting and financial reporting requirements

objective of this Statement is to enhance ac
for accountmg changes and error correc

after June 15 2023. The Standard had
statements.

Pending Accounting Standards

GASB has issued the following statements which may} impact the District’s financial
reporting requirements in the future:

¢ GASB Statement No. 101 — In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101,
Compensated Absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance
for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and
measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously
required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2023. The District has not yet determined the effect of the
Statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30, 2024.

¢ GASB Statement No. 102 — In December 2023, GASB issued Statement No. 102,
Certain Risk Disclosures. The objective of this Statement is to provide users of
government financial statements with essential information about risks related to a
government’s vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2024, and all reporting periods thereafter. The District has not yet determined

21



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

the effect of the Statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end June 30,
2025.

¢ GASB Statement No. 103 — In April 2024, GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial
Reporting Model Improvements. The objective of this Statement is to improve the key
components of the financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing
information that is essential for decision making and assessing a government’s
accountability. The requirements of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 15, 2025, and all reporting periods thereafter. The District has not yet
determined the effect of the Statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end
June 30, 2026.

¢ GASB Statement No. 104 — In September 2024, GASB issued Statement No. 104,
Disclosure of Certain Capital Assets. The objective of this Statement is to provide users
of government financial statements with essential information about certain types of
capital assets. Th quirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning
after June 1l reporting periods thereafter. The District has not yet
determined the effect of the Statement which would apply to the District’s fiscal year end
June 30, 2026. = %

H. Cash and Investments

Cash and Cash Equlvalents -
deposits, money market accounts
months or less from the date of acq

ind cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand
ort-term mV tments w1th original mamrmes of three

Investments - All investments are stated at fair value, except for money market investments
which have a remaining maturity of less than one year when purchased, which are stated at fair
value.

Under the provisions of the District's investment policy, and in accordance with Section 53601 of
the California Government Code, the following investments are authorized:

U.S. Treasury Obligations, or Federal Agency Securities

FDIC Insured Certificates of Deposit

Fully Collateralized Certificates of Deposit

Commercial Paper (rated in highest short-term ratings category)

California's Local Agency Investment Fund

Securities of the State of California, its agencies, or any local agency within the state
Medium term corporate notes (rated "A" or better)

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit (rated "A" or better)

Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management companies that are money
market funds registered with Securities and Exchange Commission (highest rating by at
least 2 rating organizations)

*

* S & & & & o 0

22



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

¢ Registered Treasury Notes or Bonds of any of the other remaining 49 states
¢ Shares of beneficial interest issued by a joint powers authority organized pursuant to
Section 6509.7

Investment Held in Local Agency Investment Fund - The District participates in the LAIF, an
investment pool managed by the State of California. LAIF has invested a portion of the pool
funds in structured notes and asset-backed securities. LAIF’s investments are subject to credit
risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these investments. In
addition, these structured notes and asset-backed securities are subject to market risk as a result
of changes in interest rates.

LAIF determines value on its investment portfolio based on market quotations for those
securities where market quotations are readily available and based on amortized cost or best
estimate for those securities where market value is not readily available.

The District valued its investments in LAIF as of June 30, 2024, by multiplying its account
balance with LAIF times a fair value factor determined by LAIF value for all LAIF participants
by total aggregate amortized cost.

I. Receivables

Receivables include amounts d
property taxes, contracts, interes
made annually. This allowance cal
aging, and expected economic and in

r utility customers as well as amounts due from
r receivables. An allowance for doubtful accounts is
ted is based on historical loss experience, delinquency

J. Prepaid Expenses

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to

uture accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid expenses.

K. Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and investments represent allocations of cash and investments that are a statutory
or contractual requirements. The District has established various accounts to provide for specific
activities in accordance with special regulations and restrictions placed by contracts, laws, or
regulations of other governments. Specific detail on source of restrictions is provided in Note 8 —
Net Position. Restricted resources are used first to fund expenses incurred.

L. Capital Assets

Capital assets are defined by the District as property with an initial individual cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets with high portability
(computer equipment, furniture, and shop equipment) are considered for capitalization at an
individual cost of more than $2,500.

Capital assets used in operations are depreciated using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. Assets that were placed in service during any fiscal year begin
depreciation on the first day of the next fiscal year.

23



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Source of supply plant 25-75 Years
Transmission and distribution plant 20-75 Years
Pumping plant 7-10 Years
Treatment Plant 7-25 Years
General plant 5-10 Years

Capital assets (including infrastructure) are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical
cost if actual historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are recorded at their
acquisition value, market-based entry price on the date contributed. Maintenance and repairs are
charged to operations when incurred.

ments, which significantly increase values, change capacities, or
ed. Upon sale or retirement of capital assets, the cost and related

Betterments and major impro
extend useful lives, are cap}

expense against operations each year and the tota ount of depreciation taken over the years,
called accumulated deprec1at10n and amortlzatlon is reported on the statement of net position as

works in progress including the District’s share io
costs are capitalized and depreciated at the compl
District’s Capital Asset Policy.

M. Water Rights

The District participates in various water storage and water ights agreements for imported
surface water. These agreements are included in capital assets as water rights.

N. Compensated Absences — Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

The District's employment policy provides for the accumulation of earned vacation leave and
vested sick leave. Due to the limited number of employees, the District has elected not to
conduct actuarial assessments of sick leave. Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are
recognized as an expense and a liability at the time the benefit vests. Accrued vacation and sick
leave are reported as current liabilities on the statement of net position.

Maximum vacation accruals are based on years of service within the District. All full-time
employees hired prior to July 1, 2020 are eligible for six (6) days of sick leave per fiscal year.
All full-time employees hired on or after July 1, 2020 are eligible for twelve (12) days of sick
leave per fiscal year. Unused sick leave may be carried over to the limit of 1,040 hours.

24



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Below is a summary of the changes in the balances of compensated absences is as follows:

June 30, 2023 Balance $ 154,497
Additions 244,697
Payments (292,973)
June 30, 2024 Balance $ 106,221

O. Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS)

The District offers two retirement plans to its employees. Employees hired before January 1,
2013 or hired after January 1, 2013 who meet the definition of “Classic Member” as defined by
CalPERS are members of the CalPERS Classic Plan. Employees hired after January 1, 2013 are
members of the California Public Employees' Pension Reform Act Plan (PEPRA Plan).

For purposes of measurin net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the San
Benito County Water D trict’s California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)
plans (Plans) and additions to/deducti ns from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS finance office. For this purpose,
benefit payments (includin employee contributions) are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the bene Investments are reported at fair value. See Note 9
for the CalPERS Classic Plan disclos

GASB 68 requires that the report;éd results must p
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the-

in to liability and asset information within
ing timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) ~ June 30, 2022

Measurement Date (MD) . June 30, 2023

Measurement Period (MP) “}E;Julyl, 2022 to June 30, 2023
Unfunded Accrued Liabili

A policy was adopted to address the management of the ongoing . associated with the
District. The policy includes target funding objectives, strategies for mlmmlzmg the lLability,
and consideration of Additional Discretionary Payments during the budgeting process.

P. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The District provides post-employer retirement benefits to its employees to assist with future
medical premium costs.

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District’s plan (OPEB Plan) and additions to/deductions from the OPEB Plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis. Generally accepted accounting
principles require that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes.

GASB 75 requires that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information within
certain defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used:

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2023
Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2023
Measurement Period (MP) Julyl, 2022 to June 30, 2023

25



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Q. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position has a separate section for deferred outflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expenses/expenditure) until then. The District has the following items that
qualify for reporting in this category:
¢ Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 9.

¢ Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB are reported in the statement of net
position as described further in Note 11.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position has a separate section for deferred inflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position th apphes to future penods and will not be recogmzed as an

R. Net Position e
The statement of net posmon reports all ﬁnan01

that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or 1mprovem "n sof those assets.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of constraints placed on the use of net
positions by external restrictions imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants),
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted — This category represents net positions of the District that do not meet the
definition of "Restricted" or "Net investment in capital assets, net of related debt."

S. Operating Revenue Recognition

Revenue from water sales is based on customer usage which is recognized on a monthly basis or
when the customer is contractually obligated to pay, whichever comes first. Well permitting and
other operating revenues are recognized at the time the service is provided.

26



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

T. Property Taxes and Assessments

Property taxes and assessments are collected by the County of San Benito and are payable by the
taxpayer in two installments each year. The District recognizes property taxes and assessments as
non-operating revenue in the fiscal year of levy.

The District levies the following voter-approved taxes and assessments:

¢ A land tax on behalf of San Felipe Division of the Central Valley Project (Zone 6). This
tax is a per annum assessment based on the assessed valuation of land for properties
within Zone 6.

¢ A standby charge for the availability of service from the San Felipe Distribution system

on properties in the area of Zone 6 served by the pressurized distribution system. This
per-acre charge is established annually by the Board of Directors.

+ In addition to special : rpose taxes and assessments, the District receives a portion of the
County of San Benito general purpose tax, which is allocated to the District by the
County.

U. Grants

In the normal course o i the District receives grant funds from Federal and State
‘audit by agents of the granting authority, the purpose

of which is to ensure compliance
for reimbursement, which may arise ;

V. Amortlzatmn

repayment of the capital cost associated with the San Felipe Division: The capital component is
capitalized as Water Rights at the time it is paid and mortized usmg 1e straight-line method,
over the remaining entitlement period. Current interest on this contract is expensed as it is paid
and recorded in Cost of Water.

Capital projects related to the operations and maintenance of t n Felipe Division Reach 1 are
capitalized, and the associated costs are amortized using the straight-line method, over the
estimated useful life of the asset.

W. Restricted and Unrestricted Resources

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s practice
to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

X. Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Those estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and-liabilities, and
the reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could vary from the estimates that were used.

Y. Reclassification
Certain amounts in the prior year’s financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
current year’s financial statement presentation.

27



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2024 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Primary Government

Cash $ 52,024,834
Investments 1,751,855
Restricted Cash 1,606,098
Restricted Investments 34,552,668
Total Cash and Investments with primary government 89,935,455

Fiduciary Fund
Cash 680,954
$ 90,616,409

Total Cash and Investmer

e District's cash and investments, including restricted
rere as follows:

The bank balance aﬁd carryin
and designated balances, at’

Undesignated
stricted Designated ~ Unrestricted Total

Petty Cash - 3 200 § 200
Union Bank of California - 4,423,658 4,423,658
Heritage Bank of Commerce % - 2,119,664 2,119,664
Local Agency Investment Fund 16,908,762 28,572,550 47,183,334
Union Bank Investment Services 33,505,589 - LT51.855 35,257,444
Santa Clara Valley Water District “ |

(San Felipe - Reach 1 Reserve) 585,030 - - 585,030
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 1,047,079 - 1,047,079
Total $36,839,720  $16908,762 $36867.927 § 90,616,409

Deposits - Cash balances held in banks are qualified as "public funds"; these funds must be FDIC
insured or collateralized by the Depository at a rate of 110% and comply in all aspects with the
provisions of Title 5, Division 2, Part 1, Chapter 4, Article 2 (commencing with Section 53630)
of the Government Code.

As of June 30, 2024, the District had the following cash and investment maturities:

‘ Value Cost 0-3 Months ~ 4-12 Months  13-36 Months
Petty Cash $ 200 § 200 § 200 $ - $ -
Union Bank of California 4,423,658 4423,658 4,423,658 -
Local Agency Investment Fund 47,183,334 47,183,334 47,183,334 -
Heritage Bank of Commerce 2,119,664 2,119,664 2,119,664 -
Santa Clara Valley Water District 585,030 585,030 585,030 -
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 1,047,079 538,223 1,047,079 - .
Union Banc Investment Services 35,257 444 35,078,203 12,394,025 11,203,263 11,660,156
Total $ 90616409 § 89928312 $67,752,990 $11,203,263 $11,660,156

28



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Investments

The District has an investment policy that is overseen by the Investment Committee of the Board
of Directors. The investment policy conforms to state law and guidelines and is based on prudent
money management principles and practices.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of
its fair value to changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting exposure to fair value
losses arising from rising interest rates, the District's investment policy limits the maturity of
investments not to exceed 5 years without authorization by the Board of Directors at least 3
months prior to the investment.

Information about the sensm ty of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest
rate fluctuations is provided by the preceding table that shows the distribution of the District’s
investment by maturity

Concentration of Cre
Concentration of credit ri
investment in a single issuer.
mutual funds, and external in
investments represent a concens
credit risk investments.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investmen
and that the District will not be able to rec
securities. Credit risk is mitigated by investi
Agency securities and in other high-quality investm
the failure of any issuer would not unduly harm the D District’s cash flov
its investments by security type and institution. The District only i
that are considered very safe.

As of June 30, 2024, the District’s investments with the Local Agency Investment Fund were not
categorized as to custodial credit risk. The restricted cash for San Felipe Reach 1 Reserve of
$585,030 is held by Santa Clara Valley Water District within its General Fund.

loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
ts in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities,
Is) that represent 5% or more of total District
iscal year end, the District had no concentration of

ris]

will not fulfill its obligation to the District
the value of its investments or collateral
in U.S. Treasury Obligations, Federal
s, and- by dlvers'fymg the portfolio so that
The District diversifies
s.in those instruments

29



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Summarized below are the ratings of the District’s cash and investments:

Veribanc, % of

Issuers Value S&P  Moodys Inc. Total

Local Agency Investment Fund § 47,183,334 NR NR NR 52.1%
Union Bank 4423658 A+/ST-2 Baa2  Green/***  4.9%
Heritage Bank 2,119,664 NR NR  Green/***  23%
Santa Clara Valley Water District 585,030 NR NR NR  0.6%
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust 1,047,079 NR NR NR 1.2%
UBC Investments 35257444 A+/ST-2 Baa2  Greew/** 389%
Total $ 90,616,209 100.0%

*NR - denotes Not Rated

Green — denotes the institution’s. equrty exceeds five percent of its assets and it was profitable during
the most recent reporting q ff"er of the three color categories, this is the highest based on the
criteria described.
*** _ denotes mstltutmzs,‘that have a Three rating.

Custodial Credit Risk =

Custodial credit risk for deposits.
financial institution, the District °
recover collateral securities that are n

he rigk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
e able to recover its deposits or will not be able to
the possession of an outside party.

, depending on specific types of eligible
ed as collateral with its Agent having a fair
5051t All f the District’s dep051ts are either

Under California Government Code Section 53651
securities, a bank must deposit eligible securities p
market value of 105% of the District’s cash on
insured by the Federal Depository Insurance C
securities held in the trust department of the |
accordance with the California Government Code. -

Investment in State Investment Pool Yy,

The District participates in LAIF, an investment pool managed by the State of California. The
LAIF is a special fund of the California State Treasury through which local governments may
pool investments. At June 30, 2024, the total fair value amount invested by all public agencies in
LAIF is $178.04 billion and managed by the State Treasurer. No amounts were invested in
derivative financial products. The Local Investment Advisory Board (Board) has oversight
responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute. The
fair value of the District’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial
statements at amounts based upon the District’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF
for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance
available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis.

Disclosures Related to Fair Value Measurement

The District measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-
tiered fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical
assets or liabilities in active markets.

30



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
assets or liability, either directly or indirectly and fair value is determined through the use of
models or other valuation methodologies including:

» Quoted price for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

> Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are inactive.
> Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.
>

Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair
value measurement. Theses unobservable inputs reflect the District’s own assumptions about
the inputs market partlcipants would use in pricing the asset or liability (including
assumptions about risk). The unobservable inputs are developed based on the best
information available in the circumstances and may include the District’s own data.

Deposits and withdrawals in g
basis of $1 and not fairv:
share in these types of in
Level 2, or Level 3 inputs.

rnmental investment pools, such as LAIF, are made on the
oly, the District’s measured fair value of its proportionate
ased on uncategorized inputs not defined as a Level 1,

The District had the following recurrm fair value measurements as of June 30, 2024

Level 2 Level 3
$. 35,257,444 $ -

Investment Type Total
U.S Treasury Notes  § 35,257,444

3. RECEIVABLES, NET
Receivables at June 30, 2024 consisted of the followin

Water utility customer receivables, net of allowance ) Y $ 683,200

Interest receivable 647,156
Property tax and assessment receivables 324,284
Grant receivables, net of retention £ 4 15,407
Agency receivables ) 2,111,490
Total receivables, net $ 3,772,947

The Water utility customer receivables above reflect an allowance for doubtful accounts in the
amount of $62,174.

Grant receivables are recorded net of retention. The District has one grant at June 30, 2024 that is
expected to be complete in the next fiscal year.

Agency receivables are reimbursements due from other agencies for shared expenses per
cooperative memorandum of understandings related to projects. These receivables represent the
expenses for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and are expected to be reimbursed in the next
fiscal year.

31



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

4. CONTRACT RECEIVABLE

In August 2013, the District, Sunnyslope County Water District (SSCWD) and City of Hollister
(COH) each approved the Hollister Urban Water Supply and Treatment Agreement (HUWSTA).
The agreement defined the roles and terms of financing for the project which included the
upgrade of Lessalt Water Treatment Plant, the design and construction of the West Hills Water
Treatment Plant and associated pipelines. The District was to finance, build, own and operate the
upgraded Lessalt Water Treatment Plant and the new West Hills Water Treatment Plant.

The District financed $30 million of the project costs. The District contributed $10 million in
non-reimbursable funds, of which $4 million was made available for the first tranche of
financing and $6 million was made available for the second tranche of financing. COH opted to
use their share of the non-reimbursable funds to buy down the capital component. SSCWD used
their share as rate stabilization which was applied to the finished water payments during the first
years of operation. The District funded the first tranche of $13 million on the effective date of the
agreement. The second anche of $17 million was made available on May 1, 2015, to support
the execution of a contract for conStructlon of the West Hills Water Treatment Plant. In January
2016, the third tranche of finan 1g for $4 million was funded through a loan agreement with
City National Bank. ‘

The agreement calls for the DIS i

i ser this investment in the capital projects from the
COH and SSCWD over a 15-30 vea d through a capital component, including interest, in
the finished water rate. At June 30, 2024, the tranches combined capital component is
$19,463,837. The current portion of the contract is*$1,239,271 and is reflected in current assets.
The noncurrent portion of $18,224,564 is reflected in noncurrent assets. The current unearned
portion of the contract of $1,239,271 is included as unearned contract revenue.

32



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

S. CAPITAL ASSETS

The changes in capital assets of the District for the year ended June 30, 2024 are summarized as
follows:

Balance as of Current Year Activity Balance as of
June 30, 2023 Additions  Dispositions June 30, 2024

Water rights
Semitropic Water Storage $ 776,726 § 42390 § - $ 819,116
Central Valley Project 19,035,625 1,872,110 - 20,907,735
San Justo Reservorr 246,462 - - 246,462
Wright Rd Pipeline 830,850 - - 830,850
Reach 1 capital improvement 9,985,046 57,160 - 10,042,206
Recycled Water Storage Pond-. 1,511,540 6,085 - 1,517,625
USBR In-basm capital repaymsnt: § 2,838,779 - - 2,838,779
Depreciable capital assets - "
Source of supply plant . 3,002,139 - - 3,002,139
Transmission and distribution plant 21 271,505 238,470 - 21,515,975
Pumping plant ‘ ; - - 10,271,242
General plant 253,831 - 2,171,936
Treatment plant 38,033 - 44,417,233
Non-depreciable capital assets -
Land and land rights 876,385 - 876,385
Construction in process 5,395,‘325% ‘ - 7,558,511
Total capital assets 122,344,929 - 127,016,194
(Accumulated amortization) (10,106,919) - (11,890,952)
(Accumulated depreciation) (30,844,889 - (32,818,177)
Net capital assets $ 81,393,121 - $ 82,307,065

33




San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Amortization and depreciation expense was charged to projects for the year ended June 30, 2024
as follows:

Balance as of Current Year Activity Balance as of
June 30, 2023 Increase Decrease  June 30, 2024
Amortization
Water Rights
Central Valley Project § (5,117959) § (994244) % - § (6,112,203)
San Justo Reservoir (171,089) (24,645) - (195,734)
Wright Rd Pipeline (96,931) (13,849) - (110,780)
Reach 1 capital improvement (4,049,084) (500,097) - (4,549,181)
Recycled water-storage pond (293,349) (61,949) - (355,298)
USBR In-basin capital repayment (378,507) (189,249) - (567,756)

(10,106919)  (1,784,033) (11,890952)

Total amortization

Depreciation
Source of supply plan +(1,906,483) (48,612) - (1,955,095)
Transmission and distrib (391,543) - (11,883,840)
Pumping plant (250,743) - (8,764,989)
General plant 82,742) (101,795) - (1,384,537)
Treatment plant (7,649,121) (1,180,595) - (8,829,716)
Total depreciation __(30,844,889) . 973,288) - (32,818,177)
Amortization and depre ciation $(40,951,808) - $(3,757321) $ - $ (44,709,129)

6. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES

Powers Agreements (JPA) with the
& Delta-Mendota Water Authority.
The relationship between the District and the JP | s are not component

units of the District for financial reporting purposes.

Association of California Water Agencies-Joint Powers rance Kuthority (ACWA-

JPIA)
The ACWA-JPIA arranges for and provides property and liability insurance for its nearly 394
members. ACWA-JPIA is governed by a board consisting of a representative from each member
district. The board controls the operations of ACWA-JPIA, including selection of management
and approval of operating budgets, independent of any influence by the member districts beyond
their representation on the board.

Each member district pays a premium commensurate with the level of coverage requested and
shares surpluses and deficits proportionate to their participation in ACWA-JPIA. Separate
financial statements of ACWA-JPIA can be obtained by request to Finance Department, 2100
Professional Drive, Roseville, CA 95661.

San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA)

The SLDMWA operates and maintains a portion of the Central Valley Project (CVP) for its 27
members. SLDMWA is governed by a board consisting of representatives from each member
district. The board controls the operations of the SLDMWA, including selection of executive
management and approval of operation and maintenance budgets, independent of any influence
by the member district beyond their representation on the board. Each member district pays

34



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

membership dues proportionate to their United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR) water
contract entitlement and operation and maintenance costs based on conveyance rates established
by the SLDMWA. Separate financial statements of SLDMWA can be obtained at P.O. Box
2157, Los Banos, CA 93635.

Condensed financial information of ACWA-JPIA and SLDMWA is as follows:

September 30,
2023 February 28, 2022
ACWA-JPIA SLDMWA
Total assets $ 288,462,503 $ 110,196,857
Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,654,911 187,252
Total liabilities ", (167,203,667) (99,182,091)
Deferred Inflows of Resources© (5,200,835) -

Net Position $ 120,712,912 $ 11,202,018

$ 248,013,664  § 193,650,307
(240,084,673) (194,307,491)
$ 7928991 §  (657,184)

Total revenues
Total expenditures
Net increase (decrease)

7. LONG TERM LIABILITIES |
The following is a summary of Iong-te;gm liabik‘li\i}i,esf* r the year ended June 30, 2024:

June 30,

June 30, Due Within
2023 2024 One Year
Direct Borrowing and
Placement
City National Bank Loan o
Payable $ 3077128 § - % 369,048 $ 381,000
2021 Water Revenue
Refinding Obligation Bonds "
(WIIN Act Project) 2,563,000 2,389,000 178,000
2021 Taxable Revenue
Obligation Bonds (CalPERS UAL) 2,630,001 - 169,001 2,461,000 174,000
Total Direct Borrowing
and Placement $ 8,270,129 3§ - $ 712,049 $ 7,558,080 $ 733,000

35



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

City National Bank Loan

In December 2015, the District entered into a loan agreement with Municipal Finance
Corporation for the amount of $5,500,000. This loan was immediately transferred to City
National Bank. The loan is payable in quarterly installments for a term of 15 years beginning
April 2016. The annual interest rate is 3.2% and is reflected as non-operating interest expense.

This financing is in support of capital projects related to the HUWSTA and Recycled Water.
Repayment of the loan is from pledged future revenues. The outstanding principal balance at
June 30, 2024 was $2,708,080.

The District has no unused lines of credit with City National Bank or any other entity. The net
revenues have been pledged as collateral for the City National Bank debt. The District must
maintain a debt service coverage ratio of 1.15:1. Events of default include failure to make timely
payments, violation of debt service covenant and bankruptcy. City National Bank has the option
to accelerate principal and interest payments as a remedy of default.

The following is a s ary of principal maturities of City National Bank loan debt as of June

Interest Total
2025 381,000 § 82,117 § 463,117
2026 393,339 69,778 463,117
2027 57,039 463,117
2028 43,888 463,117
2029 30311 463,117
2030-2031 19,043 694,671
Total $3,010,256

2021 Water Revenue Refunding Obligation Bonds (WIIN Act Prolect

On February 8, 2021, the Board authorized the issuance o ries 2621 Water Revenue
Refunding Obligations in the amount of $2,905,000. The closing was undertaken and
consummated on February 24, 2021 with Zions Bancorporation, N.A. This financing funded the
repayment of San Benito County’s “in-basin” portion of the CVP capital costs pursuant to the
Water Infrastructure Improvement of the Nations Act in the amount of $2,838,779 and the
issuance cost of $66,221. The Bank purchased the obligations and had no present intent of
reoffering the Obligations to the general public and intend to hold the Obligations as a portfolio
investment. The loan is payable with annual principal and semi-annual interest payments at the
rate of 2.02% for 15 years. Payments will begin in August 2021 and end February 2036. The
outstanding principal balance as of June 30, 2024 was $2,389,000.

36



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Debt service requirements to maturity for 2021 Water Revenue Refunding Obligation Bonds
(WIIN Act Project) are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 $§ 178,000 $ 48,257 $ 226,257
2026 181,000 44,662 225,662
2027 185,000 41,006 226,006
2028 189,000 37,269 226,269
2029 193,000 33,451 226,451
2030-2034 1,025,000 107,161 1,132,161
2035-2036 438,000 13,311 451,311
Total $ 2,389,000 $ 325117  $2,714,117

2021 Taxable Revenue Obligati s.(CalPERS UAL)

nia State Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS)
- the Dlstnct and CalPERS, as amended from time to

time (the “CalPERS Con )
providing retirement benefits for its reti alPERS determines, based on actuarial methods, a

ty (UAL). On April 14, 2021 the Board
‘Revenue Obligations in the amount of
CalPERS UAL Prepayment project. The

$3,016,000 with Resolution No. 2021 05 to fun
Obligation was financed with Sterling Nation
$3,016,000 comprised of the CalPERS UAL payoff o
The loan is payable with annual principal and semi-annual inter:

are as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Principal Interest Total

2025 § 174,000 $ 69,320 § 243,320
2026 179,000 64,167 243,167
2027 184,000 58,867 242,867
2028 190,000 53,407 243,407
2029 195,000 47,786 242,786
2030-2034 1,067,000 148,643 1,215,643
2035-2036 472,000 13,870 485,870
Total $ 2,461,000 $ 456,059 $2,917,059

37



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

8. NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Designations of unrestricted
net position represent the District Board of Director’s intention for the use of resources. The net
position amounts at June 30, 2024 were as follows:

Net investment in capital assets $ 77,209,985
Restricted:
District Revolving Fund Reserve 75,000
Operation and Maintenance Reserves
San Felipe-Hollister Conduit Reserve 250,000
San Felipe-Reach 1 Reserve 585,030
Reach 1 Major Repair - Replacement Reserve 3,795,352
USBR Contract Repayment - Rate Management Reserve 24,685,457
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust Reserve 1,047,079
Hollister Urban-Area Project
Reliability charge 696,068
Replacement Reserve 5,024,780
Total restricted 36,158,766
Unrestricted: |
Designated
Operations 3,338,022
Capital Asset Replacement 4,063,736
Capttal Improvements 5,492,339
Self-Insurance 100,000
Water Supply 2,270,980
Pacheco Reservoir . 1,643,685
16,908,762
Undesignated " 35,492,426
Total unrestricted 52,401,188
Total net position $ 165,769,939

Restricted Net Position

Net position is restricted when constraints placed on their use are externally imposed by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments. They are also
restricted if their use is constrained by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation. There are no net positions restricted by enabling legislation.

38



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Restricted Net Position Source of Restriction

San Benito County Water Conservation and Flood Control
District Act (Section 70-7).

District Revolving Fund
Reserve

USBR Contract Central Valley Project-Contract Between the
United States and San Benito County Water Conservation and
Flood Control District for Water Service and for Operation
and maintenance of Certain Works of the San Felipe Division
(Contract # 8-07-20-W0130).

USBR San Felipe Division-Contract for the Transfer of the
San Felipe Reach 1 Operation and Maintenance of Certain San Felipe Division
.| Facilities (Contract # 6-07-20-X0290): United States, Santa
Clara Valley Water District, and San Benito County Water
Conservation and Flood Control District.

San Felipe-Hollister
Conduit Reserve

Reserve

reement Between Santa Clara Valley Water District and
ito County Water District for Repayment and
ment of San Felipe Division Facilities.

| Agr etween Santa Clara Valley Water District and
San Benito County Water District for Repayment and
Management of San Felipe Division Facilities.

USBR Contract Rép ment
Rate Management Resery

Reach 1 Major Repair and
Replacement Reserve

Hollister Urban Area HolhsterUrbanA L Water Supply and Treatment Agreement
Project Water Treatment between the San Benito County Water District, City of
Facilities-Replacement Hollister, and S

slope County Water District.
Reserve %,

Agreement Between enito County Water District and

Other Post Empl t X . irem
€ Tost bmploymen California Employee Retirement Ben

Benefit Trust (OPEB)
Reserve

Funds collected for the Reliabi Charge can only be used on
Reliability Charge M&I projects related to future water reliability

9. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS

A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description - All qualified employees are eligible to participate in the San Benito County
Water District’s (the District) Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, cost-sharing multiple
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the California Public Employees
Retirement System (CalPERS). The District selects optional benefit provisions from the benefit
menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through local ordinance. CalPERS
issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plans regarding
benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the CalPERS
website.

39




San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Benefits Provided - CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of
living adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full-time
employment.

The District’s Plans’ provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2024, are summarized as
follows:

Miscellaneous
Classic PEPRA
Prior to On or after
January 1, 2013 January I, 2013

Benefit formula 2.5% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years of service 5 years of service
Retirement age r 55 62
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 2.5% 2.0%
Required employee contribution r 7.960% 7.750%
Required employer contribution ra 13.340% 7.680%

On January 1, 2013, the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA) took effect.

eteriﬁméd ﬁthro‘ h the CalPERS annual

change in the rate. The total plan contributions are
actuarial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the est amount necessary to
finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an addltlonal amount to
finance any unfunded accrued liability. The District is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution ra employees.

The District’s contributions were as follows:

Fiscal Year Paid
2023/24 2022/23
Misc Classic $ 101,185 $ 128,162
Misc PEPRA 70,173 51,825
Additional UAL - 9,974

$ 171,358 5 189,961

40



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

B. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2024, the District reported net pension liabilities (assets) for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 were as follows:

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability

Fiscal Year Ended
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
District's Miscellanecous Plan $ 637,709 $ 331,146
Total Net Pension Liability $ 637,709 $ 331,146

The District’s net pens1on liability is measured as the proportionate share of the net pension
liability. The net pension liability is measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability
used to calculate the net sion liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,
2022. The District’s pr ion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the
District’s long-term: share of ¢ '_tI‘lbutIOIlS to the pension plans relative to the projected
contributions for all partici ” s, actuarially determined.

The District’s proportionate share of the ne - pension liability as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 were
as follows: | o
Percentage Share of Plan Change:

6/30/202 6/30/2023 Increase

6/30/2022

Measurement date

Percentage of Plan (PERF C) NPL 0.00224%

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District rece
30, 2024, the District reported deferred outflows
related to pensions from the following sources:

: . Deferred Inflows

. of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 5,054
Changes of assumptions -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan mvestments 103,251 -
Change in employer proportion 979,609 440,617
Difference between the employer's contribution and

the employer's proportionate share of contributions 529,210 450,248
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date 171,358 -

Total $ 1,854,507 $ 895,919

The deferred outflows of resources to contributions of $171,358 were subsequent to the
measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending June 30, 2025.

41



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Measurement Period Outflows (Inflows)
Ended June 30, of Resources
2024 $ 483,896
2025 260,634
2026 39,739
2027 2,961
Total $ 787,230

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability - For the
measurement period ended June 30, 2023 (the measurement date), the total pension liability was
determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2022 total pension liability determined in the June 30,
2022 actuarial accounting valuation. The June 30, 2023 total pension liability were based on the
following actuarial methods and-assumptions:

Actuarial Cost Method

Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate
Inflation
Salary Increases
Mortality Rate Table*

Post Retirement Benefits Increase 0% mltilPurchasmg Power Protection

Purchasing Power applies

*Derived using CalPERS’ Membership Data for all Funds. The mor
of projected on-going mortality improvements using 80% of Scale }
Society of Actuaries.

r-rate includes 15 years
2020 published by the

Change of Assumption — No changes.

Discount Rate — The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was
6.90 percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.
Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term
expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

Long-term Expected Rate of Return — The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term
and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Using
historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were

42



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term (11+ years) using a building-
block approach. Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the
present value of benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by
calculating the rounded single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value
of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The
expected rate of return was then set to equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.

The expected real rates of return by asset class per the CalPERS’ Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 are as follows:

Assumed Asset Real Return
Asset Class* Allocation Years 1-10**
Global equity 42.00% 41T%
Private equity F N 13.00 7.28
Treasury - 5.00 0.27
Mortgage-backed Sec 5.00 0.50
Investment Grade Corporates _ 10.00 1.56
High Yield - 5.00 2.27
Emerging Market Debt 5.00 2.48
Private Debt 5.00 3.57
Real Assets 15.00 3.21
Leverage -5.00 -0.59

*In the System’s ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Global
Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global
** An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period '

quidity is included in Short-term
and:Global Debt Securities

Amortization of Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Re es — Net Difference
Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Pension Plan Investme amortized over a five-
year period on a straight-line basis. One-fifth is recognized i sion expense during the
measurement period, and the remaining Net Difference . Between Projected and Actual
Investment Earning on Pension Plan Investments is amortized over the remaining amortization
periods. Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earning on Pension Plan
Investments in the Schedule of Collective Pension Amounts represents the unamortized balance

relating to the current measurement period and the prior measurement periods on a net basis.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources relating to Differences
Between Expected and Actual Experience and Changes of Assumptions are amortized over the
Expected Average Remaining Service Lifetime (EARSL) of members provided with pensions
through the Plan determined as of the beginning of the related measurement period. The EARSL
for PERF C for the June 30, 2023 measurement date is 3.8 years, which was obtained by dividing
the total service years of 600,538 (the sum of remaining service lifetimes of all active
employees) by 160,073 (the total number of participants: active, inactive, and retired) in PERF
C. Inactive employees and retirees have remaining service lifetimes equal to 0. Total future
service is based on the members’ probability of decrementing due to an event other than
receiving a cash refund.

43



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to Changes in the
Discount Rate — The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
of the District’s Plan as of the Measurement Date June 30, 2023, calculated using the discount
rate of 6.90 percent, as well as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (5.90 percent) or 1 percentage-point higher
(7.90 percent) than the current rate:

Discount Rate
5.90% 6.90% 7.90%
(1% Decrease) (Current Rate) (1% Increase)
Measurement Date June 30, 2022
Fiscal Year End June 30, 2023
Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 2,452,817 $ 637,709 $  (856,283)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Positions — Detailed information about each plan’s fiduciary net
position is availab]e in t parately issued CalPERS financial reports.

defer a portion of their salaries before taxes.

The deferred compensation amount is not
termination of employment, death, disability,
contribute up to 100% of their annual compe

Internal Revenue Code.

The District has three deferred compensation plans created in accord
Code Section 457. The Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996 re
a trust or similar vehicle to ensure that the assets of the Deferred Compensation Plans under the
Internal Revenue Code 457 are protected and used exclusively for the benefit of Plan participants
and/or their beneficiaries. E

The 457 Plan assets totaling $2,104,450 at June 30, 2024, consists of investments in mutual
funds.

Financial institutions that administer the District’s 457 Plans are as follows:

Valic $ 228,649
Mass Mutual 823,255
CalPERS 1,052,546
Total $2,104,450

44



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

11. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
A. General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description- The District joined the Public Employees' Medical & Hospital Care Act
(PEMHCA) in the year 2000 for its employees, offered through the California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). It is an agent multiple employer plan administered
by CalPERS. The healthcare plan which provides medical insurance benefits to active and
eligible retirees and their families in accordance with memoranda of understanding with
employee groups and adoption by the Board of Directors.

The plan information is as follows:

Fiscal Year End June 30, 2024

) Agent Multiple Employer
Yes
No
No

year 2009, the calculated adjustments /ere base; upon the medical care component of the
Consumer Price Index-Urban (CPI-U) which is consistent with CalPERS. At that time, the
District opted for the unequal method of distribution. In 2 the District was required to pay
100% of the minimum required contribution w ‘h is $15

In addition, the District provides supplemental contnf tlons to‘ all employees who retire directly
from the District combined with a regular service retirement through RS. Employees must
be at least 55 years of age and have a minimum 10 years of District service at retirement.

The District’s monthly supplemental contributions are as follows

Number of District Age at Retirement
Service Years 55 60 65
10- 14 $100 $130 $195
15-19 $135 $180 $270
20+ $175 $232 $348

All eligible retirees will receive the supplemental contribution regardless of PEMHCA
enrollment.

In lieu of the above, the District Manager is eligible for a $500 monthly supplemental
contribution.

45



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Employees Covered- As of the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation, the following current and
former employees were covered by the benefit terms:

June 30, 2024 Fiscal Year End Covered
June 30, 2023 Measurement Date Employees
Inactive employees currently receiving benefit payments 10
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 7
Active employees 17
Total employees 34

Contributions- The District pays benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. For the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2024, the District’s cash benefit payments were $41,088, administrative costs of $133,
and implied subsidy payments of $6,338, resulting in total payments of $47,559.

PEB‘:Z‘%@xpenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

OPEB Liability (Asset)
liability (asset) were as follow:

June 0, 2023 measurement date, the Distn'cf’s total OPEB

Fiscal Year Ended 6/30/2024 6/30/2023

Measurement Date 6/30/2023 6/30/2022
Total OPEB liability (TOL) $ 869,252 $ 897,313
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) 944,290 887,261
Net OPEB Liability (NOL) (75,038) $ 10,052
Funded Status (FNP/TOL) 98.88%

46



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Changes in the OPEB Liability (Asset)- The changes in the total OPEB liability (asset) for the
District Plan are as follows:

Total OPEB

Changes mn Total OPEB Liability Liability
Balance at June 30, 2023

(Measurement Date June 30, 2022) $ 897,313
Service cost 38,982
Interest 57,320
Benefits -
Actual vs. expected experience (72,263)
Changes of assumptions (13,769)
Employer contributions -
Employee contributions -
Benefit payments (38,331)
Administrative expens -
Net changes (28,061)
Balance at June 30, 2024

(Measure Date June 30, 2023) $ 869,252

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB- For the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized OPEB credit of $13,382. As of fiscal year
ended June 30, 2024, the District reported def : s/inflows of resources related to
OPEB from the following sources: '

Deferred Inflows
of Resources

Differences between projected and actual earnings 136,517
Differences between expected and actual experience 210,204
Changes of assumptions -
Employer contributions made after measurement date -
Total $ 186,760  § 346,721

Deferred outflows of resources in the amount of $47,559 related to contributions subsequent to
the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability during
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025.

47



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as
income as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended Deferred (Inflows)
June 30, of Resources

2024 $ (48,282)

2025 (50,016)

2026 (49,433)

2027 (32,574)

2028 (13,491)

Thereafter (13,724)

Total $ (207,520)

Recognition of Deferred Outﬂows and Deferred Inflows of Resources- To smooth market
volat1hty, gams and losses related to changes in total OPEB hablhty and ﬁdumary net position

are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred
be recognized in future OPEB expense.

48



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine the OPEB Liability- The District’s net
OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2023 The total OPEB liability used to calculate the
net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation dated June 30, 2023 to determine
the June 30, 2024 total OPEB liability, based on the following actuarial methods and
assumptions:

Significant Actuarial Assumptions and Methods used for Total OPEB Liability:

Fiscal Year End June 30, 2024

Measurement Date June 30, 2023

Valuation Date June 30, 2023
Funding Policy Ad hoc, Full ADC payment or equivalent assumed

Actuarial value of Assets %, Investment gains and losses spread over a 5-year period,
~ pot to be less than 80% nor more than 120% of market

Discount rate 6.25%, net of mvestment expenses, CERBT Strategy #1
General Inflation 0%
Mortality
Retirement
Disability
Termination
Mortality Improvement Scale
Salary increases , ;
Merit - tables fron CaIPERS 2000 2019 experience study
Medical trend Non-Medicare - 7.90% for 2 | c%gcreasmg to an
ultimate rate 0f3.45% in 207¢
Medicare - 6.90 % for 202 ;'decreasmg to an ultimate rate
0f3.45% mn 2076
PEMHCA minimum increase 3.50% per annum
Healthcare participation Actives: 100% for supplemental contribution
Actives: 40%-90% for PEMHCA contribution based on
age & service at retirement
Retirees: 100% if currently covered
Change of assumptions Updated medical and PEMHCA minimurm trend rate
Changes of benefit terms None

49



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Discount Rate- The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.25%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that District contributions
will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those
assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected OPEB payments for current active and inactive employees and beneficiaries.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all
prior periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Discount Rate Sensitivity Analysis- The following schedule shows the impact of the total OPEB
liability (asset) if the discount rate used was 1% less than and 1% greater than the discount rate
that was used (6.25%) in measuring the total OPEB liability (asset).

Discount Rate

5.25% 6.25% 7.25%
. (1% Decrease) (Current Rate) (1% Increase)
Measurement Date June 30, 2023
Fiscal Year End June 30, 2024

Total OPEB Liability (Asset) 26339 $  (75,038) $  (160,441)

Medical Trend Sensitivity Anal owing presents the total OPEB liability (asset) of

30, 2023:

Me_d_ical Trend
(Current Trend) (1% Increase)

Measurement Date  June 30;‘?1023
Fiscal Year End w Junia 30, 2024
Total OPEB Liability $ (127,138) = § $  (10,557)

12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage to and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees and natural dlsasters In an effort to manage
its risk exposure, the District is a member of Association of California Water Agencies Joint

Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA).
The ACWA/JPIA is a risk-pooling self-insurance authority, created under provisions of

California Government Code Section 6500 et seq. As part of this service, risk management
guidelines are established and regularly reviewed by ACWA/JPIA. The District performance has

been reviewed as satisfactory.

The District has a program of self-insurance for comprehensive and collision on the vehicles
owned by the District. At June 30, 2024, self-insurance reserves were $100,000.

50



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The District has the following insurance policies:

Coverage Deductible Coverage Limit (in thousands)

General liability N/A Ranging from $5,000 to $55,000

Cyber liability N/A Ranging from $3,000 to $5,000
Auto liability N/A Ranging from $5,000 to $20,000
Public officials Liability N/A Ranging from $5,000 to $20,000
Property

Buildings, personal property,

and fixed equipment , $5,000 $500,000

Mobile equipment $2,500 $500,000

Boiler and machinery $25,000/$50,000 $100,000 per occurance

Crime

$1,000 Ranging from $1 to $100

Workers' compensation Ranging from $0 - $4,000

On April 10, 1978, the District entered into a contract with the United States Bureau of
Reclamation (USBR) for water service from the San Felipe Division of the Federal Central
Valley Project (CVP). The CVP water service contract provides for both agricultural and
municipal and industrial (M&I) water deliveries to the District up.to a total maximum annual
entitlement of 43,800 acre-feet per year. ' ‘

Second Amendment to the Contract with USBR for Water Service
The District in partnership with the Santa Clara Valley Water District (SCVWD) negotiated a
USBR Water Supply Contract Renewal in accordance with the USBR implementation of the
Central Valley Project Improvement Act (CVPIA) and the 1997 Binding Agreement to Negotiate
between the USBR and the District. The District also negotiated an amendment to its 1978
contract meeting the minimum requirements of the CVPIA to assure a continuing water supply in
the event the renewal contract could not be signed, was delayed, or invalidated by legal action.

On March 28, 2007, the District signed the second amendment to USBR contract. This amended
contract provided for a fixed repayment obligation and repayment schedule for the specific San
Felipe facilities that serve the District.

51




San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

The agreement calls for fixed semi-annual payments to the USBR due on January 1 and July 1
each year as illustrated below:

Semi- Annual
Fiscal Year(s) Annual Payment Obligation
2007-2016 $ 696,076 $1,392,152
2017-2026 971,076 1,942,152
2027-2036 3,492,303 6,984,606

The total commitment, including capital and interest components, of the repayment contract is
$98.9 million. The remaining estimated capital commitment as of June 30, 2021 is $68.9 million.
This allocation is based on the USBR plant-in-service costs for San Felipe Division facilities that
are specifically for service to the District (Hollister Conduit including the San Juan Lateral, San
Justo Reservoir) and the District share of San Felipe Reach 1 facilities. The SCVWD and the
District partnership basis of negotiation with the USBR, including negotiation of the capital cost
allocation and repayment S duie, required a subsequent agreement between SCVWD and the
District. That agreement, referred to as Agreement for Repayment and Management of San
Felipe Division Fac tiated and adopted by the District's Board of Directors on
January 3, 2007. As pat ; nt, SCVWD and the District agreed to share the use of
the existing uncommitted capac1ty e San Fehpe Reach 1 facilities. The capital costs for the
- uncommitted capacity are included in SCVWD’s repayment schedule to the USBR until 2036.
The District has an option to exercis ght to retain its proportionate share of the use of the
Reach 1 uncommitted capacity if it reimburses SCVWD $4,130,709 by September 30, 2036.
Interest will accrue at the 5-year Treasury note rate beginning November 2026.

Amended and Restated Contract Between the
District (WIIN ACT Contract)

On December 16, 2016, the 114th Congress of the United
Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act (Pu
Section 4011(a)(1)(A) of the WIIN Act provides t st of the contractor, the
Secretary of the Interior shall convert any water service contract entered into under section (€)
of the Reclamation Project Act of 1939 (53 Stat. 1195) to a repayment contract under
section 9(d) of that Act (53 Stat. 1195). A repayment contract has the advantages that it is
permanent and, once the remaining capital obligation, including San Felipe Division Facilities, is
fully satisfied, lands within the contractor’s service area are no longer subject to acreage
limitation and full cost pricing of water. The contract will continue as long as the contractor
continues to pay the applicable contractual charges. Additionally, the WIIN Act earmarks the
accelerated payment of outstanding CVP capital costs from converted repayment contacts to an
account that will be used by Reclamation to partially fund development of additional water
storage projects, some of which may benefit the District.

ited States and San Benito County Water

‘f America enacted the Water
322, 130 Stat. 1628) (WIIN Act).

Notwithstanding the conversion of a water service contract to a repayment contract under the
WIIN Act, the conversion does not increase entitlement to CVP water deliveries. Instead, the
repayment contracts are still subject to the same water entitlements, and the same CVP contract
shortage provisions and policies that exist today. Reclamation will adhere to its existing process
for determining water allocations based upon annual hydrological conditions and requirements to
support environmental and water quality protections to the Delta and its tributaries. The
repayment contract will also not change the facilities used or the manner in which water is
distributed to the contractor.

52



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

On October 28, 2020 the Board of Directors: (1) adopted Resolution No. 2020-17, A Resolution
of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District Authorizing the Filing of a
Notice of Exemption from the California Environmental Quality Act for Approval of and
Authorization to Execute the Amended and Restated Contract Between the United States and
San Benito County Water District for Water Service, Facilities Repayment, and for Operation
and Maintenance of Certain Works of the San Felipe Division; and (2) authorize District Counsel
to file a validation action for the Repayment Contract which was filed November 9, 2020 and the
validation judgement was granted by the Superior Court of San Benito County on February 16,
2021.

The Amended and Restated Contract between the United States and San Benito County Water
District was entered into on January 22, 2021.

On February 8, 2021, the Board authorized the issuance of Series 2021 Obligations in the
amount of $2,905,000. The closing was undertaken and consummated on February 24, 2021.
This financing funded the repayment of San Benito County’s “in-basin” portion of the CVP
capital costs pursua Infrastructure Improvement of the Nations Act. (Refer to
Note 8)

Future CVP Rates

Future CVP operations and m increases are probable. Current USBR CVP rate
policies and practices provide for nnual rate determinations and through the supporting
information provide the basis for det :

San Juan Water Supply Program kr

it df a comprehensive Water Supply
1s Treatment Plant ThlS WSP shall

the fea31b1hty phase with an initial budget of $180,000. Should the CSJB decide to move forward
to implementation, the cost of the feasibility phase will be rol ed into the final project cost.
Should the CSJB decide not to move forward to implementation, CSJB will reimburse the
District for all monies expended on the WSP within one hundred and eighty (180) days from
such decision, and all obligations of the District to provide a surface water solution to the CSJB
will have been satisfied.

Legal Challenges to Pumping Restriction in the Delta

Through its membership fees in the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority, the District
participates in the cost of the ongoing legal challenges related to the biological opinions that
limit the pumping in the Delta.

Z.ebra Mussel Infestation in San Justo Reservoir

The San Justo Reservoir, owned by USBR, is operated by the District to provide agricultural and
municipal and industrial water to its customers in San Benito County. In February 2008, zebra
mussels were discovered in the reservoir. The presence of zebra mussels in the Hollister Conduit
and the San Felipe Distribution system has been confirmed since that time. Zebra mussels are an
invasive species which attach themselves to hard substrate, thus posing a significant threat to
both the ability of the District to effectively operate the reservoir as they can clog intake

53



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

structures and pipelines, as well as to the reservoir’s ecology. They could also spread to other
water bodies. In order to continue operating the reservoir for water supply purposes and to
prevent the further invasion of the water systems, the zebra mussels must be either eradicated or
significantly controlled.

To achieve any solution, significant coordination among many government agencies is required
to identify and implement the optimum eradication strategy. The eradication strategy must also
include measures to prevent future re-infestation. Zebra Mussels have never been eradicated
from a reservoir; therefore, the District’s financial obligation is not known at this time.

The USBR is developing an eradication plan for the reservoir, conduit, and distribution system in
cooperation with the California Department of Water Resource (DWR), the California
Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and the District. Final plans and specifications are
being developed by the USBR. As part of the plan, payment responsibilities will have to be
negotiated.

Hollister Urban Area

In August 2013, the'L
Operation and Mamtenance S
operator for the Lessalt Water Tr
agreement was established for a
years. The contract was renewed
operations for the treatment plants a
from the retailers (SSCWD and CO

Pacheco Reservoir Expansion Project
The Pacheco Reservoir Expansion prOJect includes construction of a new earthen dam a short
distance upstream from the existing dam an plpelm o connect the dam to the existing
Pacheco Conduit, a federal Central Valley Project that dé, vers water into Santa Clara
and San Benito Counties from the San Luis Reservoir. The participating agencies are the District,
SCVWD and Pacheco Pass Water District. The project would expand servoir from 6,000 to
140,000 acre-feet and deliver water supply, water quality, and ec em benefits to the region.
In June 2018, the Board approved a Memorandum of Agree; pent (MOA) with SCVWD that
outlines the terms for moving forward with the project.

eement for Operation and Maintenance Services

trict and SSCWD each approved the Hollister Urban Area Agreement for
his agreement establishes SSCWD as the contract
ant and the West Hills Water Treatment Plant. This
ars with options to renew for subsequent terms of 5
018 for an additional 5-year term. Payments for the
flected in Contract Services. The recovery of these costs
component of the finished water rates.

Originally the MOU included 2 major agreements that needed to be completed within 2 years of
the signing of the agreement, an allocation of benefits agreement and a provisional operating
agreement. In addition, the MOA called for the District within the 2 years to determine its
participation level ranging from 0% - 10%. It is now anticipated that the date for the allocation
of benefits and operating agreement will be delayed. More importantly, upon completion and
execution of a side letter to the MOU the District anticipates having until the start of construction
to determine the level of participation desired. The District will continue to review its level of
participation as the project moves forward.

In July 2018, the Department of Water Resources announced that the Pacheco Reservoir
Expansion project will receive the full funding request of $485 million through a Proposition 1
grant naming SCVWD as grantee. Additional federal and state funding will be pursued as the
project moves forward. The total project cost is currently estimated to be approximately $2.5
billon.

54



San Benito County Water District

Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2024

Litigation

The District is subject to various legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of
business. The District would pursue or defend cases vigorously through trial unless facts develop
which warrant an attempt to seek an out-of-court settlement. As of June 30, 2024, the District
had the following pending litigation:

United States Bureau of Reclamation (Defendant) v. Center for Biological Diversity

On May 21, 2021, San Benito County Water District, along with other CVP contractors
holding WIIN Act contracts (See Note 14) were named as additional defendants in a lawsuit
challenging that the United States erred in entering into converted contracts under the WIIN
Act without National Environment Policy Act (NEPA) and the Endangered Species Act (ESA)
compliance. The CVP contractors are working collectively in their response to this litigation.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events occurring after June 30, 2024 have been evaluated by Management for possible
recognition or disclosure to the financial statements as of January 29, 2025 which is the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Grant Funding

The District has been approved for $4.78M in Pajaro River shed Prop 1, Round 2 IRWM
Implementation Grant, $11.5M in SGMA Implementation Grant, and $6.7M in WaterSMART
Small Storage Grant. The grant funds will be used to offset the costs of the District's
Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) project which is an aquifer storage and
recovery project which will be capable of recharging up to 6,000 AFY of high-quality CVP
water in wet years for subsequent recovery in dry years. It is the foremost approach to help meet
future water demand, especially during drought and water shortages, and to help achieve water
quality goals for total dissolved solids, Nitrate and hexavalent chromium.

55



JIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION




LS

%ISL  %OVSL  WIOPL  WIESL  %9TSL  WOTSL  %0ISL. %89°9L %IT9L
WLTSS  WOTGIT  UTERIL %I9SOL  ISLYL %09l %2891 %eL'EE
ILTHVSIS  YOVIHF'IS  9I6TIETS  T6V'60STS  I860L9TS  SIOTHSIS  Sv6'sh'IS _:wgé 15£068°1 S
9ESBICIS  [ETSILTS  €L9SSITS  TIGG6HTS  6H6POVTS  L66069TS  1ZIT6TS 60459
%LITO0  %E0STO0  %S6HIO0  %ITSTO0  %SSSIO0  %ITILOO %SR9 %0THED0 ; %11500°0
PUOSI0  SI0ES0  9I0E90  LUOS0  SLOEM0 61090 0Z0ES0 1T £2/0€/90
IO 9WOE0 LU0 BLOE0 610G 0UOER0 T I1Z0SM0 g0 STOE0  u0E0
pUg 103 [60 ]
SIBA (O] 157

¥20T “0¢ Uy Jo sy

g UOISUR] Jauag paugaq] Sy 1500
Ae(] UAUIMSE JO S SONTY Payeoy pue
(10s8) Aqer] uaisuag 19N ay) o areyg ajeuorpodold oS 91 J0 JUPIYIS
PLSI 13)eAy Kuno)) ojuag ueg

"3Jep JUSIAMSEAU 3y) to Bupua 1eak agy 10
(1asse) Kmqer uoisuad [ejo) s ued
U Jo aFeuoosad e se uosod Jou Axeronpy s e

floxded pazanoo jo aBejuasred e se (jasse) Apqey
uoisuad Jou oy Jo areys ayeuorpodoxd s jousiy

101hed paranoa s jousiq

{10sse) Anqeq uoisuad
1ou ayp Jo azeys ojeuomtodoad sjomsiq

Amqey uoisuad 3u 3y jo uorpodord sousiy

oje(] UAUOMSBIN



8¢

UMOUS 3)ep o uo Surpuo 1ok [8oSy oY} 10 4

Y%I1°61 %1TS1 %8971 %90°61 %L0°91 %EL'81 %50 o1 %5001 %ST6 fioxked patonod
; Jo o3euaorad e se suonnqguIuo))
POVIPPTIS  916TIETS  16V°60S 1S  1860L9TS  STOTHEIS  8KE'SHETS  1LSSI6'T w L 618 15£°068°1$ IY1°758°18 4l[01ked pa1ar0d s oSy
- $ - § - $ - $ - $ - $ (9L6'S¥6'D) $ $ - $ (s839%2) Aoustogop voyngIuo )

0L8°LIT $L9°661 899°17Z 1EL°1ST 8€1°967 68L°SPE T10'pEL'E 8SE 1L UoHnqLIucy paulLIslap
‘ AjJeLIeno Uy 03 UCHE[3I W SUOLNGLILOY)
OL8'LIT § SLY'661 § 899°ITC § IELIST $ 8CI'96T § 68L'SHE § 9£088€  §  €HTTOT § 196681 § 8SE LT § UOHNQLIU0O PAUNLLIAlop Ajfeenoy
S10T/06/9  9L0T/OE/9  LIOT/OE/S  810T/0L/9  610T/0E/9  0TOT/0E/9 1207/0¢/9 CT0T/0L/9  £T0T/0L/9 $T0T/0¢/9 Papus 1834 [0Sy 3} 10} SUOHNGUIUOD)
| SIEOR (8081 (1 5]

¥Z0T “0€ 2n[ POPUT 180 [29SId O 104
SUONNGHJUIO.) UE] ] UOISUSJ $3OHISICT 9 JO ANPIYIS
PLSIF 19BAL Auno)) ojuag uvg



San Benito County Water District
Schedule of Changes m the District's Net OPEB Liability (Assef)
and Related Ratios as of Measurement Date
For The Year Ended June 30, 2024
Last 10 Years”

Fiscal Year Fnd  Fiscal Year End Fiscal Year Fnd Fiscal Year Fnd Fiscal Year End Fiscal Year End Fiscal Year End

06130724 06130123 06/30/22 06130121 06/30120 06/30/19 06/30/18
Measurement Date 6130123 63022 06430721 06/30/20 06/30/19 06/30/18 0673017
Changes i total OPEB labilty (asset)
Service cost S 38982 0§ 37939 § 3580 § 72508 §  S507L 0§ 57405 8 653M
Interest 51320 53,736 60,015 45,054 44813 40,634 1352
~ Actual and expected experience - - {123 455) {12,951) - -
Changes in assunption {72,263) 26,083 {452,724) 53,239 (43,017 (114363)
Actual benefits payments (13,769) (32,397) (27438) (25,169) (31,530 (28,194) {35539)
Changes in benefits terms (38,331) - - - - - -
Net changes in total OPEB fiability (28,061) 59,278 (28935)  (360,331) 108,741 26,528 (50,606)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 838,035 866,970 878,599 1,118,561 1,092,033 1,142,639
Total OPEB liability - ending § 897313 § 838035 § 518268 § 1227302 § 1118561 § 1,092,033

Changes in plan fiduciary net position
Expected retum at beginning of year - va 2 wa it}
Enployer contributions P 565,698 wa na na wa
Nonemployer contributing entity contributions - na w2 wa va
Employee contributions ) - na Ia wa wa
Net mvestment income 57,285 ! va wa na Wa
Benefit paymenis G833)  (32,397) W na na v
Administrative expenses 391) 2’ Wa a va 3
Net changes i plan fiduciary net position 57,027 316,607 : wa va Va
Plan fiuciary net position - begiming 887,263 570,660 Wa na a
Plan fiduciary net position - ending § 044290 § 887261 § 2 va va
Net OPEB liability (asset) N B VR
Total OPEB labilty § 869250 S 897313 5 838035 5 518268 § 12273 $ 1,0920%
Plan fiduciary net position § 944290 S 887261 § 570660 S -3 § -
Net OPEB liabilty (asset) $ (75038 S 10052 § 267375 § 518268 § 122 § 1,092,033
Net OPEB fiabifity fimded percentage 108.6% 98.9% 68.1% 0.0% 0% 0.0% 0.0%
Covered employee payroll * $ 2249877 S 2179647 § 2,179647 5 2,051,887 970238 § 2030312 § 1825305
Net OPEB liability as a percent of
covered-employee payrol -3.34% 0.46% 12.27% 25.26% 62.29% 55.09% 59.81%

~ Fiscal year 2018 was the Lst year of implementation, therefore, only seven years are shown.
* For the year ending on the measurenent date.

59



San Benito County Water District
Schedule of Employer OPEB Contributions

As of June 30, 2024
Last 10 Years

Contributions for the fiscal year ended: 06/30/24 06/30/23  06/30/22 06/3021 06/30/20 06/30/19 06/30/18
Actuarially determined contribution ** $ 3494 § 29456 § 70,172 § 110,767 § - $ - $ -
Contributions in relation to the actuarially

determined contribution 47,559 38 464 493,773 565,698 25,227 31,603 35,683
Contribution deficiency (excess) § (12595 §  (9,008) §(423,601) § (454931) § (25227) § (31,603) S (35,683)
District’s covered payroll * $2,307,102  § 2,249.877  $2,179,647  $2,189,677  §1,970,238 82,030,312  §1,825,805
Contributions as a percentage of

covered-employee payroll 1L.71% 22.65% 25.83% 1.28% 1.56% 1.95%

established for future contributions.

60



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

61



29

L9T1H0'T (016°6) P6S 168 0LS 201 €10°L6

09,981 (6L£) 8THLL 0189

LOS*PS8°T (1€5°6) 991°5L9°1 £02°06

1€5°196°S61  $8L°0£8°C 1€8°LL6°T8 906°LE0'E

£99°909°001T  S68°TILI L6E9EE'L6

$90°L0€'Z8 910°L10°T 6LTLLOGL

- (2500€) -

8E0°SL (69) ¥S9°pE

v9SPTT 81 - YOS HTT'81

$987SE'S6 688°L11°1 YEP T1H9°C8 SL1‘8%0°9

899°7SS ¢ - 096°L¥Y e $78°79

8609091 - 860°1€S°1 -

109°86¢ L6L 88L°8P€ 00S°‘TV

1LT6€T1 - 1LT°6€T°1 -

LESI8LE AR L88vP9°E 15226

SS8'ISLT - $S8ISLT -

YE8PTOTS §  6I6T0I°T §  SLSLLYTH 66S°168°s  §  IvL'e6€T §
[eloL 00L 9uoZ 9 duoZ € ouoz UoLensUIpY

s s s wusiq

¥20T “0¢ sunf
au07 Aq UOMISOJ 9N JO MPaYoS
0SI( 19¥e | AJUno)) opueg ueg

$90IN0SY JO SMOJINQ) PauJe(] [0,
g JO - SOMOSAI JO SMOPINO PaLIgJa(]
SOIIAIOE UOISUSd - SS0MOSAI JO SMOINO PALIR(T
$90IN0SY JO SMOJINQ P

$19SSE [€10],
$)2SSE JUSLINOUOU [8}0],
1ou ‘sjasse jende)
SAUO0Z JOYI0 Woy an(g
1988V g4d O 19N
wonod JUaImouou - 9[qeAIS0aI JOBIU0D)
'SJOSSE JUOLMOUON

$19SS® JUSLMO [B10],
SJUSUSIAUL PAJOLLSY
[seo Pajosay
sasuadxo predaig
uon1od JUSLINO - 9[qBAIZ0I JOBHU0D)
19U ‘SI[qBAISIY
SJUSUDSSAU]
Used
:S}asse a1y
SIASSV



£9

6S6°69L°SOTS  LYSYOLT $ OverI‘est § vIOTL6'0  § SIEYS8T  § uonsod jou [ejo],
881°10¥°CS 1€S°LLL 90€°061°cy VLL'LYS'S LLS$8ST pajoLgsaaufy
99L°851°9¢ - 850°6L6°S€E ST8TY £88°911 pajoLsay
$86°60T°LL 910°L10°T 660°086°¢L S10°190°1 SS8IST sjosse [ejdeo ur JUSUISeAU JON
NOILLISOd LAN
0v9THT'1 (PLY'S) 1S€201°1 HTIL 0TSYL $90IN0SAI JO SMOPUI PALIJIP [BI0L,
12L°9%€ (018) oS LOE L201T a4 d O Se0IM0SAI JO SMOPUI PILIYI(
616568 (#99) 118v6L £6¥°'€S soniAnoe uoisuad - $90IM0Sa1JO SMOfUI PALIY]
S20.N0SIY JO SMOPU] PALIIa(]
612°066°0¢ 108°1¢ T19°LLS 0€ €TLYLI 80907 sanquer [ej0],
STEPSYST 6£°6 916'v05'S: SLYFPST Trses1 SOILQE JUSLIMOUOU [2}0],
996°yTT'81 - 996°¥7‘8 - - ANUSASI JORJUOD PAULIBAU[)
000°L82°C - 60%°$90°C - 7 668°1T1 uoiod JUALMOUOU ~ puog uonEBIqQ SMUSARY dqexe] (707
000°112°C - 000°112°C uorpod juaimouou - puog uonedqQ Supuryay 1M 170T
080°LT€C - 080°LTET - uorpod juarmouou- sjqeAed ueo Yueg [euoneN A1)
000501 - 00501 - sysoda
60L°LEY T6£'6 0L6°609 008°87 Aumqer uoisua g 3N
0L619 - 16£°9¢ 9.L0v uofod JUoLmMOuoU - $a0ud0sqe pajesuadwo)y
SanIIqer JUSLIMOUO N
768°6£1°S 60¥°7C $69°TLO°S 81C'0T SOUIIqEI] JUSLIND [BI0 ],
1LZ7°6€T°1 - 1LZ°6€T°1 - SNUSASI J0BIUOD patIBaUf)
760°9¢t - 760°9¢t - sjuawiAedard 19jem JXTOISNO 10BIUO))
€T8°LTY1 000°p1 €TS'E19°1 - - sarousde Jatjo 03 an(g
000VLT - 6ET°LST LIL'L 16 uoipod JUaIMO - puog UoNE|qQ ANUANY J[qexe], 1207
000°8L1 - 000°3L1 - - uonod juormod - puog uonedqQ Supunyay Irem 17027
000°18€ - 000°18¢ - - uonod Juaimy - sjqeded ueo] yueq [euogeN A1D
1S9 - 786°0% 1T SZ11 uoyJod JUaLMd - Sa0UI0SqR PIjesuadio)
eSS - 016°LE €LLT 6£9°S , Sjauaq pue saBeMm PanIody
SEI°010°T 601'8 8L1°886 ¥19'8 PE9'y sasuadxa paniaoe pue sjqeded sjunossy
“SouIIqey juamn)
. SHILITIGVIT
[eloL 00L duoz 9 auoz ¢ suoyz UonEnsupy
omsiq s s wmsiq

¥20T “0€ amg
(ponunuoo) suoz Aq UOHISOJ 19N JO SNpayos
J0MNSI(] Iovepn AUno)) ojuag ues



¥9

6S6'69L°S9T  §  LYSWOL'T §  €V6VIESIS  vIVTL69 §  SIEVS8T § 1834 30 pud ‘uonisod 1PN
LSERSY 611 9€7°€80°C S 61¥°8¢€1 868°19€°9 S9L*€65°T Teak yo SuriSaq ‘womrsod 10N
78S 11€91 11ETIL S00°0EL Y1 91L°609 055°09¢ uomsod jou ur 95ueyD
LEIY66°91 029°61¢€ 118°L0T°S1 $T9°€66 18S°CLY (sesuadxa) anussar Suesedouou JoN
(rseTy) - (L6S‘TH) 9T L1T sosuadxs Suneradouou 1oy
(L6€891) - (S61°191) (906°¢) (962°¢) asuadxe Isa1eju]
01T°S9%°1 €LY'T 8ITY8E T 8 yS SLS‘ET (ss0[) wred Jusunsau]
90L°T8S°T €01°8 186°9€T LLE'EET 6€TY01 SONUSASI JSOIU]
SOL'SET - SOLS - - sanuaAs1 Suneredoucu 19O
1§34 74 Pr0°60¢ LOV'ST - SNUSAI JUBID)
91+°L6S T - 98T6£S 11 9p8‘SH € SJUSLLISSISSR PUE. SIXB,
:(sesuadxa) snusasi SueiodouoN
(550°€89) 169°16€ (908°LLY) (1£0°€12) awoou (ssof) SmeredQ
LITL6L9T €15°901 LOS¥LO'OT TLEL sosuadxe Sunerodo [el0],
[Te'LSL'E - SLO‘90LE uonezniowe pue uoymoaidag
€€L0LY - T6EY99 sosuadxa AUy
969°0T1 16L°T LLY9EE SALJRISIUIUPE PUR [2ISUSLD)
T00°88Y - 966 VLY uawdmbs pue [eusrey
T15°885°S LT9°T9 81T 1¥¥'S SOOIAIRS JORIUO])
T0Sv16 121°s 8€9°v18 i, asuadxa 1500 woIsUs g
V8 ESLT vL6°9¢E Y8 TEYT zIr'oLl sasuadxa pajg[or sakodus pue safepm
L96°€0T°T - L96°€0TT - - 121em JO 1807
:sasuadxe Sunerad
9IP11°91  $  H0T86Y  $  T00°L6S'ST §  1STV 90Lp1 onuaAal Sunered(
&0, 00L suoz 9 suoz ¢ U0z UONBNSIIUpY
RS s LGS RS

¥T0T ‘0€ Sunf papuy Jes X 3} 104

ouoz Aq uonisod 19N ur saBueyD) pue sosuadxy ‘SanueAY JO SNPaYOS

JOLSI(T I191B AN AJUNOY) ONUIE RS



I'NCAL SECTION




San Benito County Water District

Index to Statistical Section

This part of the District’s annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statement, note disclosures, and required
supplemental information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends - These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how the District’s
financial performance and well-being have changes over time.

Net Position by COMPONENL.....cccviiiiiirirmiiiiiiiiiicniiee e s s ss e st 66
Changes in Net POSIHION. ...cc..coieiiiorininniiniciicincecrnisses it sss s sennes e

Revenue Capacity - The
significant local revenu¢ source.

Operating Revenue by Cyzi't‘egg .
Water Rates San Felipe Distribution S

s offer demographic and economic

Demographic and Economic Information -
thin which the District’s financial activities

indicators to help the reader understand the environm
take place.

Demographics and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers, San Benito County
Water Deliveries to San Benito County

Operating Information - These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the District’s financial report relates to the services the District
provides and the activities it performs.

Number of Employees by Department........c..ocovioiiiiiiiociniiieiee et 75
Operating Indicators by Function/Programi...........coiiviiiiniiiiiiieceeci et 76
FACTIIEIES o evv vt te ettt ettt e e te e et ettt e n R R s e b s e R Ao R R RS et e e e R e e e ettt 78

65



99

Juaumpreda(] Qouew ] JSIT 1aje Ay AIUn0Y) OJUag UBS [20M0§ Be( ¢

GE6EILSI S LSCUSYGHL § SSISE6TH § SYEBLSTCT § LOLTBI9CIS GO9RGPLIIS OBSECGRIS WiLLBOTI 989°086'96S Lbe¥99T6 S nosod jau [eo]
SII0FTS  TT6SI6SH  00L9E0CY  096TYSE  SEOBITHE  IHBGHIST  TLINTE LISLSYSE  E009vELT pasasa)
9LBSI9E  L9LBIG0E  BWOITLC  veSTISEC  WETEEOT  WE'ESILL  LTTLSLYI 96T LEYTEIST parsay

BEO0TLL S 8990T6TL § O10GL9CL § 16L'6EH'HL § BOSTO8TL § 9I6W6ITL § LSI'GOITL § SOIELE'SE § €OT'66THES LbS'SI‘LES SHosse funded u juaunsonu N

¥20C {4 e 1207 070¢ 6107 810¢ L10C 910¢ S107

(munoaae Jo siseq eniooe)
SIEDX [BISLY U], Ise]
yuauodwo)) Aq uonised 19N
PLISI 1ajeA Ajuno)) ojag e



L9

justuireda(] 2ouEUL] ISLISI(T I8 A AJUNOYD) opudg ues :22unog eled ¢

T8STIE9IS 661°€TS'S § £18°950°01$ 8LSS6EL § 890868 § €I1°G9S°8 § TIR'SHE9 §

8E0LOIL  § 6£€91€TS SOSTI6 €S paisnipe ‘uomsod Jou ur duey)

- - - - - - (6L 1%L) - - - sonqey g9dO
- - - - - - - - - (Z91°L29°1) sanIIqel UOISUd
Jusunsnipe porisd 1011 g
TSSTIIEOL  661°€CSS  €I89S001  8LSS6EL 8907368 £11°595°3 £59°L8S°L 8€07L0T°L 6££918C  L99°1bS's  uomisod jou wt d3ury)
- - - - - - - 000°00%'€ - 000°0sT  suonuquiuod Jende)
- - - - - - - 000°00¥°¢ - 000°0SZ uonnqLuoo [ende)
HonngInuo) yende’)
LEOPE6'OT  099°106T1  V8TLISOl  L8'SLO'6 S6VEI8! eTYILTOl  SLILOLS TEECTSSL LYTTRI'L  9T8'186'6  (sosuadxo)
) asnusasi Suneradouou 3o
(rseTr) (0LTS) (998°5L£) @&dam@ T00)  (296€6) (evo'68c)  (€89°119) ©9vvoL'D  (1oL'1L) sasuadxa Fuperadouou 12pQ
- - - - - - . - - - (8Y9v7L) JUSWILLIDAOD)
13730 03 suonngnuos jerde)
- - - (666'0%) L - - - 10852 JO [esodsIp Uo §so]
(L6£891) (LE8'P81) Lr9'zel) (zeten) rT'sel) (rz1'son) (61t'88) (Zor'D) osuadxa 359191u]
01T's9%' T (1Z€'109)  (168°16%) (188817) 9¢£s81 (669°LS) L9¥°01 (61L) $S0[ J0 ured jusunsIAU]
90L°T8ST YTSorel £98°121 11L°8Z€ 319°1L6 966°59T £L6°€61 6LTYLL SONUBARI JUSLLISSAUL PUE JSIISTU]
SOLSET LESE9T LYLL1T 7£6°60T wWo'Iee '88T9LT PSTLIET  S€6°STT sonusaai Surjeradouou 10O
1SHvZE $96°12 6¥9TTO°1 P6ESE 0TL0T0°1 Iv1LoY 1¥L°€99 636°980'Y ONUSARL JuBID
9TH'L6STT  T90'8SOTI  6ZEITS0I  +0T9T86 8T109T'6 LSOTSL 169°68L9  €SI1°6SE9 SJUSWISSASSE PUB SOXLL
HN wumcumxov AMUDIADIT NEH&,EQOCOZ
(550'¢89) (ov'8Le’L)  (1L£09L) (697°089'1)  (Lzv'ecg’l)  (01g90L’1) (528 (806°598F)  (651°969) (ssop) awodur Juesado
LITL6L91L  6£9°968°ST  LITHZI'01  008°Cl6'Cl 66V ISTEl  SEOTIPCEl  LS6 PLLOSS'Ol  tev'6es,  sesuadxa Sunesado eio],
12€°LSLE LOS'BTYC  vhe6PPE SPE'SIIE 1¥6'166C LIT€T8T ¥2L00 80L'EE9T  LOIWIT'I uonezijiowe pue uoneaidag
£ELOLY 09v'6E1 8GL61Y 8SL'8PY YSH19¢ 85€°08S S LIS PESTLT sasuadxs Ayuin
969°0Ch £TR'STY L8EYSE POYLEE €LLTTE 1#9°€0€ 981°682 €6L°6LY SANENSIUIPE PUE [2I8US0)
700°88P LTS'86E 86L°€SE 766719 0LI'LLT 80€97¢ S6£°85E £61°981 juawdmbs pue [BLIEN
715'885°s LEO'TOL'E  900°0¥6°C 786°5£9°E 870°€T'E 8YLLO6T 90¥'10L°T 6I8°69%'1T  8988°591°1 SOVIAIOS J0BIUOD
986°L99°¢ PEELIC'S  (99€958) 018°555C LO1°8ZIE S8L6T8T 65LYS8T PL6VSOT  69T'SYLT sosuadxo
pore[al sakoiduro 29 safem
L96E0TT 165°SL8'T 069'8SH°T 6Y8V0T'E 920°89¢°¢ 180°vLY'E 1LE'8LT'E £29'905"y PS8'L69Y  0STTLE'T I91eM JO 350D
1SOSUD XH Eu&.ﬁ O
TOTPITOTS SLIGIS'S § 9PR'EOC6 § T1ESCETTIS CLOTSOTIS STLVPESTIS COVLLOOLS L9SOITL § 998FPILSS SLzevscs anuaady SupeiadQ
20T £20T 20T 1202 0202 610C 3102 L10Z 9102 S102

(Supunodd¥ J0 sISeq [EnLIdL)
SIedX [BOSl Ua], )se|
uonisod 39N ui saduey)
1L SI(] 133BAN AJUNO)) oJuUdg ULy



89

Juounreda(] 90UBUL] JASI(T Jaje A AJUN0D) OJUAg UeS :90110g Bleq

OIYII9 § SLIBISYS 9p8'C9E6 § ICSCETTIS TOTSOT'S SILYESTIS TOWLLOOIS L9SOITL § 998PILSS SLTTHTS

L660€ 0710sT 001081 676'SS SPHES | Y 09916 £8€°79 sl anuAsy Fuesd() 19430
S0T 867 weSsy €S9 T8y ’ ‘, $24 JutuaBeuel Jojempunoin)
691 pL87¢ ¥8LTS 805LE 801 £00'71 06£0¢ S99 T I3
05951 168067 S¥ST09 OI'eey 8LSLLT 959°LTC  868°0€T sadIey) 1ajempunol)
LITy 10v'7 698 1€5°€ S61'¢ 6187 19°¢ sadueoxg % sigjsuel],
- - - - . : - - (swayskg jemy) a81ey) ASraugy
- - - 0SLT 00012 0007 0es0r 0z 09681 (SwioysAg [erny]) puetia] 3 20IA13

SLOTEO0T  LS9V9E9  S¥9'9E99  ELSEISL  SBIVITL  9EITIEY  e6196L
STy 966vE  TLOTE 806'€C YL'6T 01817 681
£59°871 9eE91T  9ISTII 76968 09101 w09°eL 02969

98EYT  S66TLS  uEld Juoweal] - SAES 18 PRSI
- 135 paokoay - sy Jamog

- 18Je | P[OKI0Y - SI[ES Jjep

16V 65y LTSI L9591 1£9°G6¢ £69'66 68C6LL 796160 [ 0eL99l adyq e - aBrey) Jamog
91098 § ST8WIL § 6609%IT S L06BLYE § SLSTTRE § POSLIET § OEITOVE § LILES , GSES 6STLSYTS oo ueg - sofeg 1ojep
o0z £t e 1a0e 020 610 810 L102 910¢ c10¢

(Surmoda. Jo siseq [enidoe)
SIBAX [BISI] WAL, IS0
A10331e)) Aq anuaaay Sueradq
10LSI(T 1oyepy Aunoy) ojuag ueg



69

a8xeyo Aprqenar 101eM (01 $ Sopnjout ey Jerysnpuy 29 Tedommy 202 (1)

A1en1ga J ySnoxy YoreN - Jesax 1em ¢

aunteda(q ooueur] 10MSI(T 1B AN AUNO)) ONUSY UBS (9010 Ble(] ¢

00°9$ 09°1¥$ 0€°L6$ 09°1¥$ (@) 00°518$ 00°00€$ 20T
00°9$ 0T 0v$ 00'¥6$ (1) 00°€SL$ 00'%67$ ¥70T
00°9$ SL'SES  STSEIS  SS'E6$ | 00 vTv$ 00vLT$ €20
009$ SL'SES  STSEI$  SS'E6$ 00 vZH$ 00 LTS 7202
009$ SLYES  0TYEIS 08068  SYOVS - 00°STHS 00598 1202
00°9$ 0L'€E$  0E0EI$  SI'88S  OE6E$ - 00'VOVS$ 00ST$ 0202
00°9$ 010L$  SPTLI$S  S9911$  ST08$ '0E1$ 00°60T$ 6102
00°9$ S0'898  SYL9I$  STEIIS  06LLS  08'9TIS 00161 810
00°9$ $099$  SSTOI$  S6'601S  S9SLS  OI'EZIS 00°TLTS$ L10T
00°9$ 08°€7$ SI'L6S  OL'SYS  SOIES SLTYS 00'6L1$ 9107
| ewvig | 100,] a0V 12 _
ANpqepeay SPPONY | He | 116 [ H9 [ T | orey [emsnpu] apey 8z Areniqa g
%% Aqpuelg weysAsqng 4q 81w Jomod %9 [edionmy [emynoLsy popug
) JBa X IaJe M\

SIBJX [BISL UQL ISe]
W) sAS uonnquysiq 2dyoq ueg
SIJBY 11BN
PUSI 1938\ Ajuno)) ojuag ues



$10Z N0V X1, AtN0)) - 95g1Q 5,J08S9sSY Auno)) owaum ueg :9

TSS'9S1°000°C  s1akedxe], pueT 9 SUOZ Igf ANjeA pueT Pass

s1vAedxe] pueT I8 1] onjBA nmﬁ Possass

0L

ue§ 9 9u0Z JOLYSI(T IR A\ A0 ojuag ues B

€207 10Y X8, AUn0)) - 90[F (O §,1085a8SY AJUNO,) OfUSE UBS 190MOS BIB(] B

s1oAedxe], pueT 9 SUOZ IO} SH{BA PURT POSSISSY [RI0]

T09€SI6°168°T TLSOT9T608°E srokedxe], pue I9QpQ J0J 9N[EA PURT POSSISSY
%IP'S Z61° 197801 sioAedxe] pue 1sadie] possassy €TTLIS'STT sioAedxe] pue iso81e] passassy
%970 €0€°0€T°S 01 dioD gD e oup Aeg yinog sauoy g3 06S'0LE YT 01 ouy aA1359Y Apadolyg
%870 888°665°C 6 101 Apuie] g jouef ‘seqoy 6 DT VO JO SAUnuano ) Axua)
%CE0 y10°994°9 8 OT1 s3jeQ uenf ueg 3 d71eL1 ™SO
%8€°0 STI'6€9°L L "N uuesdioon)- \, ALET UosIopuy L Hed Prijned) e d171 seyouey 19qoq
%6£°0 PLY'9T8L 9 18E6T# "00 Y00y ayueln %810 9 D11 VD JO SAWOH Jeuus]
%bi0 €SLYTL'S S d'7 sasuadroprg o014 %64°0 g 41 19ISIIOH -11esoy]
%9t°0 S08°16Z°6 14 IV 34 1sni], 9[qed0Ady 90T eind %E£9°0 14 d1 soH Ay axng
%59°0 $66°630°¢1 £ d'] seyouey 19pqo(q %£9°0 ¢ D11 8o 13
%3L0 000°919°S1 4 "OU SAWOH plemy %980 4 ouf Aeg ynog sowoy g
%bP'1 SE8°9LL°8TS I "ouf aa¥asay Atedoig %101 SI18°SH9°0vS 1 JT1 e venf ueg
anjeA pue uoneneA juey IoAedxe] anjeA pue] uoenjeA quey IoAedxe]
POsSsSassy [BI0],  pUBT PIsSassy Passessy [Rj0],  pue passassy
J0 o8eaorag JO 38uuanisg
SI0T-Y10T L&A X4 114

(9 auoz - 1LSI 1938 AJuno)) ojuag ueg) s1odedxe], puey redpuLg

JOLLSI(T 1338AN AJUNOY) OJUAY UBY



1L

Jauneda] aoueuL] ST Jojepy AUno?) opusg UeS :30Mmog ve( o

Aymo?) opuag ueg
Su-megﬁu Emﬁwgg\wsmaoee\%m eaJ0py/diny) ot Jo juauniedaq ‘eoye)) JO MRS
Joked TV SYAED (ued Joisqap) Yue [euoneN Supiolg
Jokeq [ende)) wseg-uy ygs “v°N ‘voperodiooueq suorz
PAjokoay pue ¢ aujourel ] Eary ueqin) JaiSOH e [euoneN A1)

LLYIT 8§ €589 €80'86S°L § ; 000'68€°C £80'80LT §
PoSTl 8§ 9999 TE10LT8 §  00090€9°C IE1°LL0°E §
889¢1 §  6LY'S9 1097968 §  000%6LC 109°7Er'c §
wur 8 9789 8S8°I0L'6 §  000°910°C 86808LC §
2099 $ £5£°79 YA TE A €791y §
6T1L $ 96TV 9wy § - AN E A
1€'g8 §  880'LS 808'ssLy § - 808°SSLy  §
688 §  6L89S 619090 § - 619°090's §
656 $ ¥79%9s L98'sse’s § - L98°55¢°S  §
: § TsH9s : § - ) $
- $ 6179 - ¢ - ] g
eude) (1) vopgndog 198 [e10L, (€) yueg (7) vonesodiooueg (1) queg
1ad1q9( JeuoneN Supalg suor7 JeuoneN A1)
183X {eOSL] URL, 158
199 Pmsiq

JHSIQ Tojep Ajumo)) ojuag ueg

LS e T atin)
e

v0e
€20t
i
120T
020t
610C
810¢
L10T
910T
10T
v10¢



(43

‘sourd seI], pue I)SoH Supumorms seaie ueqm

parerodiooummn ‘12)sijoH Jo A1) ‘eisuneg uenf ueg Jo A0 :opnjoul PIAISS SO0 [BIUSPISSY
"sopw axenbs 0o 1 Ajereturxoxdde Jo vore ue s ‘Auno)) oyuag ueg Jo e sessedwoous JoLnsi(] oYL ¢

SHUN0d snsudd )z derodioow seyeumss uopemndod ssoyy (9)

SIUNOD SNSUAI ()] (7 derodioour sayeumse uonegmdod asay], (g)

(A03's[q'mmmydyy) sonsiels JogeT jo neamg ‘S (1)

(onuog -ueg/Aunoo 310 ejep-pomma/.dny) erep-pg ()

(03 voq Mmm/7dny) sisATeuy onuouoog jo neamg (7)

(/19-oyeumso/somdeigowep/Bunsesaioy/aod-eogop,.duy) aoueur] Jo juaunreda( ‘enone)) Jjo a1eis (1)
Y 4 ; ; “ :$90I0S BIR(] ¢

%€°9 69611 JqefreAe Jou €689 ¥20¢
%6°S 10611 €78°89 . 999°69 ) €20¢
%T'Y L68TT 1L9°€9 8 6LY°S9 © 70T
%9'L LTV 1T 62T°S9 $ 9zs'¢9 © 1202
%8t SHSTT 99479 $ €59 © 0202
%1'S 8EV'T1 SIL'SS $ 000°CT8 OLY 967'c9  © 6107
%8S €ST11 §L9°9S $ 000'8¥¥'SET’E S 880°LS © 810¢
%89 N Ovv'¥S $ 000°T8+°960°€$ 60895 &) L10T
%I'L PIITI 00L°0S $ 000°918°0L8T $ ¥29'9s  © 910
%9°L 99111 €LY'LY $ 000°6£T°169°C $ s¥9s  (© S10T
() ey €3) AWOOU] [EUOSISJ ) (1 :2) §
Juawfopduaun JUU[[OIUF] [OOYIS ende)) 194 AWOOU] [BUOSId] uonemdod
oJuag UeS JO AUno))
SIBOX [BOSLf Ud] 1se}

s spe)S dnuouody pue somderdowa (g
PLYSI 19)epp AHuno)) ojuag ues



Jqe[eA. J0U

eL

90IURIO)) JO JaquIey D) AJUn0)) OJUg UBS :92IN0S BIR(] O

6T - 001
6T - 001
65T - 001
6T - 001
6T - 001
6T - 001
6T - 001
6T - 001
6T - 001
6¥T - 001

- 6¥T - 001

uswAopdug Amo) duey sooAojduug wowkojdwy Atmo) yuey moommmm&m

[€10] JO a3ruaoisg

€101, J0 a3ejuadiog '

Spoo,] ojueg ues
Somonod DN

oredSary

Sy % emiuue],

SuIaISAS 93Uy A9feA 18paD)
BN 9p BSe))

Srewadpnyg

SULIEIA 1S9 M

uqron

[eoLL

19818

SPOOA ItH 9ON

suLre,] Jee] oniy,

[00U0S YSIH oyueg ues

JNUSLOS OgIoe

prespA

[e)1dSOH] [BITOWSA SUDMeH [oZeH
uie  punoquileyq

S1o¢

¥20T

Auno)) opuag ue§ ‘siakojduryg [ediourrg
PLSI(] 13)BAL AJUNO)D) 03U UBS

Aueduio))



vi

Areniqo,] YSnony) YoIe = Jed X INeM O
SUO[e3 [G8°STE =100, A0V [ ¢
Areuumg ATAI[9(] UOIIBOIYIE IOLNSI(T ISIR AN ATUNOD) ONURY UBS :20I0S Ble(] ¢

81L°CT 800¢C

0SLVT L00T

105°CC 900¢

SOLvT $00T

6£0°9C 00T
TLL'6T 18€9C €002
S0s‘c $T9°0T 00T
6709 STSYT 1002
€I8°LT 1202 LY9°1T 0002
66S°TT 0202 EP1°91 6661
159°CC 610¢C 0L SE 8661
SE9°€T 810C 781°8C L661
L6EET L10T 7S9°6C 9661
[L1°¢ 910¢ 1€9°CI S661
7€8°8 S10T 199°8¢ Y661
9ST¥1 102 47N €661
L6561 €10T 661
002°CT r4(i14 1661
9SH LT 1102 0661
0188 010T 6861
88TLI 6002C 8861

uoneomyig 8¢C 8T
1 yoeay] y3noyy, Areniqa papug yoeay y3noxyy, Arenige, J papuyg
Um.az_oﬂ 18107, B9 A I19je M ﬁo.ﬁ\ﬁoﬁ [e10], 180X JJB M\

(193] 210V wI S[BIOL)
(¥20T-8861)
A3uno)) 0jIudg UeS 0) SILIJAII(] 19)BA
uorsIAL(] adifo ueg - 393f0ag AdfBA [enud)
JIDLSI(] 19)BAA AJUNOD) OJHIIY UBS



SL

1SI'] [O0UOD) UORISOJ quounedog Qoueul,] JOLSICT 19JE AN A0 OJUSy UBS :90MOS BIe(] ¢

€T €7 S/€0T  S/€0T  S/£0T  S/£61  TI6l TL0T Y10z
A0 U 7 71 B /1 Y11 U1 U1 UONBAIISUOD) 131 A
A0 B /) 0 N /) B /) (L T /) & B /) S 19 UL SOUBUAUIBIA] % suonerdQ
z Z 4 4 4 z z 2 S0IG O I81E M
S S v v 12 4 € € SurreouiBuy
8 8 S/€9  S/£9  S/£9  S/£9 U119 Y19 19 U19 90UBUL{ 29 UOLEHSUIUPY
vZ0T  €T0T  CT0T  120T  0T0T  610T 8107 L10T 9107 $107 papug Jes X [eost] 10

SIBIX [BISL] UD], ISe]
yusun.redaq Aq soadopdury Jo Jaquun N
JOLSI(] 19)BAL AJUN0)) 0JIUdg ueLs



9L

9107 W paronnsuoo suadlJ I9eAN PIOAINY € O

(€707 1equisydss yBnoy 7707 1290100 swesardel 7z “§-9) Joquisydeg ySnoly; 190l - 189K 181RMPUNOID 7
(70T Arenuga ] ydnonyp €70z yore smesardor 70z “-0) Aterugay ydnonp yorepy - 184 193f01g ASf[RA [BOUDD) T O

9SIMISYIO PIJOU SSOJUN S[EJO} JBD A 8Ost O

suneds souewJ 10LLSI(T B A, AUNO)) ONUSE URS :902MOS BIB(] O

4 4 z 4 4

0s1 0s1 0s1 0S1 051+

4 4 [4 4 4

L L1 L L1 L1

14 v 14 14 14

6 6 6 6 6

07 14 0T 0z 07

14 14 14 14 b

S 4 S 14 14

14 14 81 S €l €1 I I

§98°y 918°S SIS 81t'e we'e 96¢'y 1L0°S 1749

LETEl  6T6'€T  86T'€T  69€°LI . STVOT  LEY'OT  P6TLI  LOI'ST

81y L6L'T V18T LTLy €Ly W'y 06T 81T

1196 LSy vT8y E8I°TL  €99T1  SIS'El  pTTST  LLTY

SE6'0E  S€6'0€  SE6'0E  SE60E  SE6'0E  SE6°0f  SE6°0E - SE60E  SE60E  SE6°0€
€ € € € € € € € £ €
17 114 LL 8y S 9¢ 0§ 9 LL s¢l
20T £20T 70T 1207 070 610C 810 L10T 9107 10T

(€) auyadig 10180 POjOKOY

wshsqng odia,f ueg

[e1ojeT UEn( URS

IMpuos) IRIsHOH
(*xoxdde) yorsiq Aq paurejureiy suadid Jo SN
$MIONNS [O[UOD) 29 JA[EA UONE[00I0] JO JoqUIMN
S2MISNLS [O[UOD) 729 A[BA WISASANS JO Joqump
sdum g jo Joqum
suoner§ Sudumg yo roqumpy

SAIOR,] UONNALISI(] / UOISSIUSURL ],

S9[oIo A Austudmbyg Aaeay
193] ] IenSay
SS[IMPA JO ToquniN
(1994 210Y) eLusnpuy 29 [edioruniy
(109 210V) JemNILBY
() (2) 98es Ie1empLNOID)
(1991 210Y) [etnsnpuy 29 fediommpy
(199 210V) [EMYMOLBY
(1) 98es) 1A odya, ueg
(103 210y ) sHOAIISTY uadQ Jo Aorde)) sanoy

snoa19s9y ued() Jo Jaqumy

passasoid suonesyddy om

weBSo1Juonomy

(r2027-S107)
wieiSoarguopounyg Aq saojedipuj Sugeiadp

PLGSI 1938AN AJUno)) ojuag ueg



LL

(yT0T Arenigag yanomy ¢z yorepy suasaidal $7oz “S9) Areruqe,] ySnoxy yoxepy - 1eak 10001 g AR A [BLUSD) T
SSIMISI0 PIJOU SSIUN S[EI0) JEI A [8OSL] O
JuaunIeda(] 25U,  JOLISKCT 19T AL AJUNO)) ONUSg UES :90IM0S BIe(] O

vI8'y 0761 78€°C 80y 065, 0907 #98°1 8LI'L (1934 210V ur) Papr01] JaE A MEY
4 z z 4 A | (4 1 I S]] JUSULEAI], JoJE A
9¢ ¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ 9¢ - 1018 POjOAOSY
V/IN VIN V/IN V/N 01 01 01 wsAg Jojep [eany
607 60F Sip. 11y STy 76¢ 9874 [oore s
99 0L 89 99 IL 1enuo)) [eLasnpuf 29 [edionmiy
SLS SLS €95 L9S 1489 10BIUOD) [RIYNOLITY
adijo f ueg
€02 LLI SLI 9L1 9L1 9L1 (eanoeur) onsawoQ
SOL TEL €eL 6€L I€L £€ZL (oAnoe) onsawo(]
LIT 50T 507 507 507 80 (eanoew) [ermynoLdy
€Ly I8¢ 0Ly 1454 497 1387 (oanyoe) femynoLidy

SIS AL TOIBMPUNOID)
SJUNOYOY JSWOISNY) JO IAqUINN

05T'8 £90°C £90°C SLL'S 0ST'8 881 0ST°8 €Sy (1994 210y Ur) J081U07) [eLnsOpU % [ediomniy

0S5°S¢ - - 09L'8 €990 SLLELY 055°s€ 8LLT (1991 210V ) J9BJUOD) UONEBLL
30 SunsIsuo)) uoneoOY [enury
193] 210V 08"y - AWANNU 198IUOD) [EI0T, %001
(1) 10enuo)) Ajddng 108 A [RISDS]
Y202 €207 (44014 1207 0207 6107 810T L10T 9107 S10¢T weigold/uoyoun g
(P207-5107)

(ponunuod) weadosguonounyg Aq siojedipuy Suneiadg
PLYSI 1B Auno)) ojuag ueg



3L

aunreda JurosmBug 10MmSI(] I91BAA AUNO)D) OJUSY UeS (90mMoS vied ¢

(519 S 30 Aoeded) UOISISAI(] soyoeald so(d
(g0 0g-21BD pues pue ‘91D [[IH e UOISISAI( UOHIIA)
SIMIO.,J UOISISAL(T [BUB)) SSUIDiBd

soquu ¢ xoldde (10 (¢) [euR) saudied
Aoeded Y 0B CECE TOATISIY sourored
P o' 00€°LT Anoede) Aoy
P OB 00S 11 0BU0D poo[d
¥ o' 000°0€ Je10l [Andede)) TOAISSIY ZoPUBLLIOH
WAISAS JOATY oNusyg ues

JUE[J JUSWIIBAL], I9IBAA SITH 1S90
Jue[d JUSUBS1] ISIBAA JBSSO
ISIIE[J JUSULBIL], I91e AN

wd8 000y Jo Aoedes ‘sopu 'z ‘adid your 41
ouradrd 1918 A\ PO[OAISY

(somu %bougoanm ,m ouL 9¢ 0} 9 wIoy adurl sIvouIEIp) sougadl ] wLisAsqng adie,] ueg

8]0 6€ JO Andrded (810} ‘SomyonIlS [ONUO)) PUB JA[BA UOIEB[00IS] §

2 961 JO Auordes [#10) ‘S2IIONIS [ONUOD) PUR JAJBA WIDISASNS 6

(008‘C 30 1omodoasioy pojjeIsul [2103 pue vM TEL .wo \Qumawo [e101 & ynm sdumd (7 JO IsIsuod) suonel§ SurdumJg 4

TWRISAS uonnquysicy adio, uesg

:SONI[IoR,] JIOLIISI(J 12IBAA AJURO.) 0JIUOY UEBS

'SJO 08V ,wo\gommmo somu g6 edid your 9z 1 ---unpuo)) odsyoed
"SJ0 08% JO Anoedes ‘sopuu ¢7'¢ “odid your [ [ -[ouun], 0oayded
000 YT JO 1omodasioy pajfeIsul 8301 € Yim §J0 009 30 Anoeded E«S ‘sdumd z1 ‘Y1 ¥ 00¢ A]oreunxoidde
. ; ; -jue g Surdum g 0o9yoe g
11 yoeay 2digs ues
DLSIT I8 M AJ[[RA 8&0 BJUBS M sgoamﬂlo w paurejuienl pue pajerado sannoe

g ﬂ Jo Qonamo soMmu 117 “odid your 7
Jeioje] uenf ueg
1oedes ‘sou ¢/ 1 ‘odid your 09 pue ¢
JMpuoD) ISOH
SJ0 68 .Ho Ayoedeo ‘sejuu Q¢ ‘odid yow 9 - 1900
bwomamo 19910108 0001
JIOAISSTY OIsnf ues
‘paureItIedl pue pajeiado ommsiq
isonIoe] 3o9lo1d uonewe[0aY JO neamg $91elS panu) SUMOJ[O) SY3 JO SouBUSIUIEW pue uonelado 10} Sjqisuodsal St JOLISI] YL
SOUI[E] UONBWIE[IIY JO nBdIny SLIS PI(]

SaMIoR,
J2LISI(] 193eA\ AJUno)) ojuag ues



Board of Directors Checklist
Date:
Regular Board Meeting

FOSTING Done
SBCWD Board

FULL PACKETS (By Mail or Hand Delivered)
(ONLY Hand Deliver Board/Counsel packets
if not at post office by 5 p.m. on Friday)
Mark Wright

John Freeman

Joe Tonascia

Sonny Flores

Doug Williams

Jeremy Liem

FULL COPIES (+ 5 for wall)

Dana Jacobson

Brett Miller

Barbara Mauro (Original)

Binder

Agenda Only -- Staff
Jennifer Cosio Arellano
Michael Craig

David Macdonald

Cindy Paine

AGENDA -- ONLY (E-mail)
Ashley Collick City Manager COSJB
Bob Swanson

Brittany--SBC Farm Bureau
Chris Olvera

Julia Dyer

Mandy Rose

Megan Holland

Paul Rovella

Richard Bettencourt

Scott Petersen

Tres Pinos Water District

14 Full Packets; 5 Agendas; 11 Via- E-mail

Upload Agenda under Current Board Agenda

pload Agenda under Board of Directors, Agendas, Board Agendas and
Packets

pload Agenda Packet under Board of Directors, Agendas, Board
Agendas and Packets

\\Sbcwd-fs\sbcwd\Board Folders\Director Info-Labels-Distribution\2025\Checklist for Regular Board of Directors
Meetings 2025 Revised 01-07-25



San Benito County Water District

Agenda Transmittal
Agenda Item: 7

Meeting Date: January 29, 2025
Submitted By: Barbara Mauro

Presented By: Barbara Mauro

Agenda Title: Public Hearing Regarding 2025-2026 Groundwater Charges

Detailed Description:

On January 25, 2023, at a regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the District,
Resolution 2023-06 was approved establishing groundwater charges in Zone 6 for the
water years 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026. The District Act (Section 70-7.1
through 70-7.17) defines the purpose and process the District must follow in the
collection of groundwater charges. For water year 2025-2026, the District has approved
a groundwater rate increase of $0.28 per acre foot of water for a total charge of $14.31
per acre foot.

Consistent with the District’s past practices, staff is requesting that the Board hold a
public hearing regarding the groundwater rates and consider confirmation of the rates for
the 2025-2026 water year as adopted in resolutlon 2023 06.

~Prmr Comrmttee or Board Action(s): : e
" Adoption of Resolution 2023-06 — A Resolutlon of the Board of Dlrectors of the San» o

Benito County Water District establishing groundwater charges in Zone 6 for the
2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026 water years

Financial Impact: X Yes No
Confirmation of Groundwater rates will increase the groundwater fees for Agricultural
and Municipal and Industrial water from $14.03 per acre foot to $14.31 per acre foot

Funding Source/ Recap:
N/A

" Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Resolution 2023-06




Recommendation: Conduct public hearing in accordance with the District Act and
approve confirmation of 2025-2026 groundwater charges.

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action

___Resolution No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




RESOLUTION NO. 2023-06

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
ESTABLISHING GROUNDWATER CHARGES IN ZONE 6
FOR THE 2023-2024, 2024-2025 and 2025-2026 WATER YEARS

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 70-7.7 of the San Benito County Water
District Act, the Board of Directors held a public hearing on the second
Monday of January 2023 to review and receive public comment on the Final
Annual Groundwater Report for Water Year 2022; and

WHEREAS, on January 9, 2023 the Board of Directors accepted the
Annual Groundwater Report for Water Year 2022 with the findings read into
the record as set forth in Water Code Appendix 70-7.6; and

WHEREAS, the Final Annual Groundwater Report recommends that a
groundwater charge be levied, and presents water supply, water usage, and
water replenishment information and presents proposed rates (revenue levels);
and

WHEREAS, the District mailed notices to all parcels upon which the
charge is to be imposed setting forth the information required in Section 6 of
Article XIII D of the California Constitution (Proposition 218) and notifying the
owners thereof of a public hearing on January 25, 2023, to consider the
charge; and

WHEREAS, after 45 days from the date said Notice was mailed, the
Board conducted a public hearing on January 25, 2023, to determine whether
or not the charge should be levied in Zone 6, and to consider the amount of
any such charge; and

WHEREAS, less than a majority of the owners or lessees of parcels upon
which the charge is proposed for imposition filed protests.

WHEREAS, a notice of a public hearing for January 25, 2023 was
published in the newspaper as required by the District Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED pursuant to
Section 70-7.8 of the San Benito County Water District Act that the
groundwater charges for the ensuing water years (March 1, 2023 through
February 29, 2024, March 1, 2024 through February 28, 2025 and March 1,
2025 through February 28, 2026) are hereby levied assessed and fixed against
all persons operating groundwater producing facilities within Zone 6 as follows:



Water Year 2023-2024
Water Primarily for Municipal and Industrial Purposes
$ 13.75 per acre foot
Water Primarily for Agricultural Purposes
$ 13.75 per acre foot

Water Year 2024-2025
Water Primarily for Municipal and Industrial Purposes
$ 14.03 per acre foot
Water Primarily for Agricultural Purposes
$ 14.03 per acre foot

Water Year 2025-2026
Water Primarily for Municipal and Industrial Purposes
$ 14.31 per acre foot
Water Primarily for Agricultural Purposes
$ 14.31 per acre foot

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED pursuant to Section 70-
7.10 of the San Benito County Water District Act that each operator of a water
producing facility not measured with a water measuring device and/or not
producing water from said facility shall file a statement verified by a written
declaration made under penalty of perjury on or before the 31st day of January
in each year until such time as said facility has been permanently abandoned,
setting forth a total production in acre feet of water for the preceding calendar
year (excluding the month in which the statement is due), a general description
or number locating each water-producing facility, and the method or basis of
the computation of such water production or that no water has been produced
from said water-producing facility.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that should the operation
of a water-producing facility fail to file the aforementioned statement, said
operator shall be assessed in addition to an interest charge calculated at the
rate of 1% for each month on the delinquent amount of the groundwater
charge, a penalty representing 10% of the amount found by the District to be
due.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that continued replenishment of the
groundwater supplies of Zone 6 is necessary;

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the above groundwater charge does
not exceed the costs reasonably borne by the District in the period of the
charge in providing the water supply service authorized by the District Act in
Zone 6, which costs are set forth in Exhibits “Al and A2”, attached hereto
and incorporated by this reference.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED that the term “primary” or
“primarily” is defined in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference.



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the following criteria shall be used in
computing the amount of water produced from a water-producing facility,
which is not measured by a measuring device:

Inside water use shall be determined on the basis of 0.05 acre feet per
person, per residence or dwelling unit, plus a base water use of 0.10 acre
feet per residence or dwelling unit.

Outside water use for irrigation shall be determined on the basis of 0.09
acre feet per 1000 square feet of watered land up to 2.0 acres. For water
areas greater than 2.0 acres generally accepted unit water duties based
on crop type and irrigation method as determined by the District shall be
used.

Outside water use for livestock watering shall be determined on the basis
of 0.02 acre feet per animal unit up to 10 and 0.01 acre feet per animal
unit for each unit above 10.

Outside water use for fowl shall be determined on the basis of 0.005 acre
feet per 100 fowl.

1. Findings:

The Board of Directors hereby finds and determines that:

a) Revenues derived from the charge imposed herein do not exceed
the funds required to pay for operation and maintenance and
costs associated with Zone 6 of the San Benito County Water
District, San Felipe Division of the Central Valley Project, as
authorized by the voters in Zone 6 on November 8, 1977 and
shall not be used for any other purpose;

b) The amount of the charge does not exceed the proportional cost
of the service attributable to the parcel;

¢) The service for which the charge is imposed (see 1.a) above) is
actually used by or is immediately available to the owner in
question,;

d) The charge is not imposed for general governmental services.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District held on the 25t day of January, 2023 by the
following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS: Flores, Shelton, Tonascia, Williams and Wright
NOES: DIRECTORS: None
ABSENT: DIRECTORS: None
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS: None



(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2023-06)

/s/Sonny Flores
Sonny Flores
President

ATTEST:  /s/Joyce Machado
Joyce Machado
Manager of Administration, Finance
and Business Services




EXHIBIT B

ESTABLISHING THE PRIMARY USE OF WELLS IN ZONE 6

The primary use must be established on all wells that are used for both agricultural and
municipal and industrial purposes.

Agricultural water shall mean water used primarily in the commercial production of
agricultural crops or livestock, including domestic use incidental thereto, on tracts of
land operated in units of more than 2 acres. ‘

Municipal, Industrial and domestic water (hereinafter referred to as M & I water) shall
mean water used for other than agricultural purposes.

IN ORDER TO QUALIFY AS AN AGRICULTURAL WELL, THERE MUST BE AT
LEAST 2 ACRES OF AGRICULTURAL LAND FOR EVERY DWELLING THAT THE
WELL ALSO SERVES.

Examples of various ratios applied in the classification of wells:

2 Acres of Agricultural Land & 1 Dwelling Agricultural or M & I

(as determined by District)

4 Acres of Agricultural Land & 2 Dwellings Agricultural or M & 1

(as determined by District)

2 Acres of Agricultural Land & 2 Dwellings = M&I
4 Acres of Agricultural Land & 3 Dwellings = Mé&I
4 Acres of Agricultural Land & 1 Dwelling = Agricultural

6 Acres of Agricultural Land & 2 Dwellings = Agricultural



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: g

Meeting Date: January 29, 2025
Submitted By: Dana Jacobson

Presented By: Dana Jacobson

Agenda Title: B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project

a. Consider Approval and Authorize San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority to
Execute the Agreement between the United States and the San Luis & Delta-
Mendota Water Authority for the Management of the Expanded San Luis
Reservoir and Cost Share of Charges Associated with Raising of the B.F. Sisk
Dam and Increased Storage Capacity of the Federally Administered San Luis
Reservoir

b. Consider Approval and Authorize the Board President to Execute the First
Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project
Activity Agreement and Make a Financial Commitment of INTE) $200,000

c. Consider Resolution and Authorize Board President to sign said resolution,
Approving of both B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project
Agreements

Description:

The U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) and the San Luis & Delta-Mendota
Water Authority (SLDMWA) have been developing the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and
Reservoir Expansion Project (Project), which would raise the existing B.F. Sisk Dam by
10 feet and increase the storage capacity of San Luis Reservoir by 130,000 acre-feet
(AF). Separately, Reclamation and the Department of Water Resources (DWR) are in the
process of implementing the B.F. Sisk Safety of Dams Modification Project, which will
address seismic risks of the existing dam but will not increase the storage capacity. The
intention is for both projects to move forward concurrently such that the dam raise project
can be completed as efficiently and cost-effectively as possible. The bulk of the planning
and environmental permitting has been completed and Reclamation is now moving into
the design phase of the Project.




Reclamation, SLDMWA, and Project participants recently completed negotiations for a
Cost Share and Capacity Management Agreement (Cost Share Agreement), which
defines the rights and obligations of each party for the duration of the Project. It also
describes how the costs and benefits of the Project will be shared, which provides the
District and other participants with sufficient information to make a decision on
continued participation. The District will not be a party to this agreement.

For several years the District has been participating in the Project through an Activity
Agreement with other SLDMWA members. Amendments to this agreement have also
been negotiated and are ready for approval. The Activity Agreement is designed to
govern the District’s participation through planning, design, construction, and ultimately
operations of the Project. However, the Project participants may ultimately elect to assign
SLDMWA'’s rights and obligations to a separate entity or joint powers authority for the
purpose of financing and/or future operations.

Reclamation anticipates reserving 39,000 AF (30%) of the new storage capacity to
support federal wildlife refuges and other Central Valley Project (CVP) purposes. Project
participants expect to reserve the remaining 91,000 AF (70%) for their benefit. Project
planning, design and construction costs will be shared between Reclamation and Project
participants in this proportion. The District has tentatively reserved 5,033 AF of storage
capacity, which is equivalent to 5.5% of the participant share of the Project.

The current estimate of capital costs is over $1 billion, with Reclamation being
responsible for $307 million and the participants being responsible for $716 million. The
District’s share would be approximately $40 million, not including financing costs.

Table 1: B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Capital Costs

Capital Costs (52024)
Crest Raise $515,430,000
Highway 152 $507,000,000
Total $1,022,430,000

Reclamation will continue to own and operate the expanded San Luis Reservoir, while
participants will be provided rights to storage capacity that can be used to store any water
type available. The District would be able to store its wet-year CVP water supplies that
typically go unused and deliver them to the County when conditions are dry. It could also
store spot market purchases in years when prices are lower, rather than purchasing
supplemental supplies in drought years when prices are higher. The District will also be
able to divert and store additional Delta surplus water during extremely wet years, which
it rarely takes advantage of now because of a lack of storage capability.

The security of stored water was a sticking point for much of the negotiations.
Reclamation insists that there are certain times when it may need to take participant’s
stored CVP water to satisfy its higher priority contractual or statutory obligations or to
protect public health and safety. While this is likely to occur only during a severe or




multi-year drought, it is clearly the most significant risk of the Project. However,
Reclamation would not be able to take non-CVP water without first reaching mutual
agreement on compensation, which provides the District a mechanism to mitigate any
potential loss of CVP water.

The District has previously made a total financial contribution of approximately $170,000
towards the planning phase of the Project. An additional $4 million is now needed
collectively from participants to continue into the design phase, with the District’s share
being approximately $170,000. If other participants withdraw, additional capacity could
be made available, and the District could have to absorb a pro-rata share of these costs.
Staff is therefore requesting an expenditure of up to $200,000 to cover these costs if this
occurs. A more significant contribution of $20 million ($1.1 million for the District) will
be needed from the participants in early 2026. Major construction funding would be
required in late 2027.

Approval of these agreements does not represent the District’s decision to approve the
Project. The final decision would likely occur when financing is secured for the
construction costs. The District’s participation in the project is intended to address future
urban growth in the County. Costs for the project would be recovered through a capacity
fee charged on new development.

Prior Committee or Board Action:
Administration Committee Meeting, January 22, 2025

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap: 600-1351-B129-151-02

Material included for Information/Consideration:
Administration Committee Recommendation
Cost Share Agreement

Amended and Restated Activity Agreement
Draft Resolution

Staff Presentation

NN

Recommendation: Staff and the Administration committee are recommending the
Board approve both agreements and a financial contribution of $200,000 towards
continued participation in the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project.

Action Required: X Resolution X Motion __ Review




Board Action

Resolution No. Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: January 22, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Administration Committee
(Flores/Williams)

SUBJECT: Board Recommendation to approve:

a. Authorizing the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority
to Execute the Agreement between the United States and the
San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority for the
Management of the Expanded San Luis Reservoir and Cost
Share of Charges Associated with Raising of the B.F. Sisk
Dam and Increased Storage Capacity of the Federally
Administered San Luis Reservoir

b. Authorizing the Board President to Execute the First
Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir
Expansion Project Activity Agreement and Make a Financial
Commitment of $200,000

C. Discuss and Consider Recommendation to Board to Approve
Resolution and Authorize Board President to sign said
resolution, Approving of both B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and
Reservoir Expansion Project Agreements

The Administration Committee met on January 22, 2025 and discussed the
agreements for the B F Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project.

The Administration Committee agreed to recommend the Board approve:
Authorizing the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority to Execute the
Agreement between the United States and the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water
Authority for the Management of the Expanded San Luis Reservoir and Cost
Share of Charges Associated with Raising of the B.F. Sisk Dam and Increased
Storage Capacity of the Federally Administered San Luis Reservoir, Authorizing
the Board President to Execute the First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam
Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity Agreement and Make a
Financial Commitment of $200,000 and Approve Resolution and Authorize
Board President to sign said resolution, Approving of both B.F. Sisk Dam Raise
and Reservoir Expansion Project Agreements.

s

Director Flores

Director Williams



Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION

Central Valley Project, California

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE UNITED STATES AND
THE SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY
FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE EXPANDED SAN LUIS RESERVOIR
AND COST SHARE OF CHARGES
ASSOCIATED WITH RAISING OF THE B.F. SISK DAM
AND INCREASED STORAGE CAPACITY
OF THE FEDERALLY ADMINISTERED SAN LUIS RESERVOIR

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Article No. Title Page No.
PLEAMDIE ..ottt ettt ettt et et bbbt st n e 1
Explanatory RECItals ........cooooiviiiiiininiiiee s 2

1 DETINIEIONIS .ot e e et e et eere e et et e b eb e e s s et ecaae e st s e s s e be e b b et e b ek ettt 7
2 Term Of AGIEEMENLT......cccovviiiuiiiiiiie ettt 11
3 COSE SRATE ...e.eeeeieei ittt et et e st et e et s e sa e bbb a e e e b e b st et e 15
4 Management of Expanded RESEIVOIr........cocoivoiiierniinincni 19
5 Coordination and COOPEration . .........ccoeiviriairiiieiieenee et 31
6 EXIStNG CONIACES ....viurreecmciiititeestetes ettt e 29
7 DiSpute RESOIUIION . ....vcucuitiiiirieime s 30
8 Waiver of Non-compliance with Any Provision of this Agreement..................... 30
9 Opinions and Determinations ..o 29
10 INOTICES v eveeereeeeeeiee et eeaeeeseeeteeste s s e s e et e e b e e e e ebeesa e s beare e es s esb e b e e b e b e et bt n et es 31
11 Contingent on Appropriation or Allotment of Funds ..., 32
12 Officials NOt t0 BeNefIt.......cciviiirieeieienieceeeieciie e 32
13 Assignment Limited - Successors and Assigns Obligated..........cccoooeninnninn. 32
14 Books, Records, and REPOIS........cccccuiiiiiiiniimiiiee s 32
15 Compliance with Federal Reclamation Laws ... 33
16 Equal Employment Oppurtuiity ........cococceeeereeenmieninensecniiniaesssss s 33
17 Compliance with Civil RIGHES......cooiiiiiiiie 35
18 Certification of Nonsegrated Facilities ........ccooeiiiiininncnin 35



19
20

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

Medium for Transmitting Payments ........c.cococieoiniiiniinencee e 36
Agreement Drafting Considerations ........cccoouiveiiiiiinnininenineencnin s 36
SINALUIE PAZE............coveeeeeeereeeeereeseeesenesecaerserseesessessasssssass s s s sssssseses 37

Exhibit A: Contributed Funds Agreement

Exhibit B: Spend Plan

Exhibit C: Coordination Agreement

Exhibit D: OM&R Agreement

Exhibit E: Final Storage Benefits

Exhibit F: B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity
Agreement



10

11

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

UNITED STATES
DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
BUREAU OF RECLAMATION

Central Valley Project, California

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE UNITED STATES AND
THE SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY
FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE EXPANDED SAN LUIS RESERVOIR
AND COST SHARE OF CHARGES
ASSOCIATED WITH RAISING OF THE B.F. SISK DAM
AND INCREASED STORAGE CAPACITY
OF THE FEDERALLY ADMINISTERED SAN LUIS RESERVOIR

THIS AGREEMENT (SLRE Management and Cost Share Agreement), made this

day of , 20 , pursuant to the Reclamation Act of 1902, as

amended (32 Stat. 388; 43 U.S.C. Part 391); including the Act of February 21, 1911 (36 Stat.
925); the Reclamation Project Act of 1939, as amended (53 Stat. 1187; 43 U.S.C. Part 485); the
San Luis Act of 1960, as amended (Public Law 86-488, 74 Stat. 156); the Reclamation Safety of
Dams Act of 1978 (Public Law 95-578, 92 Stat. 2471); the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982, as
amended (Public Law 97-293, 96 Stat. 1261); and Section 305 of the Reclamation States
Emergency Drought Relief Act of 1991, enacted March 5, 1992 (106 Stat. 59); the Central
Valley Project Improvement Act of 1992, as amended (Public Law 102-575, 106 Stat. 4706); and
the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation Act of 2016 (Public Law 114-322, 130

Stat. 1865); made between the UNITED STATES BUREAU OF RECLAMATION, hereinafter




12

13

14

15

16
17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

the United States or Reclamation, and represented by the officer executing this Agreement,
hereinafter referred to as the Contracting Officer, and the SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA
WATER AUTHORITY, hereinafter referred to as the Authority, individually referred to as
“Party” and collectively referred to as “Parties”.

EXPLANATORY RECITALS
[1%] WHEREAS, the United States has constructed and is operating the Central Valley
p g

Project for diversion, storage, carriage, and distribution of waters of the Sacramento River, the
American River, the Trinity River, and the San Joaquin River and their tributaries for irrigation
and other beneficial uses to serve Central Valley Project purposes; and

[2"] WHEREAS, the United States holds title, and plans to continue to hold title to the
B.F. Sisk Dam and San Luis Reservoir and authorized features of the San Luis Unit as provided
for in the San Luis Act of 1960; and

[3M] WHEREAS, the San Luis Act of 1960 (Public Law 86-488, 74 Stat. 156)
authorized the Secretary of the Interior to construct, operate, and maintain an afterbay, forebay,
conveyance facilities, and dam and Reservoir for the joint use by the State of California and the
United States, and as provided in Section 2 of the Act, the Secretary was authorized to enter into
an agreement with the State of California to provide for the coordinated operation of the San
Luis Unit which resulted in a 1961 Joint Coordination Agreement and subsequent amendatory
and supplemental agreements of 1972 and 1997; and

[4"]  WHEREAS, the United States was authorized to construct the San Luis Unit of
the CVP, a joint use project, shared with the State of California and administered through the
Department of Water Resources, hereinafter referred to as “DWR,” the operations of which are
coordinated between Reclamation and DWR consistent with the 1961 Agreement and all

supplements and amendments; and



36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

[5"] WHEREAS, consistent with the San Luis Act of 1960, Reclamation and DWR
share responsibility for the costs of operation, maintenance, and replacement of B.F. Sisk Dam
and San Luis Reservoir, consistent with the 1961 Agreement Between the United States of
America and The Department of Water Resources of the State of California for the Operation of
the San Luis Unit and all supplements and amendments, Contract No. 14-06-200-9755 (1961
Agreement); and

[6"] WHEREAS, Reclamation and DWR share responsibility for coordinating
operations of the CVP and the State Water Project, hereinafter referred to as “SWP,” and for
meeting Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta water quality objectives and other operational
requirements pursuant to the 1986 Coordinated Operations Agreement between Reclamation and
DWR, as amended; and

[7"]  WHEREAS, Reclamation, in coordination with DWR, initiated extraordinary
maintenance work for the B.F. Sisk Safety of Dams Modification Project to improve the safety
of the continued operation and maintenance of the aforementioned dam; and

[8"]  WHEREAS, in accordance with the Reclamation Safety of Dams Act of 1978, as
amended (Public Law 95-578, 92 Stat. 2471, 43 U.S.C. § 509 b), to develop additional project
benefits, through the B.F. Sisk Dam Safety of Dams Modification Report, in December 2020, the
Expansion Project was determined to be feasible; and

[9"] WHEREAS, consistent with Reclamation’s Directives and Standards, Water and
Related Resources Feasibility Studies (CMP 09-02), and Developing Additional Project Benefits
in Conjunction with a Safety of Dams Modification Project (FAC 06-05), Reclamation is

authorized to assess the feasibility of increasing San Luis Reservoir storage capacity in



58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

conjunction with the Safety of Dams modifications to determine if there are additional project
benefits which are in the best interest of the United States; and

[10] WHEREAS, following the finding of feasibility, in accordance with §4007 of the
Water Infrastructure and Improvements for the Nation Act, hereinafter referred to as “WIIN Act”
(Public Law 114-322), on October 20, 2023, Congress authorized construction and associated
funding for the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project; and

[11%]  WHEREAS, in accordance with §4007(e) of the WIIN Act, which provides
“[s]ubject to compliance with State water rights laws, the right to use capacity of a federally
owned storage project... shall be allocated in such a manner as may be mutually agreed to by
the Secretary of the Interior and each party to the agreement,” the Parties agree that this
Agreement, as may be amended, provides for the mutually agreeable use of the Expanded
Reservoir to the extent consistent with Federal law; and

[12%] WHEREAS, notwithstanding any potential disagreements among the Parties
regarding background law, this Agreement governs the cost share and management of storage as
provided herein; and

[13"] WHEREAS, the Authority certified, and Reclamation signed, a Record of
Decision on October 20, 2023, for the Environmental Impact Statement/Report entitled B.F. Sisk
Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project, selecting the Dam Raise Alternative; and

[14%] WHEREAS, consistent with WIIN Act §4007(b)(2), Reclamation and the
Authority agree to enter into this Agreement for up to 50% Federal share of the costs of the
Expansion Project including, but not limited to, planning, design, and construction, and as further

defined in this Agreement; and



80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

89

30

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

[15%] WHEREAS, consistent with WIIN Act §4007(e), Reclamation, representing the
United States, and the Authority, through the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion
Project Activity Agreement, as may be amended or supplemented, attaéhed as Exhibit F,
representing Participating Agencies who will collectively share in the costs and benefits of the
Expansion Project, desire to use the Expansion Project in such a manner as may be mutually
agreeable to the Parties hereto; and

[16"] WHEREAS, other agreements and/or contracts necessary for commencing design,
construction, and/or operation of the Expanded Reservoir may be necessary and may be
incorporated into this Agreement, and which may include, but are not limited to, a Contributed
Funds Agreement providing for the contribution of funds from Federal cost share partners (WIIN
Act §4007(b)(3)(B) and §4011(e)(2)); an OM&R Agreement; a Repayment Contract providing
for repayment of reimbursable obligations (WIIN Act §4007(b)(3)(C) and §401 1(e)(2)), as
appropriate; a Spend Plan; and a Coordination Agreement, any of which may require further
delegation of authority from the Commissioner of Reclamation to negotiate and make a part of
this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties desire to manage the additional capacity associated
with the expansion of San Luis Reservoir and share in the costs pertaining to the Expanded
Reservoir consistent with, and in consideration of, the mutual and dependent covenants herein,

the Parties hereto agree as follows:

DEFINITIONS

l. When used herein unless otherwise distinctly expressed, or manifestly

incompatible with the intent of the Parties as expressed in this Agreement, the term:



102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

(a) “Acquired Water” shall mean (1) any water acquired from CVP water
service/repayment contractors, CVP Settlement Contractors, San Joaquin River Exchange
Contractors, any other CVP contractor, or from Reclamation, in addition to any transfer or
exchange that requires an in lieu operational exchange by Reclamation, subject to Contracting
Officer acknowledgement or approval consistent with transfer policies and guidelines and any

required environmental review, and (2) any Non-CVP Water.

(b) “Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir” shall mean the storage
volume of the Expanded Reservoir commensurate with the non-Federal level of investment in

the Expansion Project.

() “Calendar Year” shall mean the period January 1 through December 31,

both dates inclusive.

(d) “Central Valley Project” or “CVP” shall mean the Central Valley Project
owned by the United States and managed by the Department of the Interior, Bureau of

Reclamation

(e) “Central Valley Project Municipal and Industrial Water Shortage Policy
Guidelines and Procedures” or “M&I Water Shortage Policy” shall mean the policy intended to
provide clear and objective guidelines on the water supplies available from the CVP during a
Condition of Shortage, as that term is defined in the relevant CVP water service/repayment

contracts.

® “Contracting Officer” shall mean the Secretary of the United States

Department of the Interior or his/her duly authorized representative.



123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

(g) “Contributed Funds Agreement” shall mean the agreement by which the
Authority contributes to the cost of the Expansion Project, entered into pursuant to the Sundry
Civil Appropriations Act of March 4, 1921 (Pub. L. 66-389; 41 Stat. 1404; 43 U.S.C. 395); and

attached as Exhibit A.

(h) “Coordination Agreement” shall mean the agreement provided for in

subarticle 4(i) of this Agreement; and attached as Exhibit C.

(1) “CVP Water” shall mean any water, excepting Acquired Water defined in
Article 1(a), that is developed, diverted, stored, or delivered by the Secretary in accordance with
the statutes authorizing the CVP and in accordance with the terms and conditions of water rights

acquired pursuant to California law.

§)) “Expanded Reservoir” shall mean the combined volume of storage in the
Federal Share and the Authority-Managed Share of the expanded San Luis Reservoir resulting

from the Expansion Project.

(k) “Expansion Project” shall mean the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir
Expansion Project, consistent with the Record of Decision, dated October 20, 2023, as may be
amended or supplemented, which would raise B.F. Sisk Dam an additional ten feet and provide

an additional estimated 130 Thousand Acre-Feet (TAF) of storage in San Luis Reservoir.

Q) “Federal Share of Expanded Reservoir” shall mean the storage volume of
the Expanded Reservoir commensurate with the Federal level of investment in the Expansion

Project.

(m)  “Federal Share of Historic Reservoir” shall mean the storage volume of

966 TAF in the Historic Reservoir.



145

146

147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

(n) “Historic Reservoir” shall mean the total storage volume of 2.028 Million

Acre-Feet (MAF) in San Luis Reservoir.

(o) “Non-CVP Water” shall mean any water acquired that has not been

appropriated or acquired by the United States and as further described herein.

(p) “Operation, Maintenance and Replacement Agreement” or “OM&R
Agreement” shall mean the agreement between the United States and the Authority providing for

the operation, maintenance, and replacement of the Expansion Project; and attached as Exhibit

D.

()] “Participating Agency(ies)” shall mean those entity(ies) and/or
organization(s) that are represented by the Authority pursuant to the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and

Reservoir Expansion Project Activity Agreement and all supplements and amendments.

(r) “San Luis Reservoir” shall mean the Historic Reservoir and the Expanded

Reservoir.

(s) “San Luis Rescheduling Guidelines” shall mean the Rescheduling
Guidelines for the Federal Share of Storage in San Luis Reservoir, Central Valley Project,
California, dated January 31, 2022, as may be amended or superseded, which apply only to the

Historic Reservoir.

) “Spend Plan” shall mean the plan provided for in subarticle 3(e) of this

Agreement; and attached as Exhibit B.

(u)  “Substantial Completion” shall have the same meaning as defined in

Completion of a Construction Activity: Transferring Reclamation Capital Assets Under

10



166

167

168

169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

Construction (AUC) to Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Status (FAC 01-05), as amended or

supplemented.

v) “Water Coordinator” shall mean the individual provided for in subarticle

4(1)(4) of this Agreement.

(W)  “Year” shall mean the period from and including March 1 of each Calendar

Year through the last day of February of the following Calendar Year.

TERM OF AGREEMENT

2. (a) This Agreement is effective on the date hereinabove written and will

remain in full force until terminated, unless the condition in subarticle 2(e) is not met.

(b) If the Contracting Officer determines that the Authority is in material
breach of the Agreement, the Contracting Officer shall first notify the Authority in writing of the
specific purported deficiencies of the Authority in carrying out the terms and conditions of this
Agreement. It is the intent of the Parties that disputes be resolved pursuant to this subarticle 2(b)
as expeditiously as is reasonably possible without the necessity of other relief at law or in equity.
If after the designated representative of the Authority has met with the Contracting Officer or
their designated representative and attempted in good faith and with the use of best efforts to
resolve any dispute arising from the purported deficiency an agreement is not reached, the
Contracting Officer may issue a written notice of proposed termination which shall include the
specific deficiencies of the Authority’s performance under this Agreement. The Authority shall
have at least one hundred and twenty (120) days from receipt of the notice of proposed
termination to submit a plan that demonstrates a reasonable timeframe to correct all deficiencies

referred to in said notice. Upon the Contracting Officer’s approval of the plan to correct all

11



188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

207

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

deficiencies, the Parties will in good faith coordinate on implementation of the plan to correct all
deficiencies, including potential updates to the timeframe in the plan to correct all deficiencies.
Any termination pursuant to this Article shall be subject to the rights and obligations of the
Parties as more specifically set forth in this Agreement. Failure to remedy these deficiencies
shall result in termination of this Agreement, noticed in writing, consistent with the provisions

herein.

(1) Remedies Upon Termination Prior to a Determination of

Substantial Completion of Construction of the Expansion Project.

(i) The Authority may terminate this Agreement by sending
notice of termination to Reclamation, prior to Reclamation’s issuance of solicitation of the

Expansion Project construction contract.

(i)  Reclamation may terminate this Agreement if the Authority
is in material breach of the Agreement and the Authority does not remedy the breach consistent

with the procedures described in subarticle 2(b) above.

(i)  If termination occurs pursuant to subarticles 2(b)(1)(i) or
2(b)(1)(ii) above, the Parties will meet and confer to review the appropriate recognition of the
Parties’ contributed funds, as documented in applicable exhibits to this Agreement, including any

outstanding financial obligations.

(2) Remedies Upon Termination Following a Determination of

Substantial Completion of Construction of the Expansion Project.

12



208

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229

230

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

(1) Mutual Agreement. The Parties may mutually agree to

terminate this Agreement; in such event, any recognition or reimbursement of the Parties’

contributed funds will be in an amount mutually agreeable to the Parties.

(ii)  Reclamation may terminate this Agreement if the Authority
is in material breach of this Agreement and the Authority does not remedy the breach consistent
with the procedures described in subarticle 2(b) above. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if
termination occurs, Reclamation will, in a timely manner, seek to reimburse the Authority’s
contributed funds, as documented in applicable exhibits to this Agreement, including any
remaining financial obligations, in varied amounts based on the number of years following the
determination of Substantial Completion of construction of the Expansion Project. Under WIIN
Act §4007(b)(2), Reclamation may fund up to 50% of the Expansion Project costs so long as the
benefits from the Expansion Project are commensurate with the Federal investment. Reclamation
therefore commits to working with the Authority to seek additional authorization and

appropriations to compensate the Authority for its contributed funds in the following amounts:

(a) 0—25years: 100%
(b) 26 — 35 years: 50%
(©) 36 — 50 years: 25%

(d) After 51 years: 0%

(iii)  If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to subarticles
2(b)(2)(i)-(ii) above, Reclamation will, consistent with applicable law, negotiate interim
agreement(s) with the Authority or other party(ies), including but not limited to members
represented by the Authority, under mutually agreeable terms and conditions to manage the

Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir based on provisions of this Agreement until

13



231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

238

240

241

242

243

244

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

the agreed-upon compensation in subarticle 2(b)(2)(ii) is provided or a new agreement for the
management of the expanded San Luis Reservoir and cost share of charges associated with the
raising of the B.F. Sisk Dam and increased storage capacity of the federally administered San

Luis Reservoir is executed.

3) Repayment. Pursuant to Reclamation law, Reclamation intends to

recover any costs it incurs resulting from the termination of this Agreement.

(c) As an alternative to termination of this Agreement, Reclamation and a
successor-in-interest to the Authority, including but not limited to Participating Agencies, may
mutually agree to negotiate a new agreement for the management of the expanded San Luis
Reservoir and cost share of charges associated with the raising of the B.F. Sisk Dam and
increased storage capacity of the federally administered San Luis Reservoir. The Parties intend
that such new agreement(s) would recognize the final storage benefits documented in exhibits to

this Agreement.

(d) The United States and the Authority jointly shall review this Agreement,
which review shall be performed at least every five (5) years. A more frequent review will occur
if determined to be appropriate by the Contracting Officer or if requested by the Authority. The
review shall compare the relative success which each Party has had in meeting its objectives,
including, but not limited to, the Contributed Funds Agreement, an OM&R Agreement, a Spend
Plan, and a Coordination Agreement, which agreements will be exhibits to this Agreement.
Exhibits A through D to this Agreement, will be mutually agreed to and signed by the Parties and
will be incorporated into this Agreement. In addition to Exhibits E and F to this agreement are

hereby incorporated into this Agreement.

14



253

254

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

264

265

266

267

268

269

270

271

272

273

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

(e) As a condition of this agreement, by no later than October 1, 2025, the
Parties must execute a Spend Plan and Contributed Funds Agreement and the Authority must
deposit all funds identified as necessary and due by that date in the Spend Plan. If there is a
failure to meet this condition, then this Agreement expires without further action from either
Party. This timeframe for depositing funds may be extended, through the Spend Plan, at the
discretion of the Contracting Officer. Exhibits to this Agreement may require modification which

may be accomplished without amendment to this Agreement.

H) This Agreement may be modified, amended, or terminated upon mutual
agreement of the Parties in writing. All duties and obligations of the Parties under this
Agreement will cease upon termination except as to any provisions that expressly survive the

termination of the Agreement.

(2) Use of the meet and confer or dispute resolution process described in

Article 7 is not a precondition to initiating termination under Article 2(b) of this Agreement.

COST SHARE

3. As provided for in WIIN Act §4007(b)(2), Reclamation may fund up to 50% of
the Expansion Project costs so long as the benefits from the Expansion Project are commensurate

with the Federal investment.

(a) Reclamation has the authority to share up to 50% of the costs of the
Expansion Project; however, Reclamation and the Authority have agreed to an initial 70%
Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir and a 30% Federal Share of Expanded

Reservoir.

15



274

275

276

277

278

279

280

281

282

283

284

285

286

287

288

289

290

291

292

293

294

295

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

(1) Upon the determination of Substantial Completion of construction
of the Expansion Project, Reclamation and the Authority will meet and confer within a
reasonable time frame to complete a final accounting of the Expansion Project benefits to
determine and mutually agree upon final storage benefits of the Expansion Project and the
allocation to Reclamation and the Authority. The final storage benefits attributable to the Parties

will be documented in Exhibit E to this Agreement.

(b)  Eligible Expansion Project costs are as follows and will be shared in

accordance with subarticle 3(a)(1) of this Agreement:

(N The Parties have reviewed the Expansion Project costs incurred by
the Authority and Reclamation prior to the effective date of this Agreement. The Parties
acknowledge and agree that the Authority and Reclamation have incurred costs which, if
allowable, will be credited to each Party’s cost share obligation under applicable exhibits to this

Agreement.

2) Planning Costs: In an effort to reach a finding that the Expansion
Project is feasible, certain planning level investigations were necessary and may continue to be
necessary prior to commencement of construction. Such planning investigations will be
consistent with Reclamation’s Directives and Standards, Water and Related Resources

Feasibility Studies (CMP 09-02).

3) Environmental Mitigation and Compliance Costs: Either Party may
fund environmental mitigation and compliance activities associated with this Agreement. These
activities may include, but are not limited to, contracts for technical assistance in environmental

mitigation, funding of environmental mitigation commitments, and any actions to ensure

16



Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

296  consistency with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) or Federal National

297  Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) laws and regulations.

298 4) Cultural Resource Management Costs: Either Party may fund

299  cultural studies, investigations, and mitigation needs consistent with this Agreement.

300 Reclamation will be responsible for all necessary consultations with state offices, Indian tribes,
301  and interested parties pursuant to Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966,
302  as amended. Reclamation will be responsible for compliance and coordination with the Native

303  American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act of 1990.

304 (5) Permitting Costs: Additional permitting actions prior to
305  construction of the Expansion Project and prior to declaring the Expansion Project Substantially
306  Complete may be required. The Parties will jointly determine, as appropriate, the appropriate

307  Party to obtain any necessary permit(s) and the appropriate cost share for the permitting actions.

308 (6) Administrative Costs: Reclamation will reserve sufficient funding
309 from Federal appropriations to cover its administrative and management costs associated with
310 the Expansion Project. This amount will be considered part of the overall Federal contribution.
311  Reclamation will provide an estimate of the administrative costs for the Expansion Project which
312 will be reviewed with the Authority. The Authority will reserve sufficient funding to pay for its
313 administrative costs for the non-Federal share of the Expansion Project. These costs will be

314  considered contributions to the non-Federal share of the Expansion Project and reported pursuant
315  to subarticle 3(f) of this Agreement. Administrative costs include, unless otherwise defined by
316  contracts: project management, construction management, accounting and administrative

317 management, legal support and review, travel, general meetings related to the Expansion Project,

318  contract/agreement technical meetings and negotiations, and other supportive services and

17



319

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

328

329

330

331

332

333

334

335

336

337

338

339

340

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

activities necessary for the construction and operation of the Expansion Project prior to the

determination of Substantial Completion.

N Design Costs: Either Party may pay for part or all of various design
costs for the Expansion Project. Reclamation will be responsible for design of the embankment
of the San Luis Reservoir, but the Authority may contribute funds that will count towards the
cost share. There may be the need for modifications during construction that may require further

design work. These costs will be shared in accordance with subarticle 3(a)(1) of this Agreement.

(8) Construction Costs: Reclamation will serve as the procurement
agency for, and will manage, the primary construction contract with respect to the embankment
raise. All costs for this contract will be funded directly by Reclamation or with funds

contributed to Reclamation by the Authority.

C)) Other Design and Construction Costs: Either Party may pay for
part, or all of the remaining non-embankment design and construction costs of associated
facilities affected or involved with the Expansion Project including, but not limited to, recreation
facilities, power improvements to existing facilities, improvements to pumps, transportation, and

other various components of the Expansion Project.

(c) Reclamation and the Authority have proposed using their collective funds
to fund parts of the Expansion Project. A Contributed Funds Agreement may be necessary to
help facilitate the transfer of funds to Reclamation from the Authority. Such an agreement, if
needed, will be an exhibit to this Agreement. Any funds contributed to Reclamation for the
Expansion Project will be considered part of the cost of this Expansion Project and shared in

accordance with subarticle 3(a)(1) of this Agreement.

18



341

342

343

344

345

346

347

348

349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

359

360

361

362

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

(d)  There may be times when Reclamation provides funds to the Authority.
These funds will be provided through a financial assistance agreement. Any funds provided to
the Authority for the Expansion Project will be considered part of the cost of this Expansion

Project and shared in accordance with subarticle 3(a)(1) of this Agreement.

(e) Reclamation and the Authority will develop and execute a Spend Plan
containing mutually agreeable terms for the Authority to commit funding required under
§4007(b)(3)(B) and §4011(e)(2) of the WIIN Act and to track costs and account for funds

expended. The Spend Plan will be an exhibit to this Agreement.

H Prior to Substantial Completion, Reclamation and the Authority will
establish, at a minimum, quarterly check-ins to monitor actual expenditures related to the
Expansion Project relative to the Parties’ respective funding shares, and to discuss other items,
including but not limited to, funding and any additional financial agreements. If there is a
deficiency in expenditures under the Spend Plan, the Parties will meet and confer to agree upon a
schedule to remedy the deficiency. If the Authority fails to resolve a deficiency within the
agreed-upon schedule, then Reclamation may seck an alternative cost share partner or pursue

other remedies prescribed in this Agreement.

(g) The duties and obligations of the Parties under subarticles 3(a)(1), 3(b)(1),

and 3(d) of this Agreement, would expressly survive termination of this Agreement.

MANAGEMENT OF EXPANDED RESERVOIR

4. Responsibility for the costs of operation, maintenance, and replacement of B.F.
Sisk Dam and San Luis Reservoir will continue to be governed by agreements between the

United States and the State of California; the Authority shall neither execute nor be a Party to

19



363

364

365

366

367

368

369

370

371

372

373

374

375

376

377

378

379

380

381

382

383

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

any agreement with the State of California for the operation and maintenance of the B.F. Sisk

Dam and the Historic Reservoir or the Expanded Reservoir.

(a) The Parties will draft and finalize an OM&R Agreement for the Expansion
Project prior to the first entry of any water subject to this Agreement into any CVP facilities. All
future OM&R costs associated with the Expansion Project will be commensurate to each Party’s

final investment, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Parties pursuant to this Agreement.

(b) Nothing in this Agreement shall imply or convey any rights or process to
the Authority or their assignees for rights or privileges to water or operations in the Federal
Share of Expanded Reservoir or the Historic Reservoir and the Authority agrees that it shall not

seek these rights outside of this Agreement.

(c) The Parties agree that Reclamation and DWR retain the sole discretion
over the operations of the Historic Reservoir. Operations of the Expanded Reservoir will be
consistent with existing laws, agreements, and obligations and pursuant to the terms of this

Agreement and in consultation with the Authority through the Water Coordinator.

(d) Federal Share of Expanded Reservoir: The management of any water in

the Federal Share of Expanded Reservoir is at the sole discretion of Reclamation and will be
managed in such a way to be consistent with State and Federal law and existing and future

agreements, guidelines, and programs for Federal benefits.

(e) Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir: The Water Coordinator

will manage and account for any water in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir

consistent with the provisions below. All water stored in the Authority-Managed Share of

20



384

385

386

387

388

389

390

391

392

393

394

395

396

397

398

399

400

401

402

403

404

405

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

Expanded Reservoir will be for the exclusive benefit of the Authority pursuant to this

Agreement.

(1) The Parties agree that the Participating Agencies, through the
Authority, possess the ability to partner with non-Participating Agency parties regarding the use,
marketing, and/or lease of capacity within the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir
and/or the storage of water in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir. The
Authority shall indemnify the United States and its officers, employees, and agents for all

damages resulting from suits, actions, or claims of any nature from these third-party agreements.

2) The Authority agrees to use the Authority-Managed Share of
Expanded Reservoir to store Acquired Water and/or CVP Water consistent with the terms of this
Agreement. If a Participating Agency has any water type available to store in the Authority-
Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir at the same time that Reclamation has CVP Water
available to it to fill the Expanded Reservoir, and conveyance capacity is deemed available, the
Participating Agency, through the Authority, may determine which water type will be (or is)
stored on its behalf in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir. Water stored in the
Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir will not be subject to the San Luis
Rescheduling Guidelines and will not be displaced, or “spill,” upon the filling of the Federal

Share of Historic Reservoir.

3 Acquired Water

(1) With the exception of Non-CVP Water that may already
exist in the Historic Reservoir and/or SWP water conveyed through the SWP or under agreement

with Reclamation, Non-CVP Water is subject to a contract for the use of excess conveyance

21



406

407

408

409

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

419

420

421

422

423

424

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

capacity in Federal facilities, in order to convey Non-CVP Water to or from the Historic

Reservoir.

(i1) Storage of Acquired Water in the Authority-Managed Share
of Expanded Reservoir will not require a contract for Non-CVP Water use of excess capacity.
However, any Non-CVP Water that is stored in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded
Reservoir that may be moved into and accounted for in the Historic Reservoir will require such a

contract for storage in the Historic Reservoir.

(iii)  For the purpose of this Agreement, San Joaquin River
Restoration water recaptured consistent with permits issued by the State Water Resources
Control Board, if acquired through agreement and/or stored under agreement, acknowledged by
Reclamation, will be treated as Acquired Water and may be stored in the Authority-Managed

Share of Expanded Reservoir.

(iv)  Reclamation will not use Acquired Water for any purpose
unless and until the Parties first mutually agree in writing to water or monetary compensation, or
a combination thereof, prior to its use.! Reclamation's action to compensate the Authority, as

mutually agreed, is final and conclusive.

v) Consistent with Section B.2.i of the M&I Water Shortage
Policy, as may be amended or superseded, the Contracting Officer will consider Acquired Water

in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir as having been acquired by Participating

! Subject to Article 11, monetary compensation will be of either the total acquisition cost of the water when it was
acquired by the contractor or the current year market rate (replacement cost), whichever is greater.

22



425

426

427

428

429

430

431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

Agencies to meet individual public health and safety responsibilities and not subject to nor

counted against a Participating Agency’s available water.
(4) CVP Water

(1) Article 3(a) Water: Following the CVP contract allocation

of Water Made Available under Article 3(a) of a Participating Agency’s water service/repayment
contract, the Water Coordinator may inform Reclamation as to the amount of water to be
accounted for under this subarticle, up to the maximum storage capacity of the Authority-

Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir.

(1))  Article 3(f) Water: Each Participating Agency holds a

repayment contract that provides a mechanism for Reclamation to make water available to each
Participating Agency in addition to the Participating Agency’s CVP contract allocation in a
given Year. This mechanism is most often described in Article 3(f) of the Participating
Agencies’ repayment contracts, and so such water is referred to as “Article 3(f) water.” For the
purpose of this Agreement, the Contracting Officer will make Article 3(f) water available to each
Participating Agency to store in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir in addition
to the Participating Agency’s CVP contract allocation in every Year that Article 3(f) water is

available, as described below:

(a) Following the filling of the Federal Share of
Historic Reservoir, Reclamation will make a determination whether Article 3(f) water is
available to all south-of-Delta CVP water service/repayment contractors with available storage
or conveyance capacity to take Article 3(f) water pursuant to their respective water

service/repayment contracts.

23



447

448

449

450

451

452

453

454

455

456

457

458

459

460

461

462

463

464

465

466

467

468

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

(b) Upon making Article 3(f) water available,
Reclamation will fill the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir and the Federal Share

of Expanded Reservoir on a proportionate basis in accordance with this Agreement.

(1)  Reclamation will fill the Expanded
Reservoir until such a time that the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir is full or

the Authority-Managed Share and the Federal Share of Expanded Reservoir are full.

(2) Any Article 3(f) water used to fill a portion
of the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir will be managed and accounted for by

the Water Coordinator within the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir.

3) Water made available under this subarticle
4(e)(4)(ii) and stored in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir can be scheduled

for delivery at a later date in coordination with the Water Coordinator.

(i)  Reclamation, at its discretion and in coordination with the
Water Coordinator, will only use CVP Water in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded
Reservoir to meet the unmet required deliveries for south-of-Delta San Joaquin River Exchange
Contractors and CVP Settlement Contractors, the unmet required CVPIA allocation for south-of-
Delta Level 2 refuges, and the unmet required public health and safety needs as defined by the
M&I Water Shortage Policy as may be amended or superseded, consistent with the following

provisions:

(a) Upon the initial CVP contract allocation on or about
February 20, if Reclamation announces a 0% contract allocation for south-of-Delta agricultural

contractors and determines a forecasted need (based on the 90% exceedance forecast) for CVP

24



469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

483

484

485

486

487

488

489

490

491

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

Water stored in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir for the purposes
enumerated in subarticle 4(¢e)(4)(iii) above, Reclamation will promptly notify the Authority of
this forecasted need. Reclamation, in coordination with the Water Coordinator, will update its
forecast and re-evaluate the forecasted need for use of CVP Water stored in the Authority-
Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir throughout the Year or upon request by the Water
Coordinator supported by evidence justifying the request, including information regarding any

changes in forecasted need, the timing of such need, and the quantity of such need.

(b) In any Year when such a potential need has been
identified, the Authority’s March 1 monthly delivery schedule (see subarticle 4(i)(6) below) shall
demonstrate delivery of CVP Water out of the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir
on or before April 1. After April 1, Reclamation may use CVP Water stored in the Authority-
Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir, together with other available CVP water supplies, for

the purposes identified in subarticle 4(e)(4)(iii) above.

(©) On or around May 20, aligned with an updated May
forecast, Reclamation will notify the Authority of any CVP Water in the Authority-Managed
Share of Expanded Reservoir that was not delivered for the purposes identified in subarticle
4(e)(4)(ii1) above. Upon such notification, the Authority may resume deliveries out of the
Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir per updated schedules. Alternatively, if at any
time the contract allocation for south-of-Delta agricultural contractors increases above 0%, the
Authority may resume deliveries out of the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir per

updated schedules.

(d) Reclamation intends to use all available CVP Water

supplies stored in the Federal Share of Historic Reservoir and Federal Share of Expanded

25



492

493

494

495

4986

497

498

499

500

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

Reservoir, and any other supply available to Reclamation intended to mitigate conditions of
drought consistent with the terms of the corresponding programs, to meet the purposes identified
in subarticle 4(e)(4)(iii) above prior to using any CVP Water stored in the Authority-Managed
Share of Expanded Reservoir. Prior to the end of any Year in which Reclamation has used CVP
Water stored in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir, Reclamation will, in
coordination with the Water Coordinator, perform an analysis to determine consistency with this

intent, and will true up reservoir accounting if needed.

(5) If Reclamation uses Acquired Water or CVP Water stored in the
Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir to meet the purposes identified in subarticle
4(e)(4)(i11) above, Reclamation shall reimburse or credit the Authority for the applicable OM&R
costs. Therefore, the quantity of CVP Water or Acquired Water used by Reclamation will be
included in the calculation of that Year’s Federal OM&R cost obligation allocated by DWR for
the Expanded Reservoir and will be deducted from the Authority’s share of OM&R cost

obligation for the Year in which Acquired Water or CVP Water was used by Reclamation.

® Displacement of CVP Water: In order to store Acquired Water in the

Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir, the Water Coordinator, in coordination with
Reclamation, will if needed, move CVP Water out of the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded
Reservoir. CVP Water can be transferred, exchanged, or delivered subject to applicable statutes,
regulations, guidelines, and policies. If the CVP Water cannot be timely transferred, exchanged,

or delivered, it will move in the following way and in the following order of priority:

(D) CVP Water moves from the Authority-Managed Share of

Expanded Reservoir to the Historic Reservoir unless the Historic Reservoir is full.

26



514

515

516

517

518

519

520

521

522

523

524

525

526

527

528

529

530

531

532

533

534

535

536

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

(2) If the Historic Reservoir is full, then the CVP Water moves to the
Federal Share of Expanded Reservoir; and

3) If the CVP Water cannot be moved as described above, then
Reclamation can make the CVP Water available to CVP contractors per existing CVP water
service/repayment contracts, and subject to applicable regulations, guidelines, and policies.

Reclamation will retain full discretion as to the disposition of the CVP Water.

(2) Losses: All water in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir
will be subject to water loss criteria that is applied based on reservoir losses caused by
evaporation and seepage and charged to Reclamation as part of its joint operations with DWR,
with the Authority and Reclamation sharing losses proportionate to the water then-stored in the

Expanded Reservoir.

(h) Operation and Maintenance Costs of the San Luis Reservoir: As a result of

the Expanded Reservoir, Reclamation may have an increased share of the cost of the operation
and maintenance of the B.F. Sisk Dam and San Luis Reservoir. The Parties agree that costs will
be paid consistent with existing laws, agreements, and policy, as may be amended or superseded.
Further, the Authority agrees it will specifically pay for OM&R costs associated with the
Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir; the details regarding such payment and costs

will be defined in an OM&R Agreement, which will be an exhibit to this Agreement.

(1) Coordination Agreement: Prior to the operation of the Expanded

Reservoir, Reclamation and the Authority will develop a Coordination Agreement to coordinate
and communicate and define roles and responsibilities prior to the storage of water in the
Expanded Reservoir which will be an exhibit to this Agreement. The Coordination Agreement

will, among other things:

27



537

538

539

540

541

542

543

544

545

546

547

548

549

550

551

552

553

554

555

556

557

558

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280
(1) Define the frequency of coordination between the Parties.

2) Establish a Reclamation approved accounting methodology and

system of accounting for water in the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir.
3) Provide for a dispute resolution process.

4) Provide for a Water Coordinator. The Parties agree that a Water
Coordinator will be provided and paid for by the Authority who will coordinate with
Reclamation regarding the management of any water moving into, stored in, or moving out of
the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir, who will account for the water in the
Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir, including losses, and who will be responsible
for the provisional data and coordinating with Reclamation on reconciliation at the end of the

contract year and prior to initial allocations of the following Year.

(5) Describe the coordination process referenced in subarticle
4(e)(4)(iii) above, including but not limited to the frequency and methods through which
Reclamation will share forecasting and allocation information with the Water Coordinator on

behalf of the Authority.

(6) Describe the monthly schedules that the Authority, through the
Water Coordinator, will submit to Reclamation to show the volumes of water to be delivered out
of the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir, and Reclamation’s duty to use all
reasonable means to deliver the water in accordance with the initial schedule submitted by the
contractor, or any written revision(s) deemed satisfactory to the Contracting Officer, thereto
submitted within a reasonable time prior to the date(s) on which the requested change(s) is/are to

be implemented.

28



559

560

561

562

563

564

565

566

567

568

569

570

571

572

573

574

575

576

577

578

579

580

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280
(7)  Describe the methods through which the Parties will acquire access
to conveyance capacity.

)] Following a determination of Substantial Completion of construction of
the Expansion Project, the duties and obligations of the Parties under subarticles 4(e)-(h) may

survive termination of this Agreement if the Parties mutually agree.

COORDINATION AND COOPERATION

5. (a) In order to further the goals and objectives of this Agreement,
Reclamation and the Authority shall communicate, coordinate, and cooperate with each other.
The communication, coordination, and cooperation provided for hereunder shall extend to all
provisions of this Agreement. Each Party shall retain exclusive decision-making authority for all
actions, opinions, and determinations to be made by the respective Party.

(b) Nothing in this Article shall be construed to limit or constrain
Reclamation’s ability to communicate, coordinate, and cooperate with the Authority or to make
decisions in a timely fashion as needed to protect health, safety, or the physical integrity of

structures or facilities.

EXISTING CONTRACTS

6. (a) Nothing in this Agreement, in any way, alters, changes, or amends
existing water service/repayment contracts with the United States, or supersedes, negates, or
changes or is intended to change any past course of dealings, past practices or precedent.

b) If any conflict arises between this Agreement and the water
service/repayment contract of any Participating Agency or any non-Participating Agency partner,

then the respective water service/repayment contract takes precedence.

29



581

582

583

584

585

586

587

588

589

590

591

592

593

594

595

596

597

598

599

600

601

602

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

7. (a) Should any dispute arise concerning any provision(s) of this Agreement,
or the Parties’ rights and obligations thereunder, the United States and the Authority shall meet
and confer in an attempt to resolve the dispute. Prior to the Authority commencing any legal
action, or the Contracting Officer referring any matter to the Department of Justice, the Party
shall provide to the other Party thirty (30) days’ written notice of the intent to take such action;
Provided, That such notice shall not be required where a delay in commencing an action would
prejudice the interests of the Party that intends to file suit. During the thirty (30)-day notice
period, the Parties shall meet and confer in an attempt to resolve the dispute. Except as
specifically provided, nothing herein is intended to waive or abridge any right or remedy that the

Authority or the United States may have.

(b) Reclamation shall have no responsibility to participate in or resolve

disputes between the Authority and the Participating Agencies regarding this Agreement.

WAIVER OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH ANY PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT

8. (a) The waiver by either Party to this Agreement as to any non-compliance
with any provision of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of any other non-
compliance with any provision of this Agreement or as authority of the other Party to continue
such non-compliance with any provision of this Agreement or to make, do, or perform, or not
make, do, or perform, as the case may be, any act or thing which would constitute non-

compliance with any provision of this Agreement.

(b) Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed as in any manner

abridging, limiting, or depriving the United States, represented by the Contracting Officer, or the

30



603

604

605

606

607

608

609

610

611

612

613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

624

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

Authority, of any means of enforcing any remedy, either at law or in equity, for the breach of any

of the provisions hereof which it would otherwise have.

OPINIONS AND DETERMINATIONS

9. (a) Where the terms of this Agreement provide for actions to be based upon
the opinion or determination of either Party to this Agreement, said terms shall not be construed
as permitting such action to be predicated upon arbitrary, capricious, or unreasonable opinions or
determinations. Both Parties, notwithstanding any other provisions of this Agreement, expressly
reserve the right to seek relief from and appropriate adjustment for any such arbitrary, capricious,
or unreasonable opinion or determination. Each opinion or determination by either Party shall be
provided in a timely manner. Nothing in this subdivision (a) of this Article is intended to or shall
affect or alter the standard of judicial review applicable under Federal law to any opinion or
determination implementing a specific provision of Federal law embodied in statute or

regulation.

(b) The Contracting Officer shall have the right to make determinations
necessary to administer this Agreement that are consistent with the provisions of this Agreement,
the laws of the United States, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Secretary. Such
determinations shall be made in consultation with the Authority to the extent reasonably

practicable.

(©) Nothing in this Agreement, or performance hereunder, constitutes a
waiver of the Parties’ respective positions, opinions, or interpretations of California water rights
law, whatever they may be, in circumstances where there is no mutual agreement, as applicable

herein, for the use of the Expanded Reservoir.

31



625

626

627

628

629
630
631
632
633
634

635

636
637
638
639
640

641

642
643
644

645

646
647
648

649

650

651

652
653
654
655
656

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

(d)  The Parties recognize certain third-party benefits and obligations as
provided for in Article 4(e)(1), 4(e)(2), 4(e)(3)(iii), 4(e)(3)(iv), 4(e)(3)(v), 4(e)(4)(i), and
4(e)(4)(i1), coordinated through the Authority consistent with Exhibit F.

NOTICES

10.  Any notice, demand, or request authorized or required by this Agreement shall be
deemed to have been given, on behalf of the Authority, when mailed, postage prepaid, or
delivered to the Regional Director, California Great Basin Region, Bureau of Reclamation, 2800
Cottage Way, Sacramento, CA, 95825, and on behalf of the United States, when mailed, postage
prepaid, or delivered to the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority, 842 6% Street, Los
Banos, CA 93635.

CONTINGENT ON APPROPRIATION OR ALLOTMENT OF FUNDS

11.  The expenditure or advance of any money or the performance of any obligation of
the United States under this Agreement shall be contingent upon appropriation or allotment of
funds. Absence of appropriation or allotment of funds shall not relieve the Authority from any
obligations under this Agreement. No liability shall accrue to the United States in case funds are
not appropriated or allotted.

OFFICIALS NOT TO BENEFIT

12. No Member of or Delegate to the Congress, Resident Commissioner, or official of
the Authority shall benefit from this Agreement other than as a water user or landowner in the
same manner as other water users or landowners.

ASSIGNMENT LIMITED — SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS OBLIGATED

13. (a) The provisions of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the successors
and assigns of the Parties hereto, but no assignment or transfer of this Agreement or any right or
interest therein by either Party shall be valid until approved in writing by the other Party.

(b) Reclamation shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to an assignment

of the Authority’s rights and obligations under this Agreement to a third party.

BOOKS, RECORDS, AND REPORTS

14.  The Authority shall establish and maintain accounts and other books and records
pertaining to administration of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including the
Authority’s financial transactions; water supply data; project operation, maintenance, and
replacement logs; project land and rights-of-way use agreements; the water users’ land-use (crop
census), land-ownership, land-leasing, and water-use data; and other matters that the Contracting

32



657
658
659
660
661

662

663
664
665
666
667

668
669
670
671

672

673

674

675

676

677

678

679
680

681

682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

Officer may require. Reports shall be furnished to the Contracting Officer in such form and on
such date or dates as the Contracting Officer may require. Subject to applicable Federal laws and
regulations, each Party to this Agreement shall have the right during office hours to examine and
make copies of the other Party’s books and records relating to matters covered by this
Agreement.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS

15.  (a) The Parties agree that the delivery of irrigation water or use of Federal
facilities pursuant to this Agreement is subject to Federal reclamation law, including but not
limited to the Reclamation Reform Act of 1982 (43 U.S.C. 390aa, et seq.), as amended and
supplemented, and the rules and regulations promulgated by the Secretary of the Interior under
Federal reclamation law.

(b) The Contracting Officer shall have the right to make determinations
necessary to administer this Agreement that are consistent with its expressed and implied
provisions, the laws of the United States and the rules and regulations promulgated by the
Secretary of the Interior. Such determinations shall be made in consultation with the Authority.

(c) In protecting the interests of the United States, Reclamation’s contracts
and its contracting process must comply with all applicable Federal, state, tribal, and local laws.
These laws may include environmental, civil rights, and cultural resources protection laws,
among others, as well as laws that may be later enacted. Reclamation’s water-related contracts
will be drafted in a manner that allows Reclamation to take actions necessary to comply with all

applicable laws.

EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

16.  The following language is required by Executive Order No. 11246 of September
24, 1965, in all government contracts unless and until it is superseded or amended.

During the performance of this Agreement, the Authority agrees as follows:

(a) The Authority will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national
origin. The Authority will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be
limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and
selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Authority agrees to post in conspicuous

33



6590
691

692
693
694
695

696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705

706
707
708
709
710
711

712
713
714

715
716
717
718
719

720
721
722
723
724
725
726

727
728

Contract No. 24-WC-20-6280

places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided by the
Contracting Officer setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

(b) The Authority will, in all solicitations or advancements for employees
placed by or on behalf of the Authority, state that all qualified applicants will receive
consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation,
gender identity, or national origin.

(©) The Authority will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate
against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has
inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another
employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which an employee who has
access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such
employee’s essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or
applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such
disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation,
proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is
consistent with the Authority’s legal duty to furnish information.

(d) The Authority will send to each labor union or representative of workers
with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice,
to be provided by the agency Contracting Officer, advising the labor union or workers’
representative of the Authority’s commitments under section 202 of Executive Order No. 11246
of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to
employees and applicants for employment.

(e) The Authority will comply with all provisions of Executive Order No.
11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of
Labor.

® The Authority will furnish all information and reports required by
Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of
the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and
accounts by the Contracting Agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to
ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(2) In the event of the Authority’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination
clauses of this Agreement or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this Agreement may
be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part and the Authority may be declared
ineligible for further Government contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in
Executive Order No. 11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and
remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule,
regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(h) The Authority will include the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (h) in
every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by the rules, regulations, or orders of the

34



729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736

737

738
739
740
741
742
743
744

745
746
747
748
749
750
751

752
753
754
755
756
757
758
759

760
761

762

763
764
765
766
767
768

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September
24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The
Authority will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be
directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions
for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the Authority becomes involved in, or is
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the
Authority may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the
United States.

COMPLIANCE WITH CIVIL RIGHTS

17.  (a) The Authority shall comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
(Pub. L. 88-352; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d), the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-112, Title V, as
amended; 29 U.S.C. § 791, et seq.), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-135, Title
III; 42 U.S.C. § 6101, et seq.), Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L.
101-336; 42 U.S.C. § 12131, et seq.), and any other applicable civil rights laws, and with the
applicable implementing regulations and any guidelines imposed by the U.S. Department of the
Interior and/or Bureau of Reclamation.

(b) These statutes prohibit any person in the United States from being
excluded from participation in, being denied the benefits of, or being otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving financial assistance from the Bureau of
Reclamation on the grounds of race, color, national origin, disability, or age. By executing this
Agreement, the Authority agrees to immediately take any measures necessary to implement this
obligation, including permitting officials of the United States to inspect premises, programs, and
documents.

(c) The Authority makes this agreement in consideration of and for the
purpose of obtaining any and all Federal grants, loans, contracts, property discounts, or other
Federal financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the Authority by the Bureau of
Reclamation, including installment payments after such date on account of arrangements for
Federal financial assistance which were approved before such date. The Authority recognizes
and agrees that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance on the representations and
agreements made in this article and that the United States reserves the right to seek judicial
enforcement thereof.

(d) Complaints of discrimination against the Authority shall be investigated
by the Contracting Officer’s Office of Civil Rights.

CERTIFICATION OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

18.  The Authority hereby certifies that it does not maintain or provide for its
employees any segregated facilities at any of its establishments and that it does not permit its
employees to perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities
are maintained. It certifies further that it will not maintain or provide for its employees any
segregated facilities at any of its establishments and that it will not permit its employees to
perform their services at any location under its control where segregated facilities are

35



769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781
782

783
784

785
786
787
788
789

790

791
792
793
794

795
756
797
798

799

800
801
802
803
804

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

maintained. The Authority agrees that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal
Employment Opportunity clause in this Agreement. As used in this certification, the term
"segregated facilities" means any waiting rooms, work areas, rest rooms and wash rooms,
restaurants and other eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas,
parking lots, drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation, and housing
facilities provided for employees which are segregated by explicit directive or are in fact
segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, or national origin, because of habit, local custom,
disability, or otherwise. The Authority further agrees that (except where it has obtained identical
certifications from proposed subcontractors for specific time periods) it will obtain identical
certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding $10,000
which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Employment Opportunity clause; that it
will retain such certifications in its files; and that it will forward the following notice to such
proposed subcontractors (except where the proposed subcontractors have submitted identical
certifications for specific time periods):

NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE SUBCONTRACTORS OF REQUIREMENT FOR
CERTIFICATIONS OF NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES

A Certification of Nonsegregated Facilities must be submitted prior to the award of a subcontract
exceeding $10,000 which is not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Employment
Opportunity clause. The certification may be submitted either for each subcontract or for all
subcontracts during a period (i.e., quarterly, semiannually, or annually). Note: The penalty for
making false statements in offers is prescribed in 18 U.S.C. § 1001.

MEDIUM FOR TRANSMITTING PAYMENTS

19.  (a) All payments from the Authority to the United States under this
Agreement shall be by the medium requested by the United States on or before the date payment
is due. The required method of payment may include checks, wire transfers, or other types of
payment specified by the United States.

(b) Upon execution of the Agreement, the Authority shall furnish the
Contracting Officer with the Authority’s taxpayer’s identification number (TIN). The purpose for
requiring the Authority’s TIN is for collecting and reporting any delinquent amounts arising out
of the Authority’s relationship with the United States.

AGREEMENT DRAFTING CONSIDERATIONS

20. This Agreement has been negotiated and reviewed by the parties hereto, each of
whom is sophisticated in the matters to which this Agreement pertains. The double-spaced
Articles of this Agreement have been drafted, negotiated, and reviewed by the parties, and no
one party shall be considered to have drafted the stated articles. Single-spaced articles are
standard articles pursuant to Reclamation policy.

36



805

806

807

808
809
810
811

812
813

814
815
816

817
818

Contract No. 24-W(C-20-6280

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day

and year first above written.

(SEAL)

Attest:

Secretary

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

By:
Regional Director
Interior Region 10: California-Great Basin
Bureau of Reclamation

San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority

By:

Chair, Board of Directors

37



SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY

FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED B.F. SISK DAM RAISE AND RESERVOIR
EXPANSION PROJECT ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
This FIRST AMENDED AND RESTATED B.F. SISK DAM RAISE AND
RESERVOIR EXPANSION PROJECT ACTIVITY AGREEMENT (“Activity Agreement”)
is entered into and made effective as of this  day of 2025 (“Effective Date”), by and
among the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (“Authority”), a joint powers agency of
the State of California, and its members who execute this Agreement, who are hereinafter referred
to jointly by the plural term “Activity Agreement Members.” Capitalized terms used in this

Activity Agreement shall have the meanings set forth in Section 2 below.

1. RECITALS
A. The parties to this Activity Agreement, together with certain other local agencies,

have entered into an amended and restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement-San Luis & Delta-
Mendota Water Authority dated as of January 1, 1992 (the “JPA” or “JPA Agreement”)
establishing the Authority for the purpose of exercising the common powers of the parties
indicated therein, including those powers described in this Activity Agreement.

B. The Activity Agreement Members are each empowered, among other powers, to
provide water service to lands within their boundaries; to operate and maintain works and facilities
for the development, distribution, and use of water for agricultural irrigation and for any drainage
or reclamation works connected therewith or incidental thereto and/or to operate and maintain
works and facilities for the development, distribution and use of water for municipal and industrial
use; to contract with the United States, the State, and other public agencies and, effective January
1, 1995, with mutual water companies, for such purposes; to control the quality of water accepted
into their respective systems; to exercise powers related to the construction, operation, or
maintenance of water storage and delivery facilities; and to adopt rules and regulations necessary
to the exercise of such powers.

C. The Activity Agreement Members have each entered into contracts with the United
States for water from the Central Valley Project (“CVP”) and receive water conveyed through the
Delta-Mendota Canal, the San Luis Canal, and/or the Pacheco Pumping Plant and Tunnel.

D. Due to hydrologic conditions and/or policy and regulatory constraints, the

operation of the CVP by the United State Bureau of Reclamation (“Reclamation”) will likely

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity
Agreement
Page 1 of 21



result in shortages of supply, which would result in less water being made available to members
of the Authority than is required to meet customer demands.

E. The Authority authorized execution of a series of cost-share agreements with
Reclamation to collaborate on the planning, preliminary design, and environmental compliance
for the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project (“Reservoir Expansion Project”
or “Project”), and to seek potential storage benefits of the Project for Authority member agencies.

F. The Authority and Byron-Bethany Irrigation District, Del Puerto Water District,
Eagle Field Water District, Pacheco Water District, Panoche Water District, San Benito County
Water District, San Luis Water District, Santa Clara Valley Water District, Westlands Water
District and the City of Tracy executed the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project
Activity Agreement, made effective as of May 9, 2022, to facilitate the funding of planning,
preliminary design, and environmental compliance for the Reservoir Expansion Project. Eagle
Field Water District, Panoche Water District, and Pacheco Water District later withdrew from the
Activity Agreement.

G. In accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”) and the
California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”™), Reclamation and the Authority completed the
B.F. Sisk Dam and Reservoir Expansion Project Final Environmental Impact Report/Supplemental
Environmental Impact Statement (“Final EIR/SEIS”).

H. Reclamation and the Authority signed a Record of Decision and Notice of
Determination for the Project, respectively, on October 20, 2023.

L The Project will create approximately 130,000 acre-feet of additional storage space
in San Luis Reservoir and includes related modification to Highway 152.

J. The Authority has finalized an agreement for the management of the Project and
cost share of charges associated with the raising of the B.F. Sisk Dam and increased storage
capacity of the federally administered San Luis Reservoir with the United States (“Management
and Cost Share Agreement”). The cost share provisions of the agreement provide that
Reclamation has the authority to share up to 50% of the costs of the Project, although Reclamation
and the Authbrity have agreed to an initial 70% Authority share and 30% federal share of costs
(including, but not limited to costs associated with Project design and construction).

K. Following execution of the Management and Cost Share Agreement, the Authority
also intends to negotiate additional, related agreements, including, but not limited to, a Contributed

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 2 of 21



Funds Agreement, Spend Plan, Coordination Agreement, and O&M Agreement (together, the
“Follow-On Agreements”). Together with the Management and Cost Share Agreement, the
Follow-On Agreements will govern the cost sharing, design, construction, coordination activities,
and operation of the Project.

L. The Authority is participating in the Project on behalf of individual water agencies
that will provide funding in exchange for water storage and supply benefits provided by the Project.
The intent of the relationship established among Reclamation, the Authority, and Activity
Participants is to provide the benefits of the Project to the Activity Participants through the
Authority’s participation.

M. This Activity Agreement governs members’ participation in the Project through
design, financing, construction, and implementation, or until Activity Participants form one or
more separate joint powers authorities to govern their participation in the Project.

N. Each of the parties to this Activity Agreement desires to participate in the benefits
and incur the obligations associated with continued project management and the Management and
Cost Share Agreement and Follow-On Agreements, through the joint exercise of their common
powers under this Activity Agreement.

0. The Authority and each of the Activity Agreement Members have shared, and
continue to have, a common interest in sharing information and resources reasonably necessary to
accomplish the purpose in this Activity Agreement.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the true and correct facts recited above, and of

the covenants, terms, and conditions set forth herein, the Activity Agreement Members and the

Authority agree as follows:

2. DEFINITIONS
2.1.  “Activity Agreement” or “Agreement” shall mean this First Amended and

Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity Agreement.

2.2, “Activity Agreement Expenses” shall mean all expenses directly incurred by the
Authority pursuant to this Activity Agreement and any agreements executed in conjunction with
this Activity Agreement, together with a share of Authority Operating Costs allocable to Activity
Agreement Members and to any Non-Member Participating Parties through Memoranda of

Understanding executed in conjunction with this Activity Agreement.

_ First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity
Agreement

Page 3 of 21



2.3, “Activity Agreement Member” shall mean a member of the Authority who is
signatory to this Activity Agreement. The Activity Agreement Members are listed on Exhibit “A”
attached hereto.

2.4.  “Activity Participants” shall mean the Activity Agreement Members and the Non-
Member Participating Parties, as defined below.

2.5. “Administration Agreements” shall mean those certain agreements between the
Authority and Activity Agreement Members for the undertaking of activities and sharing of costs
and benefits pursuant to Sections 22 and 23 of the JPA.

2.6.  “Authority” shall mean the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority.

2.7.  “Autherity Operating Costs” shall mean the Authority’s rent and other occupancy
charges, acquisition costs of office furniture and equipment, cost of cars and other vehicles,
insurance premiums, salaries and wages of employees including payments in connection with
retirement programs and other benefit programs, fees of creditors, lawyers, engineers and other
consultants, travel, telephone, telecopy, and photocopy expenses, and any other general
administrative expenses.

2.8.  “Board of Directors” shall mean the Board of Directors of the San Luis & Delta-
Mendota Water Authority.

2.9.  “Fiscal Year” shall mean the Authority’s March 1 - February 28/29 fiscal year.

2.10. “JPA” or “JPA Agreement” shall mean that certain Joint Exercise of Powers
Agreement effective January 1, 1992, establishing the Authority, as has been and may be amended
or restated over time.

2.11. “Management and Cost Share Agreement” shall mean the Agreement Between
the United States and the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority for the Management of the
Expanded San Luis Reservoir and Cost Share of Charges Associated with Raising of the B.F. Sisk
Dam and Increased Storage Capacity of the Federally Administered San Luis Reservoir (Contract
No. 24-WC-20-6280) entered into by the Authority on behalf of the Activity Agreement Members.

2.12. “Memorandum of Understanding” or “MOU” shall mean an agreement in the
form approved by the Activity Agreement Members and Authority Board of Directors between the
Authority and a local agency, city, county, or mutual water company that is not a member of the

Authority but which desires to participate in this Activity Agreement as a Non-Member

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 4 of 21



Participating Party; “Memoranda of Understanding” or “MQOUs” shall refer collectively to all
such Memoranda of Understanding.

2.13. “Non-Member Participating Party” shall mean a local agency, city, county, or
mutual water company that is not a member of the Authority but which by execution of an MOU
agrees to undertake the same obligations and is accorded the many of same benefits as a member
of the Authority that has executed this Activity Agreement. The Non-Member Participating Parties
are listed on Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

2.14. “Participation Percentage” shall mean each Activity Participant’s allocated share
of Activity Agreement Expenses and Project benefits, as determined and as described in Section
10 of this Agreement and set forth on Exhibit “B” as updated from time to time.

2.15. “Project Participation Percentage” shall mean the total of the Activity
Participants’ shares in the Project, which is equal to the entirety of the storage capacity associated
with the “Authority-Managed Share of Expanded Reservoir,” as defined in the Management and
Cost Share Agreement.

2.16. “Reservoir Expansion Project” or “Preject” shall mean the proposed project
pertaining to the planning, design, permitting, and other preconstruction activities associated with
the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project, as well as the construction, operation,
and management of the expanded San Luis Reservoir.

2.17. “Water Coordinator” shall mean the individual provided for in subarticle 4(i}(4)
of the Management and Cost Share Agreement.

3. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT
3.1.  The purpose of this Activity Agreement is to allow, through the joint exercise of

some or all of the common powers of the Activity Agreement Members described in the Recitals
above, as appropriate, the Activity Agreement Members to participate through the Authority in the
benefits and obligations associated with the Project through design, financing/issuance of debt,
construction of the Project, and implementation (operation and management) of the expanded San
Luis Reservoir, or until the interests, rights, duties, and obligations of the Authority under this
Activity Agreement and under the Management Cost Share Agreement are assigned to a new entity
or entities comprised of the Activity Participants. The Authority and the Activity Agreement
Members intend that the benefits and obligations associated with the Project, including but not

limited to storage capacity and Article 3(f) water as defined in the Management and Cost Share
First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity
Agreement

Page 5 of 21



Agreement, will be allocated to Activity Participants consistent with the Participation Percentages
described in Section 10 of this Activity Agreement, and documented in Exhibit “B.”

3.2.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the Authority’s role in this Activity
Agreement is to: 1) provide the umbrella joint powers agreement pursuant to which the parties
may exercise their common powers and to provide coordinated services at the expense of the
Activity Agreement Members; 2) negotiate, implement, and administer the Management and Cost
Share Agreement and Follow-On Agreements in coordination with the Activity Agreement
Members; 3) provide administrative services for implementation of the Management and Cost
Share Agreement and Follow-On Agreements, including, but not limited to, providing notices,
billings, and accounting services to the Activity Agreement Members during the term hereof; and
4) undertake such additional activities and responsibilities as necessary, including project
management, and retaining and supervising other employees or consultants as may be requested

and funded by the Activity Agreement Members.

4. ORGANIZATION
4.1. The business of this Activity Agreement shall be conducted by the Authority at

large and therefore be governed by the Board of Directors of the Authority. However, it is
recognized that, at some time in the future the Activity Participants may wish to form a separate
body specifically for the purpose of directing the business of the Activity Agreement (a “Steering
Committee™). If the Activity Participants unanimously agree that a Steering Committee is in the
best interest of all parties, the Board of Directors of the Authority will consider establishing the
organizational structure proposed by the Activity Participants, which will be described in an
amendment to this Activity Agreement, and that organizational structure may then serve as the
governing body for this Activity Agreement.

42. It is intended that, at some time in the future, the business of this Activity
Agreement will be moved from the Authority to a new entity or entities comprised of Activity
Participants, and the Authority will, upon approval of the Activity Participants, assign all of its
interests, rights, duties, and obligations under this Activity Agreement and under the Management

and Cost Share Agreement to such new entity(ies) (see Section 17 of this Activity Agreement).

5. ROLE OF AUTHORITY: POWERS RESERVED TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND LIMITATIONS THEREON

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 6 of 21



5.1.  Role of the Authority.
a. The role of the Authority under this Activity Agreement will be to provide,

through Authority staff or contracts with consultants, coordinated services to assist the Activity
Participants in conducting the activities contemplated by this Agreement. The Authority will
provide only those services supported with funding from the Activity Participants, grant funding,
or other means that will not impose costs on members of the Authority that are not Activity
Agreement Members, in accordance with budgets recommended by staff, and approved by the
Activity Participants and the Board of Directors, as more specifically provided under the terms of
this Agreement.

5.2. Powers Reserved to Board of Directors and Limitations Thereon.

a. The Board of Directors shall have ultimate approval authority over all
Activity Agreement annual budgets based upon the recommendation of staff and approval of the
Activity Participants; provided, the Board of Directors may only alter an Activity Agreement
annual budget in a manner consistent with the Activity Participants’ recommendation.

b. The Board of Directors shall have the right, upon recommendation of or in
consultation with staff, and the approval of Activity Participants, to approve all amendments to
this Activity Agreement, including any amendment terminating the Activity Agreement, and to
approve an MOU with each entity seeking to become a Non-Member Participating Party.

c. The Board of Directors shall have the right, upon the recommendation of or
in consultation with staff, and the approval of Activity Participants, in the form of formal Board
action, to authorize execution of all agreements relating to the Project.

d. The Board of Directors shall have the right, upon the recommendation of or
in consultation with staff, and the approval of Activity Participants, to act on any claims and to
make decisions concerning the prosecution of, defense of, or other participation in actions or
proceedings at law brought by or against the Authority arising from this Activity Agreement;
provided if that action is taken at the request of the Activity Participants then the costs for such
action shall be borne by the Activity Participants.

€. The Board of Directors delegates to staff the power to conduct the activities
described in this Activity Agreement pursuant to the terms of this Activity Agreement and MOUs,
without the required approval of the Board. This delegation shall specifically include, but not be
limited to, the power to enter into contracts within approved Activity Agreement budgets.

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 7 of 21



6. APPROVAL BY AN ACTIVITY PARTICIPANT OR ACTIVITY PARTICIPANTS
6.1. When the terms of this Activity Agreement or applicable law require the approval

of an Activity Participant, written documentation of such approval, whether by Resolution, motion,
or other form of authorization, must be provided to the Authority and to each of the other Activity
Participants.

a. For actions requiring the approval of only the particular Activity
Participant, approval by such Activity Participant is required.

b. When approval by the Activity Participants is required for a particular
action, unanimous approval of the Activity Participants will be required relative to the following

actions within sixty (60) days. Failure to respond within sixty (60) days will be deemed approval.

1. Admitting a new Activity Participant(s);

2. Establishing or modifying the Participant Percentage applicable to
the Activity Participants;

3. Execution of the Follow-On Agreements;

4. Amendment or termination of this Activity Agreement for any

reason other than a complete assignment of interests to a new entity or entities; and
5. Removal of an Activity Participant pursuant to Section 14.7
(financial default) excluding the vote of the Activity Participant about which the determination is
being made. ;
c. For an assignment of the Authority’s interests and the Activity Participants’
interests in both the Management and Cost Share Agreement and this Activity Agreement to a new
entity or entities comprised of the Activity Participants, the approval by Activity Participants
collectively holding at least 90% of the total Project Participation Percentage will constitute
approval of the action. If such assignment is approved, this Activity Agreement will be
automatically terminated upon assignment of the Authority’s interests to the new entity or entities.
d. For all other actions that require approval of the Activity Participants,
including approval of an annual budget, selection of the Water Coordinator and other consultants,
the approval by Activity Participants collectively holding at least 85% of the total Project

Participation Percentage will constitute approval of the action.

7. BUDGETARY RESPONSIBILITIES

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 8 of 21



To the extent that the Authority prepares budgets for this Activity Agreement, the
Authority shall coordinate with Activity Participants in the development of any such budgets for
the activities authorized by this Activity Agreement, annually or more frequently as needed, for
presentation to the Board of Directors in accordance with Section 22 of the JPA Agreement. The
Authority staff will not present to the Board of Directors a budget for this Activity Agreement
unless and until approved by the Activity Participants. Budgeted amounts for this Activity
Agreement will be collected through the invoicing process described below, and, provided the
Activity Participants approve, formal amendment of such budgets by the Board of Directors is not
required for adjustments of expenditure for activities authorized by this Activity Agreement. It is
understood that costs incurred by the Authority under the Management and Cost Share Agreement
and Follow-On Agreements will be included in the budget for this Acﬁvity Agreement, and
allocated to Activity Participants consistent with the Participation Percentages described in Section
10. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the failure of the Board of Directors to approve a budget shall
not excuse payment of any Activity Participant to the Authority of amounts necessary for the
Authority to pay debt service on Debt Obligations described in Section 7.3 and shall not affect the
obligation of the Authority to apply such amounts to the payment of such debt obligations.

7.1. Invoicing.

a. The Authority shall invoice each of the Activity Participants for all Activity
Agreement Expenses on the same schedule as it utilizes for collecting membership dues to
implement the Authority budget for each March 1 through February 28/29 fiscal year, generally
twice yearly in mid-March and August of each year. Payments are due thirty (30) days following
the receipt of the Authority’s invoice.

b. The Authority shall promptly invoice each of the Activity Participants for
any additional expenses (e.g. under the Management and Cost Share Agreement), with payments
due thirty (30) days following the receipt of the Authority’s invoice.

72. Budeet to Actual Adjustments. The Authority shall true up all amounts collected

from the Activity Participants, grant funding, or other sources to actual expenditures annually
following the end of each fiscal year. Any over-payments between budgeted and actual
expenditures, taking into account any year-end carryover reserve (fund balance), shall be credited

or refunded to each Activity Participant based upon its Participation Percentage. Each Activity

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 9 of 21



Participant shall be billed for any under-payment following the true-up, with payment due thirty
(30) days after the invoice is received.
7.3.  Funding of Any Future Debt Obligations.

a. To the extent the Authority incurs debt obligations to meet its financial

obligations under the Management and Cost Share Agreement, the Activity Participants will pay
to the Authority their respective shares of costs incurred by the Authority via (1) direct payment
(cash) in accordance with any adopted repayment schedule, or (2) payment of debt service
consistent with any adopted repayment schedule.

b. Alternatively, if the Activity Participants utilize a financing mechanism or
entity other than that described in section 7.3.a above, such as through a financing joint powers
authority, it is understood that the Activity Participants will work with the Authority on an

arrangement to ensure that their allocated costs get paid in a timely manner to the United States.

8. ACCOUNTABILITY, REPORTS., AND AUDITS
8.1.  Full books and accounts for this Activity Agreement shall be maintained by the

Authority in accordance with practices established by, or consistent with, those utilized by the
Controller of the State of California for public entities. The books and records shall be open to
inspection by the Activity Participants at all reasonable times, and by bondholders and lenders as
and to the extent provided by resolution or indenture.

8.2. - There shall be strict accountability of all funds deposited on behalf of the Activity
Agreement with the Authority. The Treasurer of the Authority, directly or acting through its
Accounting Department, shall provide regular reports of Activity Agreement accounts. Funds of
the Activity Agreement shall be subject to audit by the official auditor of the Authority. An
Activity Participant may request an independent audit of the Activity Agreement funds; such audit

shall be conducted at the expense of the requesting Activity Participant.

9. ACTIVITY AGREEMENT EXPENSES AND ALLOCATION OF OPERATING
COSTS

9.1. The Authority and the Activity Participants agree that all Activity Agreement

Expenses incurred by the Authority under this Activity Agreement are the costs of the Activity
Participants, and not of the Authority, and shall be paid by the Activity Participants. Activity

Participants shall be primarily responsible for determining, among themselves, a fair and equitable

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 10 of 21



apportionment of Activity Agreement Expenses at all stages of the Project and throughout the term
of this Activity Agreement; provided however that any apportionment determined in connection
with the incurrence of debt obligations may not be altered without the consent of each affected
Activity Participant and the trustee with respect to such debt obligations.

9.2. The Activity Participants further agree that the Board of Directors is authorized to
allocate a share of Authority Operating Costs, which includes a portion of costs addressed by the
Administration Agreements, as part of the Activity Agreement Expenses to cover the cost to the
Authority of administering this Activity Agreement.

10. PARTICIPATION PERCENTAGES
10.1. Participation Percentages.  Each Activity Participant agrees to reimburse the

Authority for that participant’s share of the actual costs due by the Authority under the
Management and’Cost Share Agreement and Follow-On Agreements, plus that member’s share of
any Activity Agreement Expenses (e.g. project management costs, Authority staff time costs, etc.).
In return, each Activity Participant receives benefits from the Management and Cost Share
Agreement coordinated through the Authority, including a share of the storage benefits or storage
rights, proportionate to that Activity Participant’s share of costs. The Activity Participant’s share
of costs and benefits are based upon its Participation Percentage, which is documented in Exhibit
“B” to this Activity Agreement.

10.2. Changing Participation Percentages. The Participation Percentages will be

reviewed and may be revised in each of the following circumstances:

a. Execution of the Management and Cost Share Agreement;

b. Addition of Activity Participant(s); and

c. Withdrawal or Removal of Activity Participant(s). Revision of the
Participation Percentages related to the withdrawal or removal of one or more Activity Participants
is addressed in Section 14 of this Activity Agreement.

In addition to the circumstances listed above, the Participation Percentages may be revised

at other times if the Activity Participants unanimously agree to such revision.

10.3. Ongoing Documentation of Participation Percentages. The initial Participation

Percentages of each Activity Participant shall be attached as Exhibit “B” to this Activity
Agreement, effective upon the date approved by all Parties. Any further amendments to Exhibit

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 11 of 21



“B” may be made using the procedure included in this Section 10 without any further separate

amendment of this Activity Agreement being required.

11. WATER COORDINATOR
11.1  The Water Coordinator shall be selected by the Activity Participants.

11.2 The Water Coordinator will manage and account for water in the Authority-

Managed Share of the Expanded Reservoir consistent with the provisions outlined below and in
the Management and Cost Share Agreement and Follow-On Agreements and any internal
operating principles that may be adopted by the Activity Participants, which would be appended
to this Activity Agreement as an exhibit.

11.3 Each Activity Participant shall provide direction to the Water Coordinator
regarding the delivery of water to and from its respective share of storage in the Authority-
Managed Share of the Expanded Reservoir. It is the role of the Water Coordinator to communicate
with each Activity Participant and Reclamation regarding the movement of water into and out of
each Activity Participant’s reserved share of space.

11.4 The Water Coordinator shall promptly communicate as necessary each Activity
Participant’s conveyance or delivery requests with Reclamation and/or the California Department
of Water Resources.

11.5 The Water Coordinator shall have no authority to direct water into or out of any
individual Activity Participant’s share of storage absent the consent of that Participant.

11.6 When Reclamation directs surplus CVP water, or “Article 3(f) water,” into the
Authority-Managed Share of the Expanded Reservoir, that Article 3(f) water will be allocated to
each Activity Participant by the Water Coordinator in accordance with each Activity Agreement
Member’s Participation Percentage. If the storage capacity of any Activity Agreement Member
fills completely, any additional Article 3(f) water will be allocated among the remaining Activity
Participants in proportion to the Participation Percentages of those Activity Agreement Members

with remaining unfilled storage capacity.

12. SOURCE OF PAYMENTS

12.1  Each Activity Participant agrees that it will timely take actions necessary to provide

sufficient money to meet its obligations hereunder. Each Activity Participant hereby confirms that

the Authority and other Activity Participants are third party beneficiaries of such Activity

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 12 of 21



Participant’s obligations under this Agreement and may take such actions in law or in equity as
may be desirable to enforce payments hereunder.

12.2. The obligation of each Activity Participant to make payments under this Agreement
is absolute, irrevocable, and unconditional irrespective of whether the Project is completed,
operable, operated, or retired. Such payments are not subject to reduction, whether offset or
otherwise, and are not conditioned upon performance by the Authority under this Agreement or

any Activity Participant.

13. INDEMNIFICATION OF AUTHORITY MEMBERS WHO DO NOT
PARTICIPATE IN THIS ACTIVITY AGREEMENT

The Activity Participants shall hold the Authority and each of its members who are not
Activity Participants, free and harmless from and indemnify each of them against any and all costs,
losses, damages, claims, and liabilities arising actions or inactions taken under this Activity
Agreement or the MOUs. This indemnification obligation includes the obligation of the Activity
Participants to defend the Authority, and all members of the Authority that are not participants in
this Activity Agreement, at the sole expense of the Activity Participants, in any action or
proceeding brought against the Authority or any of its members not participating in this Activity
Agreement, to recover any such costs, losses, damages, claims, or liabilities arising from this
Activity Agreement, as well as the obligation to pay for any and all costs of litigation incurred by
the Authority as a result of entering into this Activity Agreement. Such costs may include, but are
not limited to, attorneys' fees and costs incurred by the Authority to defend its provision of services

under this Activity Agreement.

14. TERM

This Activity Agreement shall take effect following execution by all seven (7) of the
Activity Agreement Members, unless one or more of the seven Activity Agreement Members have
withdrawn, in which case this Activity Agreement shall take effect following execution of the
remaining Activity Agreement Members. The Activity Agreement shall remain in full force and
effect until it is rescinded or terminated by the Authority and the Activity Agreement Members,
with approval by the Non-Member Participating Parties, if any, or pursuant to Section 6.1(c);

provided however, that if debt obligations have been issued pursuant to Section 7.3.a, this Activity

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 13 of 21



Agreement shall not terminate until such debt obligations have been paid or deemed paid in

accordance with their terms.

15. WITHDRAWAL
15.1 If Management and Cost Share Agreement is Not Executed. If the Authority does

not execute, or withdraws from, the Management and Cost Share Agreement, and Reclamation
returns to the Authority any money paid, the Authority shall use its best efforts to ensure that
money is refunded proportionately to the Activity Participant that initially contributed it.

15.2  Afier Execution of Management and Cost Share Agreement But Prior to Issuance

of Project Financing: After execution of the Management and Cost Share Agreement but prior to

issuance of Project financing, an Activity Participant may withdraw from this Agreement by
providing written notice to the Authority and all other Activity Participants. All Activity
Participants shall have the opportunity to, if desired, assume a share of the withdrawing Activity
Participant’s interest in proportion to their existing Participation Percentage. If the remaining
Activity Participants do not assume all of the withdrawing Participant’s interest, then it shall be
offered to Reclamation to allow it the opportunity to, if desired, assume some or all of the
withdrawing Activity Participant’s interest. The withdrawal shall be effective thirty (30) days after
sending the written notice. A withdrawing Activity Participant shall be responsible for its share of
the costs incurred through the effective date of its withdrawal and shall not be entitled to a return
of any money paid pursuant to Section 10. The withdrawing Activity Participant shall have no
obligation to pay any future share of the Authority’s cost under the Management and Cost Share
Agreement or any additional Activity Agreement Expenses.

15.3 Withdrawal After Issuance of Project Financing: After financing by the Activity

Participants occurs, an Activity Participant may withdraw only if:

a. It provides written notice to the Authority and all other Activity
Participants, and all Activity Participants are provided the opportunity to, if desired, assume a
share of the withdrawing Activity Participant’s interest in proportion to their existing Participation
Percentage. If the remaining Activity Participants do not assume all of the withdrawing
Participant’s interest, then it shall be offered to Reclamation to allow it the opportunity to, if
desired, assume some or all of the withdrawing Activity Participant’s interest; and

b. 1. One or more of the other Activity Participants or Reclamation have

agreed to assume all of the withdrawing Activity Participant’s Project and finance obligations.
First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 14 of 21



However, if the Activity Participant(s) assuming those obligations fail(s) to make any required
debt service payments or capital costs, the withdrawing Activity Participant shall remain obligated
for any such shortfall in payment for as long as the bonds remain outstanding or until construction
of the Project has been completed. Notwithstanding any withdrawal permitted under this
subdivision b., an Activity Participant or its successor shall remain obligated under this Agreement
to make any payments with respect to any specific component of the Project to which that Activity
Participant previously committed, either as self-funded or under any bonds; or

2. It is unanimously approved by all of the other (non-withdrawing)
Activity Participants, who must find and determine in connection with such approval that there
would be no adverse and material effect. For purposes of this Section 15.3, “adverse and material
effect” means any effect that would result in a downgrade or suspension on the rating of the bonds
or cause an expected shortfall in future project finance payments or cause delays or increased costs
with respect to design and/or construction of the Project.

15.4. Rights Following Withdrawal: As of the withdrawal date, all rights of participation

in this Activity Agreement shall cease for the withdrawing Activity Participant. However, if a
withdrawn Activity Participant is obligated for any shortfall in payment pursuant to section 15,
that withdrawn Activity Participant will be entitled to all corresponding rights of participation for
the period of time during which it is responsible for such obligations.

15.5. Obligations Following Withdrawal: Withdrawal shall not excuse the withdrawing

Activity Participant’s performance of obligations imposed upon that party by any judgment which
has been entered by a court of competent jurisdiction or regulation to which the Authority or the
Activity Participants are subject and that arise from or are related to activities of the Activity
Agreement conducted during the period when the withdrawing Activity Participant participated in
this Activity Agreement. Furthermore, the indemnification obligations set forth in Section 13 of
this Activity Agreement shall survive an Activity Participant’s withdrawal from this Activity
Agreement for activities under this Activity Agreement conducted during the period when the
withdrawing Activity Participant participated in this Agreement.

15.6 Removal of Delinguent Activity Participant: When an Activity Participant fails or

refuses to pay that Activity Participant’s share of Activity Agreement Expenses for a period of
time longer than three (3) months, after written notice from the Authority without entering into an
agreement with the Authority to cure any financial default or to meet any other obligation required

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 15 of 21



for its active participation in the Activity Agreement, the remaining Activity Participants, voting
as set forth in Section 6.1.b.6 above, will determine whether or not such Activity Participant shall
be removed from the Activity Agreement and if so determined, shall request that the Board of
Directors approve removal of that Activity Participant from the Activity Agreement.

a. Following removal of an Activity Participant, the remaining Activity
Participants agree that each of them will be allocated a proportionate share of the removed Activity
Participant’s Activity Agreement Expenses and associated interests in the Project. Any Activity
Participant may be relieved of its obligation to assume the additional proportionate share created
by the removal of an Activity Participant if (1) the remaining Activity Participants agree to
proportionately assume the removed Activity Participant’s share of obligations and benefits, or (2)
one or more Activity Participant(s) are willing to assume the additional proportionate share from
another Activity Participant.

b. Such vote shall not preclude reinstatement of the removed agency by

agreement of the Activity Participants and the Authority.

16. RIGHT TO PARTNER WITH NON-ACTIVITY PARTICIPANTS
16.1  Activity Participants shall have the right to partner with other Activity Participants

or any non-Activity Participant party (person or entity) regarding the sale, transfer, assignment, or
leasing of that Participant’s share of capacity within the Authority-Managed Share of Expanded

Reservoir as provided herein.
16.2 Lease of Storage Capacity: Each Activity Participant may negotiate in its discretion

the commercial terms of a lease of its storage capacity interest (“Negotiated Terms”) provided that:

a. The Negotiated Terms do not negatively impact other Activity Participants’
rights to store or convey water in accordance with the Management and Cost Share Agreement
and this Activity Agreement, or the rights of Activity Participants to store or convey water in
accordance with their state or federal contracts (as applicable);

b. Such lease is consistent with the Reclamation’s water rights, governmental
approvals, and applicable law; and

c. No agreement for a lease of an Activity Participant’s storage capacity shall
be for a term of longer than fifteen (15) years, nor shall it provide for any renewal of a term in a
manner that would result in a lease having an effective term in excess of fifteen (15) years;

provided further that if an agreement for a lease of a Activity Participant’s storage capacity is for
First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 16 of 21



a term of longer than fifteen (15) years, such agreement shall be subject to the same terms and
conditions of this Section 16.3.d-e as are applicable to the sale, transfer, or assignment of storage
capacity.

d. A lease of storage capacity shall not impact or limit the leasing Activity
Participant’s rights or obligations to the Authority under this Activity Agreement and each
Participant shall remain fully responsible for all of its obligations to the Authority under this
Agreement. Such lease does not require the non-Activity Participant to become a Non-Member
Participating Party under this Activity Agreement.

16.3 Sale, Transfer. or Assignment of Storage Capacity: Each Activity Participant may

negotiate in its discretion the commercial terms of a sale, transfer, or assignment of its storage
capacity interest (“Negotiated Terms”) provided that:

a. Such sale, transfer or assignment is consistent with the Reclamation’s water
rights, governmental approvals and applicable law;

b. No sale, transfer or assignment of a Participant’s storage capacity can cause
or be construed to cause a reduction in any Project Obligation bond credit rating or put the tax
exempt borrowing status of the financing entity or entities in violation of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended, as reasonably determined by the Authority;

c. Prior to any proposed sale, transfer, or assignment of storage capacity, the
Activity Participant must first provide written notice of such its intent to all other non-selling
Activity Participants, including a term sheet with all material terms of any proposed sale, transfer
or assignment (the “Offer Notice”). The Activity Participants shall have a right of match or first
refusal with respect to the sale, transfer, or assignment of such storage capacity on the terms
provided in the Offer Notice. If more than one Activity Participant desires to purchase the selling
Participant’s share on the terms offered, those interested purchasing Activity Participants shall
each receive a pro rata share of the selling Participant’s interest in proportion to their existing
Participation Percentage. No Activity Participant may sell, transfer. or assign any portion of its
storage capacity to anyone other than an Activity Participant without first providing all non-selling
Activity Participants forty-five (45) days to agree to or match the material terms of the Offer
Notice, including any subsequently proposed revised offer to sell, transfer or assign storage

capacity to a Non-Participant;

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity
Agreement
Page 17 of 21



d. The proposed sale, transfer or assignment of storage capacity to a non-
Participant must be approved by Activity Participants and the Authority, such approval not to be
unreasonably withheld or delayed by Activity Participants or the Authority;

e. A sale, transfer or assignment of storage capacity shall not impact or limit
the selling Activity Participant’s rights, duties, or obligations to the Authority under this Activity
Agreement unless and until the Authority agrees to release all future obligations of the selling

Activity Participant, which shall be documented in writing.

17. ASSIGNMENT OF AUTHORITY’S INTERESTS
The Authority agrees to, upon the approval of Activity Participants, pledge and assign any

and all of its rights, interests, duties, or obligations in the Management and Cost Share Agreement
and Activity Agreement to a new entity or entities comprised of the Activity Participants. It is
intended that the governance of any such new entity or entities would retain the essential voting
structure among Activity Participants as set forth in this Activity Agreement.
18. ADMISSION OF NEW MEMBERS

18.1. Authority Members. Admission of new Activity Agreement Members after the

Effective Date of this First Amendment shall require amendment of the Activity Agreement and
approval by the Board of Directors and the Activity Agreement Members. Such approval of new
Members will include terms, if necessary, to ensure the Activity Participants do not bear undue
financial obligations, e.g., payment of a proportionate share of the costs previously paid and
opportunity costs by Activity Participants under the Activity Agreement.

18.2. Non-Authority Members. A local agency, city, county, or mutual water company

that is not a member of the Authority may become a Non-Member Participating Party (and Activity
Participant) at any time following the Effective Date, if the existing Activity Agreement Members
unanimously approve the admission of the Non-Member Participating Party. Such admission will
occur through execution of a MOU and action by the Board of Directors. Such MOU, as
appropriate, will include terms, if necessary, to ensure that existing Activity Participants do not
bear undue financial obligations, e.g., payment of an equal share of the costs previously paid and
opportunity costs by Activity Participants under this Activity Agreement.

18.3. Documentation. The admission of any Activity Participant pursuant to this section

shall be documented by that new Activity Agreement Member signing the Activity Agreement or

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 18 of 21



that new Non-Member Participating Party entering into a MOU with the Authority, subject to the
Activity Agreement. Upon admission of a new Activity Participant, the parties shall agree to the
participation percentage of such new Activity Participant, to be documented in an updated Exhibit
“B” to this Activity Agreement.

19. MISCELLANEQUS
19.1. California Environmental Quality Act. The physical, operational, and financial

details of the Reservoir Expansion Project were analyzed by the Authority as lead agency pursuant
to CEQA in the Final EIR/SEIS. The Authority and/or Activity Participants and other public
agencies may be responsible agencies under CEQA for actions related to the Reservoir Expansion
Project; however, the actions contemplated by this Activity Agreement have no potential for
physical effects on the environment. Each potential improvement, project, and/or activity subject
to this Activity Agreement or other related agreements, have been or will be fully evaluated in
compliance with CEQA, as applicable. This Activity Agreement does not, and is not intended to,
bind any party to a definite course of action or limit in any manner the discretion of the Authority
and/or Activity Participants, or any other public agency, as applicable, in connection with
consideration of agreements relating to the Reservoir Expansion Project, including without
limitation, all required environmental review, all required public notice and proceedings,
consideration of comments received, and the Authority’s and/or Activity Participants’ or other
public agencies’ evaluation of mitigation measures and alternatives including the “no project”
alternative.

19.2. Amendments. Subject to the terms of any debt obligations for the Project, this
Agreement may be amended in writing by the Authority and the Activity Agreement Members,
with required approval from the Non-Member Participating Parties, if any.

19.3. Assignment: Binding on Successors. Except as provided in this Activity

Agreement, the rights and duties of Activity Participants may not be assigned without the written
consent or approval of all Activity Participants. Any attempt by Activity Participants to assign or
delegate such rights or duties in contravention of this Activity Agreement shall be null and void.
Any approved assignment shall be consistent with the terms of any contracts, resolutions,
indemnities, and other obligations of the Authority then in effect. This Activity Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and assigns of the Authority and the

Activity Participants. The Activity Participants acknowledge that the Authority may assign all or
First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 19 of 21



a portion of its rights and obligations under this Activity Agreement to a financing entity, as

described in Section 7.3(b).

19.4. Existing Contracts. Nothing in this Activity Agreement, in any way, alters, changes,

or amends existing water service/repayment contracts with the United States, or supersedes,
negates, or changes or is intended to change any past course of dealings, past practices, or
precedent.

19.5. Counterparts. This Activity Agreement may be executed by the Authority and the
Activity Agreement Members in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and
delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the
same instrument.

19.6. Choice of Law. This Activity Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State
of California.

19.7. Severability. If one or more clauses, sentences, paragraphs or provisions of this
Activity Agreement shall be held to be unlawful, invalid or unenforceable, it is hereby agreed by
the Activity Agreement Members and the Authority that the remainder of the Activity Agreement
shall not be affected thereby.

19.8. Headings. The titles of sections of this Activity Agreement are for convenience
only and no presumption or implication of the intent of the parties as to the construction of this
Activity Agreement shall be drawn therefrom.

19.9. Reasonable Cooperation. Activity Participants will reasonably cooperate with each

other and the Authority to perform the obligations under this Activity Agreement and to carry out

the purpose and intent of this Activity Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Members and the Authority have executed this Activity Agreement

as of the date appearing next to their respective signature lines:

SAN LUIS & DEL TA»@@ENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY

Date: -_,_M,W_W,!/zg/,a_az._ﬁ

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 20 of 21



Name: Name:

Title: Title:

Diate: : Date:

Agency Name: Ageney Name

By: By:

Mame: Mame:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

N Tl gy g < A - v Nary N
Agency Name: Agency Name:

Mame: Mame:

Title: v Title:

Date: - o Date:

i

Agency Name: o Agency Name:

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
Page 21 0of 21



EXHIBIT A

B.F. SISK DAM RAISE AND RESERVOIR EXPANSION PROJECT ACTIVITY
AGREEMENT MEMBERS AND NON-MEMBER PARTICIPATING PARTIES

Agency Name ~ Participation Status
(AA Member or Non-Member Participating Party)
Byron Bethany Irrigation District AA Member
City of Tracy AA Member
Del Puerto Water District AA Member
San Benito County Water District AA Member
San Luis Water District AA Member
Valley Water AA Member
Westlands Water District AA Member

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
EXHIBIT A



EXHIBITEB
G

ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES AMONG ACTIVITY PARTICIPANTS

Activity Participants Allocation (%) Share of Investor
Capacity
(assuming 70% share of

130,000 af)
Byron Bethany Irrigation District 1.11% 1,007 AF
-| City of Tracy 5.53% 5,033 AF
Del Puerto Water District 4.04% 3,674 AF
San Benito County Water District 5.53% 5,033 AF
San Luis Water District 4.97% 4,527 AF
Valley Water 66.37% 60,398 AF
Westlands Water District 12.45% 11,328 AF
100% 91,000 AF

First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity

Agreement
EXHIBIT B



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT----DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-02

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE BOARD PRESIDENT TO EXECUTE THE FIRST
AMENDED AND RESTATED B.F. SISK DAM RAISE AND RESERVOIR
EXPANSION PROJECT ACTIVITY AGREEMENT AND
APPROVE THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES AND
THE SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY
FOR THE MANAGEMENT OF THE EXPANDED SAN LUIS RESERVOIR AND

COST SHARE OF CHARGES ASSOCIATED WITH RAISING OF

THE B.F. SISK DAM AND INCREASED STORAGE CAPACITY

OF THE FEDERALLY ADMINISTERED SAN LUIS RESERVOIR

WHEREAS, the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project
(“Reservoir Expansion Project” or “Project”) includes raising the dam crest an
additional 10 feet above the 12-foot embankment raise under development by
the B.F. Sisk Dam Safety of Dams (“SOD”) Modification Project, which would
support an increase in reservoir storage capacity of 130,000 acre-feet, and would
also include installation of downstream stability berms and crack filters, raising
the existing outlet works, intake towers, access bridge, and spillway intake by
10 feet, and other modifications, including to State Route 152; and

WHEREAS, the potential benefits from the Reservoir Expansion Project
include increasing long-term reliability and quantity of yearly allocations to
south-of-Delta contractors dependent on San Luis Reservoir and increasing
the certainty of access to supplies stored by south-of-Delta contractors in San
Luis Reservoir in subsequent water years; and

WHEREAS, the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (“Water
Authority”) has worked with the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (“Reclamation”)
to analyze the proposed Reservoir Expansion Project over the past several
years, including through the preparation of the draft B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and
Reservoir Expansion Project Environmental Impact Report/Supplemental
Environmental Impact Statement (“EIR/SEIS”), Feasibility Report, and
Addendum to the Feasibility Report; and

WHEREAS, the Water Authority authorized execution of a series of cost-
share agreements with Reclamation to collaborate on the planning, preliminary
design, and environmental compliance for the Reservoir Expansion Project,
and to seek potential storage benefits of the Project for Water Authority
member agencies; and



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT----DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

WHEREAS, the Water Authority and Byron-Bethany Irrigation District,
Del Puerto Water District, Eagle Field Water District, Pacheco Water District,
Panoche Water District, San Benito County Water District, San Luis Water
District, Santa Clara Valley Water District, Westlands Water District, and the
City of Tracy (together, “Activity Agreement Members”) executed the B.F. Sisk
Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity Agreement, made effective
as of May 9, 2022, to facilitate the funding of planning, preliminary design, and
environmental compliance for the Reservoir Expansion Project. Eagle Field
Water District, Pacheco Water District, and Panoche Water District later
withdrew from the Activity Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the San Benito County Water District (District) is an Activity
Agreement Member and is considering participating in the Reservoir Expansion
Project to provide reliable water supplies for future urban growth within San
Benito County.

WHEREAS, in accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act
(“NEPA”) and the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA?”), Reclamation
and the Water Authority completed the B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir
Expansion Project Final Environmental Impact Report/Supplemental
Environmental Impact Statement (“Final EIR/SEIS”), with Reclamation and
the Water Authority signing a Record of Decision and Notice of Determination
for the Project, respectively, on October 20, 2023; and

WHEREAS, over the past year, the Water Authority and the Activity
Agreement Members have worked to negotiate an agreement with the United
States for the management of the Project and cost share of charges associated
with the raising of the B.F. Sisk Dam and increased storage capacity of the
federally administered San Luis Reservoir (“Management and Cost Share
Agreement”), with Reclamation and the Water Authority agreeing to an initial
30% federal share and 70% Water Authority share of costs and benefits; and

WHEREAS, following execution of the Management and Cost Share
Agreement, the Authority also intends to negotiate additional, related
agreements, including, but not limited to, a Contributed Funds Agreement,
Spend Plan, Coordination Agreement, and O&M Agreement (together, the
“Follow-On Agreements”). Together with the Management and Cost Share
Agreement, the Follow-On Agreements will govern the cost sharing, design,
construction, coordination activities, and operation of the Project; and



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT----DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

WHEREAS, the Activity Agreement Members desire to participate in the
benefits and incur the obligations associated with continued project
management and the anticipated Management and Cost Share Agreement and
Follow-On Agreements through an amended activity agreement; and

WHEREAS, the District’s Board has considered the latest draft of the
First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion
Project Activity Agreement (Attachment 1), a copy of which has been presented
to the Board and is on file with the Secretary hereof; and

WHEREAS, authorizing execution of the First Amended and Restated
B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity Agreement does
not legally bind or otherwise commit the Water Authority or the Activity
Agreement Members to participate in or otherwise proceed with the Reservoir
Expansion Project, and further, executing the First Amended and Restated B.F.
Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion Project Activity Agreement is an
administrative and organizational action that will not result in a direct change
in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect change to the
environment, and thus does not constitute a project under CEQA. (CEQA
Guidelines, § 15378(b)(9).)

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AS FOLLOWS, THAT:

Section 1. The facts stated in the recitals above are true and correct, and
the Board so finds and determines.

Section 2. The Board hereby authorizes the General Manager to execute
the First Amended and Restated B.F. Sisk Dam Raise and Reservoir Expansion
Project Activity Agreement in substantially the form presented to the Board,
subject to such additions, deletions, and other revisions as the said General
Manager shall approve prior to execution and further subject to the
contingencies described in Section 3 of this Resolution.

Section 3. The authorization conferred by this Resolution, and the
document executed in reliance upon it, shall be contingent upon the occurrence
of the seven (7) remaining Activity Agreement Members executing the Amended
Activity Agreement, unless one or more those Activity Agreement Members
withdraw from the Activity Agreement.

Section 4. In the event the contingency described in Section 3 fails to
occur, the authorization conferred by this Resolution for which the contingency
is not satisfied is revoked ab initio as to the document not achieving the
signatures as required by said Section 3, and any documents executed by the
Water Authority in reliance upon it shall have no binding force or effect.



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT----DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular board meeting, this
29th day of January, 2025, by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County
Water District.

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

ABSENT: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT----DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2025-02

Doug Williams
President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary



DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT----DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

kkkkkkk

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2025-02 was duly and
regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water
District at the meeting held on the 29t day of January, 2025.

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary



1/22/2025

Connected Action
Representation of
Project Specific Crest
Raises

Il Dam Safety and
Expansion
Projects




1/22/2025

Participant

Federal

. Funding

Funding
and
Storage
Split

Funding
Project Capital Costs ($2024)
C a pit a I Crest Raise $515,430,000
Costs Highway 152 $507,000,000

Total

$1,022,430,000




1/22/2025

“I District Participation

* The District is participating to address future
urban growth in the County

* Costs will be recovered through a capacity fee
charged on new development

I} Current
Storage
Allocation

— Storage Participation
Participating Agenc .
Rating Ceency Capacity (AF) Percentage

Santa Clara Valley Water 60,398 66.4%
District
Westlands Water District 11,328 12.5%
City of Tracy 5,033 5.5%
San Benito County Water 5,033 "~ 55%
District
San Luis Water District 4,527 5.0%
Del Puerto Water District 3,674 4.0%
Byron Bethany Water 1,007 1.1%
District :
Total 91,000




1/22/2025

Cost Share Agreement

* Construction responsibilities
* Dam Raise: U.S. Bureau of Reclamation
e State Route 152: SLDMWA or Caltrans

* Operations framework
* Reclamation retains ownership of San Luis Reservoir
* Participants provided contractual storage rights

Cost Share Agreement

* Participant benefits
* Additional south of the Delta storage
* Ability to capture Delta surplus
* Non-CVP water is highly protected
* Option to lease or market capacity to offset costs




1/22/2025

I

Cost Share Agreement

* Participant risks
* CVP water could be taken in extreme drought years
* Shared project subject to group governance
* Very little opposition

Activity Agreement

* Benefits allocated proportionate with investment
* Voting thresholds vary by decision

» Major actions subject to SLDMWA Board vote until
terminated or assigned

10



I Participation Required
Participating Agenc z
pating Agency Percentage Funding
Santa Clara Valley Water 66.4% $2,045,427
District
Westlands Water District 12.5% $550,889
City of Tracy 5.5% $170,453
® [ ]
Ad d It I o n a I San Benito County Water 5.5% $170,453
District
F u n d i n San Luis Water District 5.0% $153,295
g Del Puerto Water District 4.0% $124,431
Re q u e St Byron Bethany Water 1.1% $34,001
District
Total 100% $3,249,038

11

1/22/2025

Project Schedule and Board Decisions

« January 2025: Project agreements and funding - $3.3M

* Early 2026: Additional design funding - $20M

* Early 2027: Create financing joint powers authority

* Early 2027: Secure financing $716M
* 2027-2032: Construction

12



1/22/2025

“I Recommendation

A. Consider Approving Cost Share Agreement

B. Consider Approving Activity Agreement and funding of up to
$200,000

13



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: q

Meeting Date: January 29, 2025
Submitted By: Dana Jacobson

Presented By: Dana Jacobson

Agenda Title: Consider Authorizing the Board President to Execute the Agreement between the
San Benito County Water District and Sunnyslope Water District for the Export of Water from
Zones 3 & 6

Detailed Description: The purpose of the Agreement between the San Benito County Water
District and Sunnyslope Water District for the Export of Water from Zones 3 & 6 (Export
Agreement) is to create a mechanism to compensate the District for securing additional spot
market water supplies to meet demands outside of the District’s Zone 3 and 6 areas of benefit.
The Sunnyslope County Water District (Sunnyslope) is in the process of annexing certain
customers located within the service areas of the Best Road Mutual Water Company, Stonegate
Community Service Area #31, and Tres Pinos Water District. Much of the cost of extending
water service will be paid for by grants from the Department of Water Resources, which is
supporting this annexation, so that water quality can be improved in these areas.

The only water source Sunnyslope has available to meet these new water demands is from
groundwater originating in Zone 3 and Zone 6. The District is willing to assist Sunnyslope in
meeting these demands but needs to ensure an equitable solution for its other customers and
avoid any financial impact to existing customers within the Districts Zone 3 and Zone 6. The
District must also avoid the delivery of any Central Valley Project (CVP) water outside of Zone
6 to remain in good standing under its CVP contract, which prohibits the delivery of CVP water
outside of the CVP place of use as defined by the State Board.

Under the terms of the Agreement, Sunnyslope will compensate the District on a 1:1 basis for
any water delivered outside either Zone 3 and/or Zone 6 using a rolling five-year average cost of
spot market purchases.

Prior Committee or Board Action: None

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A




Materials included:
Export Agreement

Recommendation: District staff recommends authorizing the Board President to execute the
Agreement between the San Benito County Water District and Sunnyslope Water District for the
Export of Water from Zones 3 & 6.

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action

Resolution No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




AGREEMENT BETWEEN
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
AND SUNNYSLOPE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
FOR THE EXPORT OF WATER FROM
ZONES 3 & 6

WHEREAS, California State Department of Water Resources (DWR) and State Division
of Drinking Water (DDW) have coordinated with Sunnyslope County Water District
(SSCWD) to implement two individual projects for the benefit of consolidating and
dissolving three rural local community water systems for the health, safety and welfare

of the public; and

WHEREAS, Sunnyslope County Water District will remain as the receiving water
system to provide potable water to the existing service areas of the Best Road Mutual
Water Company (BRMWC), the Community Service Area (CSA) #31 Stonegate Water
System; and the Tres Pinos Water District (TPWD); and

WHEREAS, Two of the proposed systems serve water connections outside of San Benito
County Water District’s Zones of Benefit 3 and 6; and

WHEREAS, Zones of benefit 3 and 6 were formed for the exclusive benefit of lands
within those zones; and

WHEREAS, All three systems intend to abandon their current potable groundwater
water wells in favor of receiving potable water through the SSCWD; and

WHEREAS, Groundwater delivered to the newly combined systems by SSCWD will
have originated in Zones 3 and 6; and

WHEREAS Groundwater produced for the benefit of zones 3 and 6 is not allowed to
leave those zones unless otherwise replaced or compensated for; and

WHEREAS San Benito County Water District seeks to find an equitable remedy to the
export of Zones 3 and 6 water through the purchase of spot market water to replace

water exported outside of Zones 3 and 6.

THEREFORE, The SBCWD sets forth the following terms as an equitable remedy, by
which SSCWD is permitted to export water to those properties outside of Zones 3 and 6.

SSCWD shall comply with the terms of this agreement until some future time when
SBCWD deems it appropriate for Zones 3 and 6 to be modified to include all properties
served by this agreement.

Page1l3

AGREEMENT BETWEEN SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
AND SUNNYSLOPE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT FOR THE EXPORT OF WATER FROM ZONES 3 & 6



SBCWD may take all legal remedies necessary to collect monies due to the district if

timely payment is not made.

TERMS

1. All water delivered outside of Zones 3 and 6 shall be metered and replaced on a 1:1 basis
with imported spot market water delivered through the Central Valley Project (CVP).

2. SSCWD will inform SBCWD of all customers served outside of Zones 3 and 6.

3. By June 1 of each year SBCWD shall inform SSCWD of the 5-year rate for spot market
transfer water for the upcoming calendar year.

4. Annually by January 31, SSCWD shall transmit to the SBCWD by individual customer
account all water delivered in the previous calendar year.

5. By March 1 of each year, SBCWD shall invoice SSCWD for the total ac-ft of water
delivered outside of Zones 3 and 6 in the previous year.

6. The cost of spot market water shall be based on a 5-year rolling average of Exchange

Contractor transfer water.

7. Within 45 days of receipt of the invoice for water delivered outside of Zones 3 and 6,
SSCWD shall submit payment to SBCWD for the water delivered in the previous

calendar year.
8. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Lease is executed by the parties as of the Lease Date

referenced on page 1 of this Lease.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

Page2l3

AGREEMENT BETWEEN SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
AND SUNNYSLOPE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT FOR THE EXPORT OF WATER FROM ZONES 3 & 6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed by the parties as of the date of
last signature referenced below.

Sunnyslope County Water District

By:

Print Name: Michael Alcorn

Title: President of the Board
Date: January 14, 2025

San Benito County Water District

By:

Print Name: Doug Williams

Title: President of the Board
Date:

Page3l3

AGREEMENT BETWEEN SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
AND SUNNYSLOPE COUNTY WATER DISTRICT FOR THE EXPORT OF WATER FROM ZONES 3 & 6






®

Government Finance Officers Association
203 North LaSalle Strect, Suite 2700

Chicago, Hllinois 60601-1210

312.977.9700 fax: 312.977.4806

1/8/2025

Megan Holland
Manager of Administration Finance & Business Services
San Benito County Water District, California

Dear Megan:

Congratulations!

We are pleased to notify you that your annual comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2023 has met the requirements to be awarded GFOA's Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting. The GFOA established the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting Program (Certificate Program) in 1945 to encourage and assist state and local governments to
go beyond the minimum requirements of generally accepted accounting principles to prepare annual
comprehensive financial reports that evidence the spirit of transparency and full disclosure and then to
recognize individual governments that succeed in achieving that goal. The Certificate of Achievement is
the highest form of recognition in governmental accounting and financial reporting. Congratulations,
again, for having satisfied the high standards of the program.

Your electronic award packet contains the following:

A "Summary of Grading" ferm and a confidential list of comments and suggestions for
possible improvements. We strongly encourage you to implement the recommended
improvements in your next report. Certificate of Achievement Program policy requires that
written responses to these comments and suggestions for improvement be included with your
2024 fiscal year end submission. If a comment is unclear or there appears to be a discrepancy,
please contact the Technical Services Center at (312) 977-9700 and ask to speak with a
Certificate of Achievement Program in-house reviewer.

Certificate of Achievement. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. A
current holder of a Certificate of Achievement may reproduce the Certificate in its immediately
subsequent annual comprehensive financial report. Please refer to the instructions for reproducing

your Certificate in your next report.

Award of Financial Reporting Achievement. When GFOA awards a government the Certificate
of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, we also present an Award of Financial
Reporting Achievement (AFRA) to the department identified in the application as primarily
responsible for achievement of the Certificate.

Sample press release. Attaining this award is a significant accomplishment. Attached is a sample
news release that you may use to give appropriate publicity to this notable achievement.



In addition, award recipients will receive via mail either a plaque (if first-time recipients or if the
government has received the Certificate ten times since it received its last plaque) or a brass medallion to
affix to the plaque (if the government currently has a plaque with space to affix the medallion). Plaques
and medallions will be mailed separately.

As an award-winning government, we would like to invite one or more appropriate members of the team
that put together your annual comprehensive financial report to apply to join the Special Review
Committee. As members of the Special Review Committee, peer reviewers get exposure to a variety of
reports from around the country; gain insight into how to improve their own reports; achieve professional
recognition; and provide valuable input that helps other local governments improve their reports. Please
see our website for eligibilitv requirements and information on completing an application.

Thank you for participating in and supporting the Certificate of Achievement Program. If we may be of
any further assistance, please contact the Technical Services Center at (312) 977-9700.

Sincerely,

MLl ik L.

Michele Mark Levine
Director, Technical Services



P

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

San Benito County Water District
California

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2023

Cheitopto P- Hornitl

Executive Director/CEO



